
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Monday, October 7, 2024  
5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 
 

2. Roll call and establishment of a quorum. 
 

3. The Invocation will be provided by Pastor Kristy Rodgers, First Presbyterian Church. 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  
• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Library Board 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Museum Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Water Resources Committee (Ward 4 Representative) 

 
7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of September 3, 2024. 

 
b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees. 
i. Appointment  of Ms. Laura Jensen and Mr. Andrew Gilbert to three-year terms each on the 

Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority at the recommendation of Councilmember 
Roszel. 

ii. Appointment of Mr. John Howk to a three-year term on the Board of Adjustment at the 
recommendation of Mayor Copeland.  

   
 c. Approval and/or Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Proposals, 

and Memorandums of Understanding. 
  i. Lease Agreement between Edward Smothers and the City of Bartlesville/Municipal Airport to 

store aircraft for aeronautical activity in Hangar 8. 
  ii. Professional Services Agreement between Heckenkemper Golf Course Design and the City 

of Bartlesville for agronomy consulting services for Adams Municipal Golf Course. 
iii. Design Contract with CEC Corporation and the City of Bartlesville for engineering design for 

rehabilitation of six different asphalt streets included in the 2023 issuance of the 2020 
General Obligation Bond. 

iv. FY-2024 Audit Engagement Letter between Arledge and Associates P.C. and the City of 
Bartlesville to perform an audit of the City of Bartlesville financial statements. 



 
 
 

v. Agreement between TargetSolutions Learning LLC and the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville 
Fire Department for online Fire/EMS/Hazmat training program and records management. 

vi. Facility Rental Agreement between The Center and the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public 
Library for the annual downtown Spooktacular event. 

vii. Agreement between Kellogg and Sovereign Professional E-Rate Managements Services 
Fee Schedules and the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library for FY 2025-2026 E-
Rate services, covering E-Rate, Oklahoma Universal Service Fund and FCC’s new 
Cybersecurity Pilot Project. 

viii. Hosted Services Agreement between Quipu Group, LLC and the City of 
Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library for FY 2025 to keep a record of customer incidents, 
i.e., accidents or removing customers due to policy infractions. 

ix. Authorization to the City Manager or his designee to sign Voluntary Labor Agreements for 
volunteer hours worked in exchange for complimentary golf at Adams Municipal Golf 
Course. 

x. Purchase and Sale Agreement for Jerry Benedict d/b/a Adams Golf Club. 
xi. Master Services Agreement with Parkhill, Smith, and Cooper for Airport Consulting Services. 

   
 d.  Receipt of Land Donation 

i.  Receipt of a donation of 0.14 acres +/- of land described as Lot 6, less the East 45 feet, of 
Block 19, Capitol Hill Addition to the City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma, 
from Weare-West Family Trust, Arvest Bank, Trustee, addressed as 216 S. Wyandotte Ave. 

  
e. Approval of Resolutions 

i. Amending the FY 2024-2025 Budget appropriating unanticipated grant revenue in the 
Restricted Revenue Fund of the Community Development Department for the use of grant 
funds from Phillips 66 for a tree planting program. 

ii. Amending the FY 2024-25 Budget appropriating unbudgeted revenue for the Police 
Department. 

 
 f. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – September  2024.  
 
 g.  Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for one month ending July 31, 2024. 
  ii. Interim Financials for two months ending August 31, 2024. 
 
 h. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2024-2025-006R for Tuxedo Bridge over Caney River 
  ii. Bid No. 2024-2025-008 for Concrete 

iii. Bid No. 2024-2025-009 for Asphaltic Concreate & Aggregate Base 
iv. Bid No. 1013-1014-010 2024-2025-010 for Custom Aerial Fire Apparatus 

    
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-006R for Tuxedo Bridge over 

Caney River. Presented by Councilman Schipper. 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-008 for Concreate. Presented by 
Mayor Copeland. 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-009 Part I for Asphaltic Concrete 

and Part II for Aggregate Base. Presented by Mayor Copeland. 
 

11. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-010 for the purchase of a custom 
aerial fire apparatus for the Bartlesville Fire Department. Presented by Mayor Copeland. 

 



 
 
 

12. Public hearing and action on a request to close a portion of a 20-foot-wide utility easement 
located on the south side of Lot 1, Block 4, Corrected Plat for Covington Park, Bartlesville, 
Washington County, Oklahoma. Presented by Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering.  

 
13. Public hearing and possible action on proposed text amendments to the Zoning Regulations 

for the City of Bartlesville, such revisions shall include modifications to Section 7.3 (Child and 
Adult Care Facilities) and Section 4.2 (Permitted Uses in Residential Districts). Presented by 
Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development.  

 
14. Presentation, discussion and possible action on the report and proposed recommendations 

for the strategic direction of Adams Municipal Golf Course. Presented by JJ Keegan. 
 

15. Discuss and take possible action to approve a resolution directing City staff to develop a plan 
for a task force to recommend solutions to address the rise in Bartlesville’s unsheltered 
homeless population and associated issues. Presented by Councilmember Schipper.  

 
16. Discuss potential cost recovery methods for police and other City department expenses 

related to special events. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 
 

17. New Business. 
  

18. City Manager and Staff Reports.   
 

19. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 

20. Adjournment. 
 

The Amended Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk at 8:30 a.m. on Friday, 
October 4, 2024 and posted in prominent public view at City Hall the same day at 10:30 a.m. 
 
Jason Muninger     /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  

 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official 
action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, 
strike, or continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City 
Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a 
specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City 
Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If 
participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled 
meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Tuesday, September 3, 2024  
5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted August 29, 2024 at 5:30 p.m.) 

 
 City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Councilmembers Trevor Dorsey, 

Loren Roszel and Quinn Schipper.  Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. was absent. 
 
  City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason 

Muninger, CFO/City Clerk; Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager; Micah Siemers, 
Director of Engineering; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities; Kelli Williams, Chief 
Communications Officer; Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Steve 
Roper, Engineer; Fire Chief H.C. Call; Deputy Fire Chief Brady Watson; Police Chief 
Kevin Ickleberry; Deputy Police Chief Andrew Ward, Police Captain Daniel Elkins; 
Police Corporal Brandon Meyer; Police Officer Zach Duncan; Security; and Elaine 
Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by 

Mayor Copeland at 5:30 p.m. 
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. The Invocation was provided by Pastor Tosha Hollopeter, Oak Park Methodist Church. 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 

Rev. Kelley Becker commented on the Pride Celebration and commended City administration 
for addressing safety concerns for everyone involved in the celebration. She commended the 
police department for their professionalism, and ultimately, she feels it is up to all citizens to 
make Bartlesville a safe community.  
 
Shelle Griffith, Aaron Kirkpatrick, Wendell McWhorter, Roger Walker, John Hensley, Ryan 
Ridinger, Jim Henley, and Linda Uselman all presented comments with some providing 
personal testimony; all providing their disapproval of drag queens, and/or drag queen shows 
held in a public venue; comments on the expense of police presence, and some reading 
Bible scripture. Eddie Collins and Michael Stadelmaier signed up to speak but both said what 
they wanted to say had already been said. 

 
5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

• Presentation to Mike Bailey for CMAO 2024 Gerald Wilkins Award for City Manager of the 
Year. Presented by Steve Whitlock, CMAO Executive Director. 

Agenda Item 7.a.i.



 
 
 

• Recognition of the 100th Anniversary of Spirit Church by Councilman Roszel. 
• National Payroll Week Proclamation September 2-6, 2024 presented by Mr. Roszel. 
• Constitution Week Proclamation September 16-22, 2024 presented by Mayor Copeland. 

 
6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Museum Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Water Resources Committee (Ward 4 Representative) 

 
Mayor Copeland read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the city 
Manager’s Office. 

 
7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2024. 
ii. The Special Meeting Minutes of August 19, 2024. 

 
b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, 

Commissions, and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Marianna Guerrero to a three-year term on the Community 

Center Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
ii. Reappointment of Ms. Donna Copeland and Mr. John Fusselman to additional three-

year terms on the White Rose Cemetery Board at the recommendation of Mayor 
Copeland. 

iii. Reappointment of Mr. Adam Hibdon to an additional three-year term on the City 
Planning Commission at the recommendation of Councilman Schipper. 

iv. Reappointment of Ms. Kinder Shamhart to an additional three-year term on the 
Board of Adjustment at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 

   
 c. Approval and/or Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, 

Proposals, and Memorandums of Understanding. 
  i. Magazine and Subscription Service Proposal between Rivistas Subscription Service 

and the Bartlesville Public Library/City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 
  ii. Contract for License Plate Recognition (LPF) Camera Services between Flock 

Safety and the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Police Department. 
iii. Contract for survey services between Polco Confluence, Inc. (Polco) and the City of 

Bartlesville, a platform that works to gather critical information from community 
stakeholders, assess needs and monitor resident satisfaction and government 
performance. 

iv. Contract for digital tracking software services between Envisio Solutions, Inc. and 
the City of Bartlesville for tools to assist in improved data management and more 
effectively share information with the public, particularly as it relates to the 
Bartlesville NEXT Strategic Plan and voter-approved capital projects. 

v. Professional Service Contract with Brown Engineers for the high service pump 
variable frequency drive replacement at the water treatment plan. 

vi. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Family YMCA of Bartlesville, setting 
out the roles and responsibilities for implementing the 2021 CDBG-Coronavirus 
Relief Program grant modification for rehabilitation of facilities to improve indoor air 
quality.  

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 

vii. Design contract with Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. for engineering design for 
rehabilitation of four different concrete streets included in the 2023 issuance of the 
2020 General Obligation Bond. 

viii. Proposal to purchase and for installation of shade structures for Tower Center at 
Unity Square. 

ix. Encroachment Agreement and Release of Liability with Sterling Enterprises, Inc. for 
part of Dink’s parking lot that encroaches upon a portion of Frank Phillips Boulevard 
Right-of-Way. 

x. Discuss and take possible action to approve an agreement with the State of 
Oklahoma to receive and utilize annual funding received by the State as part of the 
Opioid Lawsuit Settlement Fund for additional opioid remediation purposes within 
the City of Bartlesville. 

   
d. Approval of Resolutions 

i. Amendment to Resolution 3714 amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, appropriating unanticipated grant revenue in 
the Restricted Revenues Fund of the Police Department for the FY 2024 Opioid 
Abatement Grant Award Agreement. 

ii. Amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 appropriating unanticipated revenue in the Opioid Settlement Fund of the 
Police Department for the use of opioid settlement funds. 

 
 e. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – August  2024. 
 
 f.  Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for 12 months ending June 30, 2024. 
 
 g. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2024-2025-004 for Adams Golf Club Greens Renovation Project. 
  ii. Bid No. 2024-2025-005 for Bartlesville Police Evidence/Property Room Firearm 

Sale. 
iii. Bid No. 2024-2025-006 for Tuxedo Bridge over Caney River. 
iv. Bid No. 2024-2025-007 for LED Wall Package 
 

Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in its entirety.  
 
Mr. Roszel moved to approve the consent docket, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-004 for the Adams Golf 

Couse Greens Renovation Project. Presented by Councilman Dorsey. 
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to award Bid No. 2024-2025-004 Base Bid and Alternates A2, A3, A4, A5, 
and A6 to Jonesplan, LLC, Tulsa, OK, in the amount of $2,041,297.50, seconded by Mr. 
Roszel. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Schipper,  Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 



 
 
 

Motion:  Passed 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-005 for Bartlesville 
Police Evidence Room Firearm Sale. Presented by Councilman Roszel. 

 
Mr. Roszel moved to award Bid No. 2024-2025-005, to sell the lot of firearms to Black Rain 
Ordinance, in the amount of $16,124.00, seconded by Mr. Schipper. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey,  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No, 2024-2025-006 for Tuxedo Bridge 

over Caney River. Presented by Councilman Schipper. 
 

Mr. Schipper reported that all bids came in significantly over budget, due to the delays 
involving ODEQ requirements. Mr. Bailey added that the deck on the west bound lane is the 
priority. Mr. Siemers provided background information. Mr. Schipper acknowledged the work 
that Mr. Siemers and Mr. Roper put into their work on the project. 
 
Mr. Schipper moved to reject all bids and readvertise the project with a reduced scope, 
seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey,  Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

11. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-007 for LED Wall 
Package. Presented by Councilman Schipper. 

 
Mr. Schipper reported that both bids received were over budget. 
 
Mr. Schipper moved to reject all bids and readvertise the project with a reduced scope, 
seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey,  Mr. Schipper, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
12. Public hearing and possible action on a request from Dan Keleher on behalf of Patriot 

Hyundai for a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) and Site Development Plan for 
3.26 acres at the southeast corner of Southport Drive and Washington Boulevard/US 
HWY 75. Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 
Mr. Curtis reported that the request involves a new Planned Unit Development and Site 
Development Plan of 3.26 acres at the southeast corner of Southport Drive and Washington 
Boulevard/US Hwy 75. The applicant, Dane Keleher on behalf of Patriot Hyundai, seeks to 
develop an automobile dealership with a service are and outdoor display on the site, which 
currently includes a mix of vacant commercial buildings and residential structures. The 
structures will be removed and be re-platted. The facility will be located on the south side of 
the property with the dealership parking to the north. He  reviewed the existing conditions, 
zoning and land use compatibility, site design, landscaping and residential protection. The 



 
 
 

required neighborhood meeting was held with no attendance outside of City staff. The City 
Planning Commission and staff recommend approval subject to the following conditions: 10 
maintain or replace existing trees as part of the residential protection screening behind the 
elevated car display, and if the existing trees cannot be maintained or replaced, an 
alternative residential protection screening method for the Zoning Regulations is required; 2) 
obtain a floodplain development permit before issuance of any building permits; 3. Plat the 
property before issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy; and 4) if the property is platted, no 
additional Site Development Plan will be required if all PUD design Statement requirements 
are met. 
 
A brief discussion covered a buffer regarding trees that are currently in place and 
topography.  
 
Mayor Copeland opened the public hearing at 6:49. Appearing to speak were John Hensley 
seeking clarification on the location of the main building and dealership parking. There being 
no one further come forward to speak, Mayor Copeland closed the public hearing at 6:50 
p.m. 

 
Mr. Schipper moved to approve to approve and adopt the Ordinance with conditions as 
presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey,  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
13. Discuss and take possible action to authorize the City Manager and/or the City 

Attorney to send formal notice to Price Tower Arts Center (PTAC) to terminate the 
Memorandum of Understanding regarding the management, maintenance and 
operation of the Tower Green, also known as Unity Square, a city-owned facility 
located at 6th and Dewey; and to approve a Lease and Operating Agreement between 
the City of Bartlesville and the Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority to 
provide the management, maintenance and operation of Tower Green, also known as 
Unity Square. Presented by Jess Kane, City Attorney. 
 
Mr. Kane reported that a Memorandum of Understanding between Price Tower Arts Center, 
Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority and the City of Bartlesville was approved by 
the City Council on May 22, 2018 as a collaborative relationship setting out the management, 
maintenance and operation of Tower Green, now know as Unity Square. There has been 
significant changes to management at Price Tower in recent months. Due to those changes, 
he was contacted by Val Callaghan, Director of the Community Center, with concerns that 
PTAC would not be able to carry out their obligations set out in the MOU. Therefore, it is 
necessary to send formal notice of termination of the MOU to PTAC. The of Bartlesville and 
Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority will continue to provide management, 
maintenance and operation of the park per the proposed Lease and Operating Agreement. 
This document is unchanged with the exception of the removal of PTAC from the agreement. 
 
A brief discussion covered the management committee that was included in the Agreement 
with Mr. Kane confirming that the PTAC representation has been removed from the 
committee. Mr. Roszel addressed how food service will be provided due to PTAC being 
removed from the agreement. Mr. Kane and Mr. Bailey confirmed that Ms. Callaghan has 
already taken steps to provide food service/food trucks for events. Mayor Copeland 



 
 
 

confirmed that management of Unity Square will continue to be conducted by the Community 
Center Trust Authority.  
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to authorize the City Manager and/or the City Attorney to send formal 
notice to PTA to terminate the MOU, and to approve the Lease and Operating Agreement 
between Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority and the City of Bartlesville  as 
presented, seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey,  Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

14. Discuss and take possible action to approve a resolution pertaining to public safety, 
lewd acts in public, protests, and constitutional rights of the public in public spaces. 
Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 

 
Mr. Bailey reported that at the request of the City Council, he prepared the proposed 
resolution for consideration by the Council. This resolution embodies the direction he 
received from individual councilmembers and provides instructions to City Administration 
relating to the protection of the public and the preservation of the rights of all individuals 
within its jurisdiction during the planned Pride Celebration scheduled for September 14 at 
Unity Square. When the City and Council received notification that there will be a drag show 
held during this celebration, and given the public concern and protest that occurred during 
and after the last public drag show in September of 2022, the Council requested a resolution 
to ensure that the City is best prepared to address the concerns of citizens, protestors, 
performers, and attendees alike.  Following the public discussions that occurred after the 
drag show in 2022, the Council entered into a one-year agreement with OKEQ – Bartlesville 
which required drag shows during the term of the agreement to be held indoors. Ultimately, 
OKEQ – Bartlesville decided not to hold a drag show at all during the period of this 
agreement. A great deal of legal precedent has been created across the country, since this 
agreement, and it played out exactly as City Attorney Kane advised prior to the passage of 
the agreement with OKEQ – Bartlesville.  
  
Upon notification of a drag show on September 14, 2024, Mr. Bailey reported that the City 
Council provided input and information to him requesting that he prepare the proposed 
resolution that summarizes the legal environment and current jurisprudence related to the 
regulation of both drag and public protests. He explained that a resolution is not an 
ordinance and does carry the weight of law, but expresses the wishes of the City Council. He 
reviewed the resolution stating that as fully outlined in the resolution, the great weight of this 
jurisprudence grants constitutional protections to both drag and public protests. As such, the 
City Council desires to uphold these sacred rights for everyone involved while maintaining 
public safety and adherence with applicable laws. Both drag and public protests are 
regarded as Constitutionally protected freedoms of expression, both are still subject to 
certain laws and restrictions. These laws prohibit disturbances of the peace, indecent 
exposure, lewd acts, and reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions. The Council also 
desires to ensure that the Bartlesville police department continues to receive the highest 
level of training on these laws and the rights of all parties prior to the event and anticipated 
public protest of the event.  
  
Mr. Bailey continued stating the resolution contains specific direction to the City Manager to 
provide sufficient police presence to address all of these issues in three assignments. These 
assignments and duties are based on the location of the anticipated protest, the grounds of 



 
 
 

the event, and the performances. All assigned officers are to receive training specific to their 
assignment prior to the event. While the officers have received training specific to these 
areas in the past through a partnership with the District Attorney’s office, the Council wishes 
to ensure that all new officers are fully trained and existing officers are up to date. These 
officers are also to be provided with body worn cameras which shall be utilized at all times 
when the officer is on duty. The Council also encourages open communication with all parties 
involved to ensure the safe and efficient execution of these duties.   
 
Mr. Bailey concluded that he believes that the proposed resolution captures the intent of the 
Council as it has been communicated to him by the entire body of the Council in individual 
discussions. This resolution has also been reviewed by the City Attorney who believes all 
statements and actions contained in the resolution to be factual and to be permissible within 
the authority granted to the City. He stated that he also believes that all requested actions 
are within the authority and capability of the City. He added that it would be irresponsible if 
police presence were not provided for public events, that providing police presence is simply 
doing the job of protecting public peace and public safety.  

Mayor Copeland stated that the resolution is a very thorough treatment of a subject that 
brings out great feelings and emotions but must be dealt with logic and reason. Each Council 
member takes an oath to uphold the Constitution, whether disagreeing with the subject 
matter or not.  

Mr. Dorsey stated that there are many special events and City permits are required that 
include City services. He added that many cities have researched costs associated with 
providing those services, and he asked that City staff research other cities how these 
expenses are managed. Mr. Bailey stated that the City does have a special event permitting 
process in place and would be happy to research costs and how other cities address those 
expenses.  

Mr. Roszel added his appreciation to the police department and City staff for bringing this 
forward. He thanked everyone who uses City parks and facilities for taking care of the area, 
following the contractual use. He feels this resolution is a good representation of the work 
that has been conducted by staff over the past two years.  

Mr. Roszel moved to approve the Resolution as presented, seconded by Mr. Schipper. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey,  Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 
Mr. Bailey added that Vice Mayor Curd wished to have his approval and support of the 
resolution be provided to the Council following the vote. Mayor Copeland added his 
appreciation to those he visited with regarding this subject for their reasonable and rational 
discussion to come together as a community to live in peace. 
 

15. New Business. 
 

There was no new business. 
  

16. City Manager and Staff Reports.   
 



 
 
 

There were no reports provided. 
 

17. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Mayor Copeland congratulated Mr. Bailey on being recognized and awarded as City 
Manager of the Year. He also acknowledged Mr. Bailey’s qualified staff.  Mr. Bailey thanked 
him, stated his appreciation of the award, and of the kind words he has received from 
citizens. He acknowledged his staff, stating he is grateful to be surrounded by such a great 
team who made this recognition possible. 
 
Mr. Roszel also congratulated Mr. Bailey and on City staff. 
 
Mayor Copeland reminded citizens that due to the Labor Day holiday, those with Monday 
trash routes will have their trash picked up tomorrow, Wednesday. 
 

18. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at 
7:29 p.m. 

 
 
 

                                                   
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

 
 
 
                                                         
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



Agenda Item ___ 

Date___________ 

Prepared by ______________ 
Bartlesville Redevelopment 

Trust Authority 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Discuss and take action to appoint Laura Jensen and Andy Gilbert to a new three-year term on the

Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority. The positions were vacated by Blair Ellis and Dave Nelson,

whose terms have concluded.

Attachments: Two Applications.

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

Blair Ellis was appointed in November 2018 for a three-year term ending in September 2021 and

reappointed for a second three-year term in September 2021.  Her second and final term expired on

September 30, 2024.

Dave Nelson was appointed in September 2013 to complete Sara McGee's unexpired three-year term,

which expired in September 2018. He was appointed to a full three-year term in November 2018, which

expired in September 2021. Because he filled an unexpired term in 2013, he was eligible to be re-

appointed to a final three-year term in September 2021. That term expired on September 30, 2024.

Laura Jensen brings a wide range of experience to the BRTA as a professional and community volunteer.

She currently serves as the Executive Director of the Bartlesville Community Foundation. Her

background includes six years in banking and seven years in the nonprofit sector through community

foundation work. Jensen served on the City of Bartlesville's Board of Adjustment for six years and was a

Board Member of Bartlesville Young Professionals. Her education has been in public health and

gerontology and includes a master’s degree in business. Her application is included for your review.

Andrew (Andy) Gilbert, also has a wide range of knowledge and experience that fits well with BRTA.

Gilbert has worked for 20 years in management consulting focused on multiple disciplines in federal,

state, and local work as an urban planner and a real estate developer, investor, and entrepreneur.  His

education includes a master’s degree in urban planning and a master's degree in business administration,

and he is a certified project management professional. He lives and manages two buildings downtown

and other properties in Bartlesville and Washington County. Locally, he serves as a volunteer mentor,

coach, and advocate for local businesses and entrepreneurs. Gilbert also played an instrumental role in a

volunteer committee comprising the BRTA, the City Planning Department, downtown property owners,

and community volunteers that helped create a sub-grant under the Façade Improvement Grant Program

in the Downtown Commercial Increment District.  Andrew Gilbert’s application is included for your

review.

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION

BRTA Board of Trustees, Staff, and Councilman Loren Roszel recommend the appointment of Laura

Jensen and Andrew Gilbert for a new three-year term at the next available City Council meeting.

    9-13-24
Chris Wilson, President

7.b.i.





Sent: Tuesday, January 10, 2023 12:34 PM 
 
  

Please check the ones you wish to serve on: 

  • Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority 

Name 

  Andrew Gilbert 

Address 

  
222 SE Frank Phillips Blvd, Unit 2 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003 
Map It 

Home Phone 

  (918) 810-7614 

Cell Phone 

  (918) 810-7614 

Email 

  andy@herculescapitalgrp.com  

What in your background qualifies you for service on the committees chosen (volunteer work, education, 
employment)? 

  

I have the following certifications, education, and work experience that will support my service with the 
Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority: Certified Project Management Professional, Certification in City 
and County Government University of North Carolina Chapel Hill, Masters Degree in Urban Planning from the 
University of California Los Angeles, Masters of Business Administration from Duke University, 20 years of 
management consulting work focused on multiple disciplines, four years as an urban planner in Wake County 
North Carolina, real estate investor, and entrepreneur. 

Tell us about your previous community involvement and the duration of your involvement. 

  

I am a recent transplant to the Bartlesville community. I moved here to be active in the management of real 
estate assets I have in the City of Bartlesville and Washington County more broadly. I currently volunteer on 
the Fuqua Alumni Council as part of my relationship with Duke University’s Fuqua School of Business. I have 
been mentoring Duke University MBA students and supporting admissions interviews for MBA candidates for 
the past five years. Prior to the this I was the Vice President of Membership Development with the Hawaii 
Chapter of the Association of the United States Army. 

What would you like to see this board, commission, committee or authority accomplish? 

  

I have extensive experience with strategy development and converting strategy to action. I’d like to bring that 
skill set to help the Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority continue making progress with its existing 
successes. Community development is a balancing act of many competing priorities (e.g., housing, labor force 
development, robust small business environment) that need leadership and guidance to realize an end state 
vision that leads to sustainable growth and economic development for the community at large. My experience 
bridging multiple stakeholder requirements into a cohesive vision will support BRTA’s efforts more broadly and 
help provide leadership for its compelling vision for downtown. 

 

  
 

 

http://maps.google.com/maps?q=222+SE+Frank+Phillips+Blvd%2C+Unit+2+Bartlesville%2C+Oklahoma+74003
mailto:andy@herculescapitalgrp.com


Agenda Item ___ 

October 7, 2024
Prepared by Micah Snyder 

Community Development Department 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Consider and take action to appoint John Howk to the Board of Adjustment. 

Attachments:

Application – John Howk

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

Bruce Kinkade's second term on the Bartlesville Board of Adjustment ended September 2024. 

John Howk has applied to serve in his place, indicating his desire to continue the important 

work of the BOA. Mr. Howk has civic engagement experience through his service as President 

of his neighborhood's Homeowners' Association, as well as serving on the Board of Directors 

for OKM Music and Cherokee Area Council Scouts BSA. This experience and his 

understanding of the role of the BOA make him a well-suited candidate.

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Appoint John Howk to the Board of Adjustment for a three-year term.

7.b.ii.





7.c.i.

















Agenda Item ___ 
September 30, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approval of a professional services agreement with Heckenkemper Golf Course Design for 
agronomy consulting services for Adams Municipal Golf Course. 
 
Attachments: 

Heckenkemper Agronomy Consulting Services Agreement 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Bartlesville City Council awarded a contract to Jonesplan, LLC at the regular meeting in 
August, 2024 to reconstruct the greens at Adams Golf Course.  The project was approved by 
voters in both the 2020 General Obligation (GO) Bond and 2023 GO Bond elections.  The 
contract with Jonesplan includes replacing greens on all 18 holes of the golf course as well as the 
chipping green, putting green, and nursery.  The construction will most likely begin November 
1, 2024 and the contract required that the greens be seeded by April 1, 2025 to provide sufficient 
grow-in of the greens to have them playable and open in time for the 2025 United Way 
Tournament in mid-September, 2025.  To ensure successful grow-in of the seeded bentgrass 
greens and to develop an on-going greens program to provide high quality turf conditions, staff 
have worked with our design consultant on the project to provide “grow-in consulting” services.  
Heckenkemper Golf Course Design works with John Streachek, who provides agronomy services 
to help facilitate proper conditions for optimum growth on the greens along with a plan to ensure 
high quality turf conditions through the life of the greens.  The proposed professional services 
agreement is a time and materials agreement estimated to cost between $10,000 and $20,000 but 
is not to exceed $25,000. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
$700K was approved in the 2020 GO Bond for the greens project.  $1.2MM was also approved 
in the 2023 GO Bond and the City has received an additional $500k from the Lyon Foundation 
for a total budget of $2.4MM.  $245k has been spent or allocated to date for design services and 
the construction contract was awarded to Jonesplan for $2,041,297.50.  The remaining available 
budget for this project is $113,702.50.  There is sufficient funding remaining to cover the 
maximum amount of $25,000 for the agronomy consulting services. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Professional Services Agreement with Heckenkemper Golf 
Course Design for agronomy consulting services not to exceed $25,000. 

7.c.ii.



Adams GC Agronomy Services – Professional Service Agreement 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

 

 This Agreement is entered into this _____ day of _________________, 2024, 

between the Adams Golf Course (hereafter referred to as the "Adams GC"), and 

Heckenkemper Golf Course Design, a division of PDG, LLC (hereafter referred to as the 

"Consultant"), whose principal office is located at 5314 S. Yale Ave, Suite 510, Tulsa, 

Oklahoma 74135. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
It is the intention of Adams GC to retain Consultant to advise and help coordinate 
maintenance functions of the 18-hole championship Adams golf course. The primary 
objectives will be to ensure a successful grow-in of the seeded bentgrass greens and to 
develop an on-going greens program that provides high quality turf conditions. PDG and our 
agronomy consultant John Streachek have been involved in many grow-in projects. The 
services to be included are:  
 
1) Assist the golf course superintendent in developing a grow-in program for the new putting 
greens to include: 
 A) Review rootzone mix to determine proper fertilization products, rate and when to apply. 
 B) Prepare a weekly schedule from pre-plant applications through the initial four months. 

C) Prepare a schedule of best management practices for putting green management through 
all of 2025. 
D) Make site visits as necessary to ensure the program is being implemented in accordance 
with industry standard grow-ins.  
E) Be available for phone calls to discuss concerns or unforeseen occurrences. 

 
2) Soil Fertility Testing - Using Thomas Turf Laboratory or equal, conduct basic soil 

fertility analysis in order to properly balance conditions that will provide the most optimum 
growing environment. Proper testing is required to ensure that the soil ph and 
micronutrients are balanced in order to achieve maximum results of applied products as 
well as to encourage microbial activity. Using Thomas Turf Laboratory will permit 
consistency in testing data and lead to better long-term monitoring. 

 
3) Turf Tissue Analysis - Using Thomas Turf Laboratory or equal, conduct tissue analysis 

to determine actual uptake of nutrients by the creeping bentgrass. This information will be 
evaluated along with the soil analysis from the greens in order to make adjustments so as 
to provide the most optimum growing environment. Using Thomas Turf Laboratory will 
permit consistency in testing data and lead to better long-term monitoring.  

 



Adams GC Agronomy Services – Professional Service Agreement 

4) HGCD will fulfill the scope of service outlined in this agreement based upon these  
 hourly rates:  

  
 John Streachek, Agronomist $ 125 per hour 
  
5) Testing and related packaging and shipping will be billed as a reimbursable expense  

 at the direct cost.  
 
6) Implementation of this scope of work is estimated to cost $10,000 to $20,000, but is not 

to exceed $25,000, through December 2025.  
 
7) Reimbursable Expenses include actual expenditures made by the Consultant, for mileage 

to and from Rogers, AR, lodging and meals when in Bartlesville  
 
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
This Agreement may be terminated at any time by Adams upon fourteen (14) days written 
notice to the Consultant. At the time of such termination, the Consultant shall be paid for all 
Reimbursable Expenses or services performed or incurred prior to or on the termination date. 
 
EXTENT OF AGREEMENT 
This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between Adams GC and the 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreement either written 
or oral. This Agreement may be amended only in writing and executed by the parties hereto. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
Unless otherwise specified, the laws of the State of Oklahoma shall govern this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement consisting of two pages is entered into as of the day and year first written 
above. 
 
ARCHITECT: OWNER: 
 
Heckenkemper Golf Course Design Adams GC 
 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________
               



Agenda Item ___ 
September 30, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approval of a design contract with CEC Corporation for engineering design for rehabilitation of 
six different asphalt streets included in the 2023 issuance of the 2020 General Obligation Bond. 
 
Attachments: 

CEC contract with scope of work and fees 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The 2023 issuance of the 2020 General Obligation Bond (GO Bond) included asphalt street 
rehabilitation projects on six different streets.  The streets included are as follows: 
 

 Highland Drive from Sunset to Aledo 
 Dewey Avenue from Adams Blvd to 16th Street 
 Southport Drive from Quarry Park Drive to Clipper Ct, including Clipper Ct 
 Quail Ridge Road from Adams Blvd to Baylor Drive 
 Cambridge Court from Rice Creek Rd to Williamsburg Street 
 Braddock Road from Claremont Drive to Camelot 

 
Quail Ridge Road, Cambridge Drive and Braddock Drive were identified as priority projects, 
while Highland Drive, Dewey Avenue and Southport Drive are discretionary projects.  Each 
project consists of minor full depth patching followed by milling and overlay. Minor amounts of 
curb and gutter may be replaced as needed. 
 
Staff has negotiated a contract with CEC Corporation (CEC) for engineering design services on 
this project.  The scope of work includes production of construction documents and bidding 
services.  The City of Bartlesville has contracted with CEC on multiple projects in the past, 
including reconstruction of Tuxedo Blvd from Madison to Bison, the Shawnee Sidewalk 
Extension project from Valley to 16th Street and the Lee Lake Parking Lot and Access Road 
project. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The approved budgets for the projects are as follows: 
 
 Highland (Sunset to Aledo)    $200,000 
 Dewey (Adams to 16th)    $375,000 
 Southport (Quarry Park to Clipper Ct)  $265,000 
 Quail Ridge (Adams to Baylor)   $250,000 
 Cambridge Ct (Rice Creek to Williamsburg)  $225,000 

7.c.iii.



 Braddock (Claremont to Camelot)   $200,000 
   
The total budget for the project is $1,515,000.  Design services were factored into the budgets to 
use if necessary.  Historically, this type of design work has been completed with Engineering 
Department staff, but with the current workload and staffing, the intent is to expedite projects by 
contracting out design.  CEC’s proposal of $88,500 is just over 5.8% of the total budget for the 
project.  This fee percentage is in line with the type of design package needed for a rehabilitation 
project like this as opposed to some projects that require more detailed design. The only impact 
to the budget will be utilizing funding set aside specifically for these projects as part of the 2023 
issuance of the 2020 G.O. Bond. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends awarding the design contract for the 2023 GO Bond Asphalt Street 
Rehabilitation projects to CEC Corporation in the amount of $88,500.00. 



 

 
 

 

ENGINEERING CONTRACT FEE PROPOSAL 
 

FOR 

 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
BARTLESVILLE, OK 

 
 
 
ASPHALT STREET REHABILITATION 
 
 
BARTLESVILLE, OK 
AUGUST 29,  2024 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CEC Corporat ion 
1300 S.  Main St reet  
Tulsa,  OK 74137 
Phone:  918.663.9401 
www.connectcec.com 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 79312DEA-B0E5-4479-AFD8-165A35121B3A



 

 
Asphalt Street Rehabilitation 

Bartlesville, OK 
8/29/2024 

Page 2 of 6 

GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 
CEC Corporation (hereinafter referred to as CEC) proposes to provide professional services as described 
herein to the City of Bartlesville (hereinafter referred to as CLIENT). The following is a scope of services 
associated with performing geotechnical services and the engineering design for the pavement rehabilitation 
of the following streets in the City of Bartlesville: Highland Drive from Sunset Blvd. to Brentwood Road, 
Dewey Ave from Adams Blvd to 10th Street, Dewey Ave from 12th Street to 16th Street, Southport Drive from 
Quarry Park Drive to Clipper Court, including Clipper Court, Quail Ridge Road from Adams Blvd to Baylor 
Drive, Cambridge Court from Rice Creek Road to Williamsburg Street, Braddock Road from Claremont Drive 
to Camelot Drive.  See the location maps below.  
 

 
Project Location Map 1 

Docusign Envelope ID: 79312DEA-B0E5-4479-AFD8-165A35121B3A



 

 
Asphalt Street Rehabilitation 

Bartlesville, OK 
8/29/2024 

Page 3 of 6 

 
Project Location Map 2 

 
GEOTECHNICAL 
 

• See attached scope of services for CEC Geotechnical 
 
CD TASK – CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE 
 

• Design for the pavement rehabilitation by means of mill, patch and asphalt overlay at the locations 
mentioned above.  

• Submit digital pdf of the Preliminary Design Plans (60%) with construction cost estimate to the City 
of Bartlesville for review. 

• Perform one (1) site visit to verify patch locations and any possible conflicts. 
• Upon acceptance of the Preliminary Design Plans, CEC will begin preparation of the Final Design 

Plans (90%). 
• Submit digital pdf of the Final Design Review Plans with construction cost estimates to the City of 

Bartlesville for review. 
• Attend up to two (2) design review meetings with the City of Bartlesville. 
• Attend one (1) Public meeting, if required. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 79312DEA-B0E5-4479-AFD8-165A35121B3A



 

 
Asphalt Street Rehabilitation 

Bartlesville, OK 
8/29/2024 

Page 4 of 6 

• Prepare special technical specifications. 
• Upon acceptance of the Final Design Review Plans, CEC will provide final signed and sealed plans 

and specifications. 
 
All construction documents will meet state and local requirements. 

 
 
BD TASK – BIDDING PHASE 

•  Address contractor’s questions and issue addenda, as needed. 
•  Attend pre-bid conference. 
•  Prepare bid tabulation. 
•  Assist in awarding the contract. 

 
ITEMS EXCLUDED FROM  THE SCOPE OF WORK 
 

• Topographic Survey 
• Boundary Survey 
• Study or design of possible alternate alignments 
• Legal descriptions or exhibits for required permanent or temporary easements 
• Any revisions, modifications or alterations for existing public or private utility 
• Detailed drainage design 
• Construction or right-of-way staking 
• Design or relocation efforts of conflicting utilities 
• Design of retaining walls, sheet piling, or any other structural design 
• An environmental study or report of any kind 
• Attend bid opening 
• Attend pre-construction meeting 
• Answer general construction questions 
• Review construction submittals 
• Attendance at Contractor’s periodic construction progress meetings 
• Review of Contractor's monthly payment applications 
• On-site material testing and/or construction inspection 
• Prepare Record Drawings 

 
The CLIENT reserves the right to include the above items as a supplement to this proposal and CEC shall be 
paid for additional services through a separate agreement. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
  
Following receipt of our Notice to Proceed, it is expected that CEC personnel can begin working on the project 
within two (2) weeks. 
 

Notice to Proceed Anticipated October 2024 
Preliminary Plan Submittal (60%) 45 Days following NTP 
Final Review Plan Submittal (90%) 45 Days following Review of 60% plans 
Final Signed Plan Submittal (100%) 15 Days following Review of 90% plans 

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 79312DEA-B0E5-4479-AFD8-165A35121B3A



 

 
Asphalt Street Rehabilitation 

Bartlesville, OK 
8/29/2024 

Page 5 of 6 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES  
  
If there should be a change in project scope that leads to additional work or additional services are requested 
by CLIENT, we will negotiate a fee to provide the changes or additional services prior to commencing work. 
  
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES  
  
The costs for project related reimbursable expenses listed below will be billed at direct cost and only with prior 
approval of CLIENT. 
 

• Fees paid for securing jurisdiction approval or permitting services 
• Reproduction expenses 
• Mailing expenses 

 
PROPOSED ENGINEERING CONTRACT FEE SUMMARY  

 
TOTAL Proposed Engineering Fee    $           88,500.00 
 
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES  
 
We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to submit this engineering contract fee proposal.  If the terms are 
agreeable, please sign and return a scanned copy/hard copy to me via email (shannon.hanks@connectcec.com) 
or at the address listed on the cover page.  If you have any questions or need additional information, please 
call Shannon Hanks or Jacob Campbell at 918.663.9401 
  
Submitted for approval by:                               Accepted by: 
  
 ________________________________     By: __________________________ 
Shannon Hanks, PE  
Municipal Practice Leader 
CEC Corporation          Print:   __________________________         
  
Date:  ________________________           Date:  __________________________                                                               
   
 Notes:  
1. The fee shall be invoiced by CEC on a progressive basis either monthly or in accordance with formal design review submissions and monthly 
construction progress as directed by CLIENT.   
2. The fee presented is based on current hourly rates and is valid if contracted within 90 days from the date listed on the cover sheet.   
3. CEC reserves the right to revisit the proposal scope and fee should the project be placed on hold for more than 90 days. 
4. The work provided in the proposed scope shall be performed on a lump sum basis with amounts not to be exceeded for each task, with the exception 
of the Construction Administration Phase. Hourly rates are as attached Oklahoma Municipal Rate Schedule 2024. Rates are subject to change annually 
beginning in January 2025 
5. Invoicing shall be conducted on a monthly basis. 
6. If this Agreement is terminated, CEC shall be paid for services performed to the effective date of termination. 

Geotechnical  (Lump Sum)                                                                                               $       14,000.00 

CD TASK – Construction Document Phase (Lump Sum)  
• Preliminary Design $ 45,400.00 
• Final Design $ 24,200.00 

BD TASK – Bidding Phase (Lump Sum)                                                                        $         4,900.00                                         

Docusign Envelope ID: 79312DEA-B0E5-4479-AFD8-165A35121B3A

8/29/2024 | 10:01 AM CDT



STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
These Standard Terms and Conditions, together with the attached proposal, make up the Agreement between the named Client and CEC Corporation (CEC). Before 
countersigning the Agreement or verbally authorizing work, be sure you read and understand its contents, which deal with the allocation of risks and duties between the 
Client and CEC.  
1. Scope.  The scope of work for the Engineering Services to be provided is specifically set forth in the attached proposal, submitted to Client by CEC.  If Client requests a change in the 
scope of the Services to be provided, CEC reserves the right to revise delivery schedules and make an equitable adjustment to the price.  Client acknowledges and agrees that CEC is 
providing the Services only and is not providing or participating in the provision of any product(s).  CEC will not be obligated to provide any services which are (a) outside of the scope 
defined in the applicable documentation; (b) outside its area of expertise; or (c) in violation of any applicable laws, codes or regulations. 
2. Standard of Care. CEC will perform the services consistent with and limited to the skill and care ordinarily used by qualified professionals performing the same type 
of services at the same time under similar conditions in the same or similar locality. No other standards or warranties, expressed or implied apply. The Client will notify 
CEC in writing of any deficiencies in the services within 15 days of their discovery but not later than 120 days after substantial completion of the services. The Client 
will give CEC a reasonable opportunity to correct these deficiencies.  
3. Client’s Responsibilities. Client will provide permits, licenses, approvals and consents necessary for performance of the services, except those maintained by CEC for 
its ordinary conduct of business. Client will provide CEC with all reasonably available documents that are related to the services, including information related to 
hazardous materials or other environmental and geotechnical conditions at the site. Before CEC performs any subsurface activities, the Client will provide all available 
information concerning underground services, conduits, pipes, tanks, other facilities and obstructions at the site. CEC will rely on the documents and information provided 
by the Client. The Client grants CEC and its sub-consultant(s) permission to enter the site to perform the services. If the site is owned by others, the Client represents and 
warrants that the owner has granted permission for CEC to enter the site and perform the services. Client will provide CEC with written verification of site access 
permission upon request.  
4. Payment.  Client will compensate CEC for the services at its standard rates, and reimburse its expenses. CEC will submit periodic invoices that are due upon receipt, 
regardless of Client’s receipt of payments from third parties. The Client will notify CEC in writing within 10 days of any disputed item on the invoice and pay all 
undisputed items within 30 days from invoice date. Overdue payments will accrue interest at the lower of 1½ percent per month or the maximum lawful rate. CEC may 
terminate its services upon 10 days written notice any time payment is overdue on any account with the Client. Client agrees to pay for all services through termination, 
plus termination and collection costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses. CEC reserves the right to withhold final reports, letters of compliance, or any 
other relevant document until all past due invoices have been paid. The attached price list shall be adjusted annually as of the date of execution for this agreement.  
5. Limits on CEC Responsibility. CEC will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any others, except for its employees and sub-consultant(s). CEC will not supervise, direct or 
have control over any contractor’s work. CEC will not have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, for work site 
health or safety precautions or programs, or for any failure of contractors to comply with contracts, plans, specifications or laws. Client acknowledges that CEC does not warrant or 
guarantee the approval or receipt of any governmental permits or approvals, or the time to obtain such permits or approvals.  
6. Changed Conditions. The Client acknowledges that encountered conditions may differ considerably from those anticipated, that laws and regulations are subject to 
change, and that regulatory requirements may be unpredictable. CEC will notify the Client if additional services, costs or time become necessary due to any of these 
factors and the parties will negotiate appropriate changes to the scope of services, compensation and schedule. In the event of an emergency, CEC may take immediate 
steps to protect public safety, health and the environment, and will be equitably compensated for its work by the Client. CEC will not be responsible for delays, failures 
to perform or extra costs due to weather, labor disputes, intervention by or inability to get approvals from public authorities, acts or omissions by the Client, or any other 
causes beyond CEC’s reasonable control. The Client will compensate CEC for any increase in its costs resulting from any of these factors.  
7. Documents and Information. All documents, data, calculations and work papers prepared or furnished by CEC are instruments of service and will remain CEC’s 
property. Designs, reports, data and other work product delivered to or on behalf of the Client are for Client’s use only for the limited purposes disclosed to CEC and 
subject to Client paying for the services to provide said work product. Any delayed use, use at another site, use on another project, or use by a third party will be at the 
user’s sole risk and Client agrees to indemnify CEC against any liabilities resulting there from. Any technology, methodology, or technical information learned or 
developed by CEC will remain its property.  
8. Confidentiality and Subpoenas. Information about this Agreement and CEC’s services and information provided by the Client about the services will be maintained in confidence and 
will not be disclosed to others without the Client’s consent, except as CEC believes is necessary to perform its services, comply with professional standards to protect public safety, health 
and the environment, and to comply with laws and court orders. CEC will make reasonable efforts to notify the Client prior to any disclosure except as necessary to perform its services. 
Information available to the public and unprotected information acquired from third parties will not be considered confidential. The Client will reimburse CEC to respond to any subpoena 
or governmental inquiry or audit related to the services at CEC’s standard rates then in effect.  
9. Insurance. During the work, CEC will maintain workers’ compensation, commercial general liability, automobile liability, and professional liability insurance in the 
following minimum amounts: Workers compensation statutory amount; General liability $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate; Auto liability $1,000,000 per 
accident; Professional liability $2,000,000 aggregate.  CEC will furnish certificates of insurance upon request. CEC will purchase project specific insurance at Client 
request if it is commercially available and Client pays the premium and the costs to obtain the additional coverage.  
10. Limitation of Liability. To the fullest extent permitted by law and notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the aggregate liability of CEC 
and its affiliates and sub-consultants and their employees, officers, and directors for all claims arising out of this Agreement or the services is limited to the compensation 
received by CEC under this agreement or $25,000 whichever is greater. This limitation applies to all injuries, damages, claims, losses, expenses and defense costs, whether 
based in contract, negligence, strict liability, statutory, trespass, indemnity, misrepresentation or any other theory of liability. No claim will be valid if presented to CEC 
more than ten (10) years after substantial completion of the services or, if shorter, the applicable statute of limitations period. CEC will not be liable for lost profits, loss 
of use of property, diminution of value of property or goods, delays, cost to obtain replacement samples, or other special, indirect, incidental, consequential, punitive, 
exemplary or multiple damages. CEC shall not be liable in any event for any special or consequential damages suffered by the client arising out of the services 
hereunder.  Special or consequential damages as used herein shall include, but not be limited to, loss of capital, loss of product, loss of use on any system, or other 
property, or any other indirect, special or consequential damage, whether arising in contract, tort (including negligence), warranty or strict liability.  
11. Disputes. All disputes between the Client and CEC shall be subject to non-binding mediation. Either party may demand mediation by serving written notice stating 
the essential nature of the dispute, the amount of time or money claimed, and requiring the matter be mediated within forty-five days of service of notice. The mediation 
shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with their most recent Construction Mediation Rules, or by such other person or organization 
as the parties may agree on. No action or suit may be commenced unless mediation has occurred but did not resolve the dispute, or unless a statute of limitation period 
would expire if suit were not filed prior to such forty-five days after service of notice.  
12. Assignment.  Client may not assign the Agreement between CEC and Client without the prior written consent of CEC.  
13. Delivery/Force Majeure.  CEC shall have no liability for delays or any other breach of its obligations resulting from an Act of God, war, riot, explosion, accident, 
act of government, work stoppage, default of subcontractor or supplier of materials, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of CEC.  
14. Other.  This Agreement shall be governed by Oklahoma law. This Agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties and will remain in effect as defined 
by the requirements of the work.  The above terms and conditions regarding Limitation of Liability and Indemnification shall survive the completion of the services under 
this Agreement and the termination of the contract for any cause. Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing signed by all parties. This Agreement supersedes 
any contract terms, purchase orders or other documents issued by the Client. If these Terms and Conditions have been provided to you, CEC must receive this fully 
executed document or written authorization to commence services. The provisions of this Agreement are severable; if any provision is unenforceable, it shall be 
appropriately limited and given effect to the extent that it is enforceable. Headings in these Terms and Conditions are for convenience only and do not form a part of the 
agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to third parties. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 79312DEA-B0E5-4479-AFD8-165A35121B3A



7.c.iv.

















7.c.v.





















7.c.vi.







7.c.vii.

















7.c.viii.































7.c.ix.





















7.c.x.

























Agenda Item ___ 
October 3, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take possible action on Task Order No. 4 to the Master Services Agreement with 
Parkhill, Smith and Cooper for Airport Consulting Services 
 
Attachments: 
Task Order No. 4 to the Parkhill, Smith, and Cooper Master Services Agreement 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The next phase in airport improvements involves construction of new taxilanes to facilitate future 
hangar development.  The City Council approved a Master Services Agreement with Parkhill, 
Smith and Cooper (Parkhill) in November of 2022 for airport consulting services.  As part of that 
agreement, Task Order No. 1 was authorized to move forward with a Hangar Development Plan 
for the airport.  While the focus of this plan was on hangar development, it really was an update 
of the overall plan for the airport.  The current taxilane project has evolved from that plan.  The 
project consists of two new taxilanes to improve access to additional development areas north 
and east of the terminal building and help ensure successful future development of the airport 
property.  Task Order No. 2 was authorized in February, 2024 for the design services and grant 
administration for the taxilane project and Task Order No. 3 was authorized in August, 2024 for 
construction phase services for the taxilane project.  A pre-construction meeting was held on 
October 2, 2024 and the start date for that project will be October 7, 2024.  The project should 
wrap up in first quarter 2025. 
 
In December, 2024, Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics (ODAA) Director 
Grayson Ardies reached out to Oklahoma airports to inform them that the ODAA planned to 
continue their hangar development program with a substantial increase in available funding 
approved by the State legislature.  The ODAA Hangar Grant Program provides a 40% share with 
no maximum cost share.  Local share could come from FAA non-primary entitlement (NPE) 
funding, FAA AIG funding, city funding, airport revenues, traditional loan or bonding source, or 
any other federal or state grant funding.  This is an improvement over the 30% share that used to 
be standard for hangar grants.  Around this same time the Bartlesville Development Authority 
(BDA) had shown interest in being involved with a hangar project at the Bartlesville Municipal 
Airport for economic development opportunities as they also looked to make infrastructure 
improvements to the Sunset Industrial Park property located adjacent to the airport.  City staff 
reached out to the BDA and set up a meeting with them and the ODAA to discuss a future hangar 
project. At that meeting in December, 2022, all parties agreed that the ODAA would be in favor 
of participating in a hangar project at the airport and that the BDA would provide the local share 
of the cost. The City sent a pre-application form to ODAA in January 2023 and in February, 
2023, the City received verbal confirmation that a hangar project for Bartlesville had been 

7.c.xi.



selected by the ODAA, realizing that the final scope and cost was yet to be determined, but basing 
this off of a $4.2MM project estimate. 
 
Some preliminary work has been done to get an idea of what size hangar is desirable for the City, 
the BDA, and the ODAA and to fine tune high level cost estimates.  All parties have agreed that 
a 120’x130’ box hangar with a 30’ lean-to is the goal.  This would facilitate attraction of a 
maintenance and repair business at the airport and would be large enough to handle desired 
aircraft.  The current estimate, without a detailed design, is around $4,245,675.  Task Order No. 
4 will cover the design, bidding, and fire risk assessment for the project.  They have proposed 
$199,900.00 for the work. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Everything in Task Order No. 4 is 40% reimbursable the ODAA grant.  The remaining 60% will 
be funded by the BDA.  There is no impact to the City of Bartlesville capital or operating budgets. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of Task Order No. 4 to the Parkhill Master Services Agreement. 



 

 

October 7, 2024 
Mr. Dale Copeland  
City of Bartlesville 
401 South Johnstone Ave 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003 
 
Re:  Task Order 04 to the MASTER AGREEMENT for Professional Services 

ODAA BVO-24-S, Construct Box Hangar 
Bartlesville Municipal Airport 

 
Dear Mr. Copeland:  
 
As requested, we prepared a Task Order 04 to include Final Design, Bidding Phase, NFPA 409 Fire Risk 
Assessment, and ODAA Grant Administration related to the referenced Project. Parkhill understands the Project 
scope to include: 
 

1. Parkhill to provide Engineering Design Services for the construction of 120’ by 130’ box hangar with a 
30’ lean-to including: 

a. Commence Predesign Meeting involving Parkhill and Owner. This meeting will discuss scope, 
Owner objectives, schedule, budget, and other pertinent information. 

b. Perform design and prepare a plan set with the following anticipated sheets: 
i. Coversheet 
ii. Bid Items and Notes 
iii. Construction Safety Plan and Details 
iv. Erosion Control and Details 
v. Typical Section 
vi. Site and Grading Plan 
vii. Architectural Floor Plan 
viii. Architectural Elevation & Roof Plan 
ix. Architectural Sections 
x. Joint Layout Plan 
xi. Misc. Details 

c. Prepare Technical Specifications per FAA AC 150/5370-10H, ODOT Specifications or other 
industry standards. 

d. Prepare opinion of cost (OPC) to reflect final design. 
e. Perform QC on Project deliverables. 
f. Prepare and submit FAA Form 7460 for airspace review. 
g. Host a final review meeting with Owner. 

 
2. Parkhill to provide Bidding Phase Services as further detailed in Exhibit A. 

 
3. In partnership with a qualified subconsultant, Parkhill Complete a NFPA 409 Fire Risk Assessment as 

further detailed in Appendix 1 to Exhibit A. 
 

4. Parkhill to provide Oklahoma Department of Aeronautics and Aerospace (ODAA) Grant Administration 
Services as further detailed in Exhibit A.  These services will be specifically for the grant that funds the 
hangar (anticipated to be 40% ODAA/ 60% Airport Sponsor), with the expectation that the apron paving 
immediately adjacent to the hangar will be funded by a second ODAA grant (anticipated to be 95% 
ODAA/ 5% Airport Sponsor).  Parkhill will contract the grant administration for the second ODAA grant 
under a future task order. 

 



City of Bartlesville Page 2 October 7, 2024 
 
 

  

 

 

 

Fee for Proposed Professional services is further defined in Exhibit B attached, summarized as follows: 
 
Task 3FDS Lump Sum Fee for Final Design Services    $ 160,000.00 
Task 4BID  Lump Sum Fee for Bidding Phase Services   $   10,400.00 
Task 8SSD Lump Sum Fee for NFPA 409 (2022) Fire Risk Assessment  $   17,500.00 
Task 12OG Lump Sum Fee for ODAA Grant Administration (Hangar)  $   12,000.00 
TOTAL Professional Services       $ 199,900.00 
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS  
Assumptions related to Parkhill contract include:  

▪ Geotechnical Field Investigation Report will be provided by the City of Bartlesville.   
 
EXCLUSIONS  
Exclusions to Parkhill contract include but are not limited to:  

▪ Design of the fire suppression system is excluded. Upon completion of the NFPA 409 fire suppression 
analysis, any fire suppression design requirements will be contracted by a separate task order. 

 
We propose to modify the Master Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Parkhill dated November 7, 
2022 and provide approved services under provisions of Exhibit B – Payments to the Engineer, Paragraph 
B4.01 (Lump Sum Method) attached. Any necessary additional services will be provided in accordance to 
Exhibit B – Payments to the Engineer, Paragraph B4.02. Compensation for services shall not exceed the total 
noted without Owner’s written approval. 
 
If terms of this Task Order are agreeable, please execute and return one copy to our office. We will take receipt 
of this signed letter as our Notice to Proceed. We look forward to working with you in completing this Project. 
For anything further, please contact Toby Baker directly at tbaker@parkhill.com or 405.832.9903. 

 
Sincerely,      Accepted by: 
 
PARKHILL CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
 

 
By        By       
  Toby Baker, PE      Dale Copeland  Date 
 Oklahoma Aviation Lead │Principal   Mayor  
    
TB/bc 
Enclosures 
  

mailto:tbaker@parkhill.com


 

Page 1 of 2 
Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 

EXHIBIT A 
ENGINEER’S SERVICES 

Article 1 of the Master Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following sample agreement 
of the parties. ENGINEER shall provide Basic and authorized Additional Services as set forth in Exhibit A of 
each Task Order to the Master Agreement. 

PART 1 -- BASIC SERVICES 

A 1.01 Study and Report Phase (Not Used) 

A 1.02 Preliminary Design Phase (Not Used) 

A 1.03 Final Design Phase (Tasks 3FDS and 8SSD) 

A. After acceptance by OWNER of Preliminary Design Phase documents and revised opinion of 
probable Construction Cost as determined in Preliminary Design Phase, but subject to any OWNER-directed 
modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of or for Project, and upon 
written authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER shall: 

1. Based on noted acceptance, direction, and authorization, prepare final Drawings and 
Specifications indicating scope, extent, and character of Work to be performed and furnished by 
Contractor. Specifications will be prepared, where appropriate, in general conformance with most recent 
Industry-standard format of Construction Specifications Institute or in general conformance with standard 
specifications provided by funding agency. 

2. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for OWNER use in filing 
applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or 
approve final design of Project and assist OWNER in consultations with appropriate authorities. 

3. Advise OWNER of any adjustments to opinion of probable Construction Cost. 

4. Prepare and furnish five sets of Bidding Documents and a revised opinion of probable 
Construction Cost for review and approval by OWNER, its legal counsel and other advisors as appropriate, 
and assist OWNER in preparation of other related documents. 

B. Number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by ENGINEER upon which ENGINEER 
compensation has been established under this Master Agreement is one. 

C. ENGINEER services under Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when final 
Bidding Documents are delivered to OWNER. 

A 1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase (Task 4BID) 

A. After acceptance by OWNER of Bidding Documents and most recent opinion of probable 
Construction Cost as determined in Final Design Phase, and upon written authorization by OWNER to 
proceed, ENGINEER shall: 

1. Furnish number of copies of Bidding Documents as required by prospective bidders and 
furnishers of material and equipment. All sets of Bidding Documents are to be paid for separately under 
Exhibit B as an Additional Service. 

2. Assist OWNER in advertising for and obtaining bids or negotiating proposals for Work and, where 
applicable, maintain a record of prospective bidders to whom Bidding Documents are issued, attend prebid 



 

Page 2 of 2 
Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 

conferences, if any, and receive and process Contractor deposits or charges for Bidding Documents. 

3. Prepare and issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change Bidding Documents. 

4. Consult with OWNER as to qualifications of subcontractors, suppliers, and other individuals and 
entities proposed by Contractor for those portions of Work as to which such acceptability is required by 
Bidding Documents. 

5. Attend bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets, and assist OWNER in evaluating bids or 
proposals and in assembling and awarding contracts for Work. 

B. Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement of Construction 
Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective Contractors. 

A 1.05 Construction Phase (Not Used) 

A 1.06 Grant Administration Phase (Task 12OG) 

A. Upon identification of all grant-eligible project costs, and upon written authorization from OWNER, 
ENGINEER shall: 

1. ODAA Grant Administration. Prepare the following, in support of the grant from the Oklahoma 
Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics: 

a. ODAA Grant Application 
b. Monthly ODAA Partial Pay Request Form (reimbursement) 
c. Construction Management Program per ODAA requirements 
d. ODAA Closeout Documentation, as required by the ODAA Grant Agreement 

 

PART 2 -- ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

A 2.01 Additional Services Requiring OWNER's Authorization in Advance (Not Used) 

 



 

Proposal for Fire Protection Engineering Services 

Parkhill 

New Box Hangar Bartlesville OK 

 

www.ratedengineering.com  

July 23, 2024 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

Proposal Submitted to: Proposal Submitted by: 

Tessa Hazlett  

Parkhill 

14101 Wireless Way, Suite 350 

Oklahoma City, OK 73134 

Dominique Noel 

Rated Engineering PLLC 

609 S. Kelly Ave., Suite H2 

Edmond, OK 73003 

 

 

Project Summary 

Client: Parkhill Client Project Number: Unknown 

Project Name: New Box Hangar Owner: Bartlesville Municipal Airport 

Jurisdiction: City of Bartlesville Project Location: Bartlesville OK 

New ☒   Existing ☐    Addition ☐    Renovation ☐ IBC Construction Type: II-B 

Number of Stories: 1 Area of all Stories (approx.): - 23,640 sq.ft. 

Study Only ☒      Design Only ☐       Design and Construction ☐       Construction Only ☐      Other ☐ 

Brief Description of Project Scope: Bartlesville Municipal Airport is constructing a new hangar to 

accommodate aircraft repair operations. Bartlesville Municipal Airport retained Parkhil to serve as the 

design lead. Parkhill has requested Rated Engineering perform a fire risk assessment to evaluate 

feasibility and risk tolerance of omission of foam fire suppression systems from the aircraft servicing 

area.   

 

Proposed Scope 

NFPA 409 (2022) Fire Risk Assessment 

1. Prepare a fire risk assessment in accordance with NFPA 409 (2022) to study whether omission of foam 

fire suppression is feasible for the New Box Hangar. Acceptance of the fire risk assessment is 

contingent upon participation and acceptance of identified risks by all stakeholders including the fire 

code official(s), owner representatives, insurance providers, and facility owner/operators. This proposal 

does not guarantee any particular outcome of the fire risk assessment. The Client and Owner must be 

active participants and facilitate communication between Rated Engineering and all project 

stakeholders. This includes two site visits to meet with on-site stakeholders, perform a hydrant flow 

test, if deemed necessary by Rated Engineering and to present fire risk assessment results.  

 

 

Clarifications 

General 

a. Deliverables will be provided electronically.  

b. Deliverables will be prepared using inch-pound units.  

c. Client will provide information on building systems and elements as required for Rated Engineering to 

complete their engineering analysis described above.  

d. Owner will provide information on operational considerations necessary to evaluate acceptable fire 

for Rated Engineering to complete their engineering analysis.  

e. The Fire Protection Engineering discipline includes fire suppression systems, fire alarm and detection 

systems, building and site fire and life safety code compliance, fire-rated construction, means of 

Appendix 1 to Exhibit A

http://www.ratedengineering.com/


 

Proposal for Fire Protection Engineering Services 

Parkhill 

New Box Hangar Bartlesville OK 

 

www.ratedengineering.com  

July 23, 2024 

Page 2 of 6 
 

egress, portable fire extinguishers, firestop, fire/smoke dampers, exit signs, means of egress 

illumination, and other related systems. The client has requested that Rated Engineering only provide 

engineering services as indicated in the proposed scope above.  

 

Site Visits 

f. Where hydrant flow testing is included, dechlorination is excluded. This assumes the water utility 

supplying the hydrants is compliant with all applicable environmental regulations.  

g. Each site visit includes the following expense:  

a. Roundtrip time and vehicle mileage  

b. Site visit report  

c. One meal  

 

Exclusions 

h. Construction site fire safety services are excluded.  

i. Fire suppression water quality testing is excluded.  

j. Design services are excluded.  

k. Drawing development is excluded.  

l. Specification development is excluded.  

m. Calculation development is excluded.  

n. Emergency responder radio communications services are excluded.  

o. Printing and shipping costs are excluded.  

p. Preparation of equivalencies and alternative design methods are excluded. 

q. Expert witness, subrogation, and related legal services are excluded.  

 

 

Fee Summary 

The lump sum fee for the proposed scope of work is: $15,197.00 

 

Refer to the attached estimate for additional detail.  

 

 

Terms and Conditions 

All sales of engineering services (collectively referred to herein as “Engineering Services”) by Rated Engineering PLLC 

(RATED) are subject to the following terms and conditions. All proposals, quotations or acknowledgments issued by 

RATED are an offer to sell Engineering Services pursuant to these terms and conditions. RATED objects to any 

additional or different terms contained in any documentation submitted by Client. No waiver or modification of these 

terms and conditions shall be binding on RATED unless authorized in writing by RATED. 

 

SCOPE. The scope of work for the Engineering Services to be provided to Client is specifically set forth in the proposal, quote, 

or acknowledgment submitted to Client by RATED. If Client requests a change in the scope of the Engineering Services to be 

provided, RATED reserves the right to revise delivery schedules and make an equitable adjustment to the price. Client 

acknowledges and agrees that RATED is providing the Engineering Services only and is not providing or participating in the 

provision of any product(s) unless explicitly stated. RATED will not be obligated to provide any services which are (a) outside 

http://www.ratedengineering.com/


 

Proposal for Fire Protection Engineering Services 

Parkhill 

New Box Hangar Bartlesville OK 

 

www.ratedengineering.com  

July 23, 2024 

Page 3 of 6 
 

of the scope defined in the applicable documentation; (b) outside its area of expertise; or (c) in violation of any applicable laws, 

codes or regulations. 

 

TIME AND MATERIALS. Charges for Engineering Services that are conducted on a Time and Materials basis will be at a rate 

indicated in the purchase order and will additionally include any related reimbursable expenses. The labor hours required to 

perform the Engineering Services will be recorded on a time sheet by the individual performing the services. Labor hours will 

be recorded to the nearest quarter hour. Actual hours worked will be recorded for Engineering Services performed in RATED’s 

or Client’s offices. On international projects, the labor hours spent in obtaining visas, medical certifications, inoculations, etc. 

will be also be recorded. Travel time will be recorded home-to-destination, home being RATED office address. 

 

CLIENT OBLIGATIONS. Client shall make available in a timely manner at no charge to RATED all drawings, technical data, 

measurements, or other information and resources reasonably required by RATED for the performance of the Engineering 

Services. Client will be responsible for, and assumes the risk of any problems resulting from, the content, accuracy, 

completeness and consistency of all such data, materials and information supplied by Client. 

 

PAYMENT TERMS. Client shall be responsible for timely payment of invoices, regardless of any agreement that Client may 

make regarding cost sharing with other parties. Invoices will normally be submitted every four weeks, in U.S. Dollar amounts, 

for charges accrued during the previous four weeks. Standard payment terms are net 30 days for creditworthy Clients. Payment 

must be made in U.S. Dollars by check or order drawn on a U.S. bank. Any bank charges made to process an instrument will 

be considered a reimbursable expense. RATED reserves the right to stop work on projects where payment is past due. 

 

INSURANCE. RATED agrees to maintain the insurance coverage as indicated in the attached certificate of insurance for the 

duration of this agreement.  

 

REMEDY FOR BREACH OF THE LIMITED WARRANTY. The parties acknowledge and agree that the Engineering Services are 

being provided by RATED with the expectation that RATED is not assuming any financial or operational risks of the Client. In 

the event RATED commits an error with respect to, or incorrectly performs the Engineering Services, RATED shall use 

commercially reasonable efforts to correct such error, or re-perform such Engineering Services at no cost to Client. Client 

acknowledges that its sole and exclusive remedy, and RATED’s sole and exclusive liability, for any defect or error in the 

Engineering Services shall be correction, re-performance or substitution of such services by RATED. 

 

INDEMNITY. Client and RATED mutually agree, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold each other 

harmless from any and all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, relating to third 

party personal injury or third party property damage and arising from their own negligent acts, errors or omissions in the 

performance of their services under this Agreement, but only to the extent that each party is responsible for such damages, 

liabilities or costs on a comparative basis of fault. 

 

LIMITATION ON DAMAGES 

1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither party’s individual 

employees, principals, officers or directors shall be subject to personal liability or damages arising out of or connected in any 

way to the Project(s) or to this Agreement.  

2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither RATED nor Client, 

their respective officers, directors, partners, employees, contractors or sub-consultants shall be liable to the other or shall make 

any claim for any delay damages, any punitive damages or any incidental, indirect or consequential damages arising out of or 

http://www.ratedengineering.com/


 

Proposal for Fire Protection Engineering Services 

Parkhill 

New Box Hangar Bartlesville OK 

 

www.ratedengineering.com  

July 23, 2024 

Page 4 of 6 
 

connected in any way to the Project(s) or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of delay damages and consequential damages 

shall include, but is not limited to, disruptions, accelerations, inefficiencies, increased construction costs, increased home office 

overhead, loss of use, loss of profit, loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation or any other delay or consequential 

damages that either party may have incurred from any cause of action including, but not limited to, negligence, statutory 

violations, misrepresentation, fraud, deceptive trade practices, breach of fiduciary duties, strict liability, breach of contract 

and/or breach of strict or implied warranty. Both RATED and Client shall require similar waivers of consequential damages 

protecting all the entities or persons named herein in all contracts and subcontracts with others involved in the Project(s).  

3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, RATED agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Client’s 

total liability to RATED for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claims expenses of any kind arising from 

any services provided by or through Client under this Agreement, shall not exceed the amount of Client’s fee earned under 

this Agreement. This limitation of liability shall apply to all phases of Client’s services performed in connection with the 

Project(s), whether subsequent to or prior to the execution of this Agreement. 

4 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, RATED’s 

total liability to Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claims expenses of any kind arising from 

any services provided by or through RATED under this Agreement, shall not exceed the amount of RATED’s fee earned under 

this Agreement. This limitation of liability shall apply to all phases of RATED’s services performed in connection with the 

Project(s), whether subsequent to or prior to the execution of this Agreement. 

 

REVIEW OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHERS. Where RATED’s services include review of documents prepared by others, 

Client acknowledges that RATED does not assume liability for all contents of said documents. The primary purpose of RATED’s 

review is to confirm design intent. Client acknowledges that said documentation prepared by others may not accurately 

represent all required coordination, obstructions, offsets, details, manufacturer criteria, and similar elements and agrees to not 

hold RATED liable for related errors or omissions.  

 

CANCELLATION, SUSPENSION OR DELAY. This agreement has no automatic termination date. Client may cancel an order 

for Engineering Services upon written notice to RATED and payment of an agreed upon cancellation charge, which shall include 

all costs incurred by RATED prior to the cancellation plus a reasonable profit. A purchase order may be suspended or delayed 

by Client with RATED’s prior written consent. If RATED agrees to suspension or delay, Client shall reimburse RATED for all costs 

incurred up to the date of such suspension or delay, plus a reasonable profit. All other costs related to and risks incidental to 

resumption of the Services shall be borne by Client. RATED may cancel any purchase order by providing 30 days written notice 

to client. If RATED cancels a purchase order, Client shall reimburse RATED for services performed up to and including the 

effective cancellation date.  

 

DELIVERY/FORCE MAJUERE. RATED shall have no liability for delays or any other breach of its obligations resulting from a 

war, riot, explosion, epidemic, accident, act of government, work stoppage, default of subcontractor or supplier of materials, 

or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of RATED. 

 

DOCUMENTATION. Except as otherwise specifically set forth in the scope of work provided as part of the proposal or 

quotation, all documents, including drawings, specifications, computer files, electronic media, data, engineering calculations, 

notes, and other documents and instruments (collectively the “Documentation”) prepared or furnished by RATED are the 

property of RATED and shall not be considered works for hire. RATED shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved 

rights, including copyright, applicable to the Documentation. The Documentation is not intended or represented to be suitable 

for use on any other project. Any reuse of the Documentation without written verification or adaptation by RATED for the 

specific purpose intended is prohibited and will be at Client’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to RATED. Client 

http://www.ratedengineering.com/


 

Proposal for Fire Protection Engineering Services 

Parkhill 

New Box Hangar Bartlesville OK 

 

www.ratedengineering.com  

July 23, 2024 

Page 5 of 6 
 

agrees to defend, indemnify and hold RATED harmless against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees) arising from or in any way connected with the unauthorized use or modification of the Documentation by 

Client or any person or entity that acquires or obtains the Documentation from or through Client without the written 

authorization of RATED. 

 

HARDWARE. Except as otherwise specifically set forth in the scope of work provided as part of the proposal or quotation, any 

tools, instrumentation, or other hardware (collectively the “Hardware”) that is purchased for the purpose of conducting the 

Engineering Services are the property of RATED.  

 

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS. Each party shall retain ownership of all intellectual property it had prior to 

commencement of the Engineering Services. Except as otherwise set forth on the scope of work, Client shall own the rights to 

all discoveries, improvements, and inventions conceived of or made by RATED that are a direct result of the Engineering 

Services performed for Client. At Client’s request and expense, RATED shall execute all papers and deliver to Client all data and 

other information, and perform other acts as Client may require, to assign and transfer all RATED’s right, title and interest 

therein to Client and to enable Client to apply for, obtain, and enforce patent protection thereon. Time and expenses incurred 

by RATED in connection therewith shall be paid by Client. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. The parties agree to comply with all applicable federal, state, or local laws in connection with 

the Engineering Services being provided pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

GOVERNING LAW. The relationship between Client and RATED shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oklahoma. 

 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION. All claims or disputes of any kind arising out of the relationship between Client and RATED shall be 

submitted to mediation prior to filing suit. Any action filed between the parties shall be filed in the state or federal courts in 

and for Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees. 

 

ASSIGNMENT. Client may not assign the Agreement between RATED and Client without the prior written consent of RATED. 

 

THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause 

of action in favor of a third party against RATED. RATED’s Engineering Services are being performed solely for Client’s 

benefit, and no party or entity shall have any claim against RATED because of this Agreement or the performance or 

nonperformance of the Engineering Services. 

 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. Each party will be and act as an independent contractor and not as an agent or partner of, 

or joint venture with, the other party for any purpose related to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this 

Agreement, and neither party by virtue of this Agreement will have any right, power, or authority to act or create any 

obligation, expressed or implied, on behalf of the other party. 

 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between Client and RATED and 

supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended 

only by written instrument signed by both Client and RATED.  

 

 

http://www.ratedengineering.com/


 

Proposal for Fire Protection Engineering Services 

Parkhill 

New Box Hangar Bartlesville OK 

 

www.ratedengineering.com  

July 23, 2024 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Proposal Submitted by:  Proposal Accepted by: 

  

Signature 

 

July 23, 2024 Date  

Dominique Noel, PE Printed Name  

Principal  Title  

Rated Engineering, PLLC Company  

 

http://www.ratedengineering.com/


Estimate

Date 07-23-2024
Project 24-073 - New Box Hangar Bartlesville OK

Client
Parkhill
14101 Wireless Way, Suite 350
Oklahoma City, OK 73134
Attn: Tessa Hazlett

Project Totals
Task Estimate Previous Grand Total

1 - NFPA 409 Fire Risk Assessment $14,755.00 $0.00 $14,755.00

Labor Subtotal $14,755.00 $0.00 $14,755.00

Direct Expenses $442.00 $0.00 $442.00

Total $15,197.00 $0.00 $15,197.00

Labor Total $14,755.00

Direct Expenses Total $442.00

Total Estimate $15,197.00

Previous Contract Amount $0.00

Grand Total Budget $15,197.00

Rated Engineering PLLC | 609 S. Kelly Ave. Suite H2 Edmond, OK 73003
1 of 1



 

Page 1  
Exhibit B – Payments to Engineer 

EXHIBIT B 
PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER 

LUMP SUM METHOD 

Article 4 of the Master Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the sample agreement of the 
parties stating Engineer shall provide Basic and authorized Additional services as set forth in Exhibit B of 
each Task Order to the Master Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 -- PAYMENTS TO THE ENGINEER 

B 4.01 Compensation for Basic Services - Lump Sum Method of Payment 

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A-Part 1, as follows: 

1. A Lump Sum amount of $ 199,900.00  based on the following distribution of compensation: 
a. Study and Report Phase $  
b. Preliminary Design Phase $  
c. Final Design Phase $ 177,500 
d. Bidding and Negotiating Phase $ 10,400 
e. Construction Phase $  
f. Grant Administration Phase $ 12,000 

2. The Lump Sum includes compensation for ENGINEER’s services and services of ENGINEER’s 
Consultants, if any. Appropriate amounts have been incorporated in the Lump Sum to account for labor, 
overhead, profit, and Direct Expenses. 

3. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for ENGINEER’s services will be based upon 
ENGINEER’s estimate of the proportion of the total services actually completed during the billing period to 
the Lump Sum. 

4. The Lump Sum is conditioned on Construction Contract Times to complete the Work not 
exceeding ___*_____ months. Should the Construction Contract Times to complete the Work be extended 
beyond this period, the total compensation to ENGINEER shall be appropriately adjusted. 

*To be negotiated if required. 

B 4.02 Compensation for Authorized Additional Services --Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for authorized Additional Services set forth in Exhibit A - Part 2 as 
follows: 

1. For labor on an hourly rate basis in accordance with Appendix 1. 
2. For reimbursable expenses, based on cost times a factor of 1.15. 

B. The hourly rate schedule will be adjusted each January 1st to reflect cost of living adjustments. 



Client: Project:

Agreement Date: Location:

CLASSIFICATION

HOURLY

RATE CLASSIFICATION

HOURLY

RATE CLASSIFICATION

HOURLY

RATE

$64.00
Architect $159.00 Architect $262.00

$75.00 Civil Engineer $195.00 Civil Engineer $295.00
Electrical Engineer $190.00 Electrical Engineer $307.00

$103.00 Interior Designer $142.00 Interior Designer $226.00
Landscape Architect $153.00 Landscape Architect $244.00

$110.00 Mechanical Engineer $181.00 Mechanical Engineer $294.00

Structural Engineer $188.00 Structural Engineer $282.00

$122.00 Survey Tech $146.00 Professional Land Surveyor $228.00
Other Professional $140.00 Other Professional $222.00

$132.00

Architect $194.00 Architect $336.00
Architect $129.00 Civil Engineer $227.00 Civil Engineer $352.00

Civil Engineer $141.00 Electrical Engineer $223.00 Electrical Engineer $352.00
Electrical Engineer $144.00 Interior Designer $155.00 Interior Designer $253.00
Interior Designer $123.00 Landscape Architect $166.00 Landscape Architect $336.00
Landscape Architect $123.00 Mechanical Engineer $213.00 Mechanical Engineer $336.00
Mechanical Engineer $135.00 Structural Engineer $217.00 Structural Engineer $352.00

Structural Engineer $135.00 Survey Tech $177.00 Professional Land Surveyor $274.00

Survey Tech $115.00 Other Professional $165.00 Other Professional $336.00
Other Professional $121.00

Architect $236.00

Architect $140.00 Civil Engineer $274.00
Civil Engineer $158.00 Electrical Engineer $272.00

Electrical Engineer $163.00 Interior Designer $187.00
Interior Designer $129.00 Landscape Architect $202.00
Landscape Architect $129.00 Mechanical Engineer $259.00

Mechanical Engineer $155.00 Structural Engineer $262.00
Structural Engineer $153.00 Professional Land Surveyor $206.00
Survey Tech $125.00 Other Professional $184.00

Other Professional $127.00

SUPPORT STAFF V

PROFESSIONAL LEVEL II

PROFESSIONAL LEVEL V

SUPPORT STAFF VI

PROFESSIONAL LEVEL I

PROFESSIONAL LEVEL IV PROFESSIONAL LEVEL VII

Parkhill
Hourly Rate Schedule

January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024

SUPPORT STAFF I PROFESSIONAL LEVEL III PROFESSIONAL LEVEL VI

SUPPORT STAFF II

SUPPORT STAFF III

SUPPORT STAFF IV

Oklahoma Department of
Aerospace and Aeronautics Construct Box Hangar

Bartlesville Municipal Airport

City of Bartlesville

October 7, 2024

Appendix 1 to Exhibit B



 

 

Agenda Item _____ 
October 3, 2024 

Prepared by Greg Collins 
Special Projects Manager 

Community Development Department 
 

 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of a donation of 0.14 acres +/- of land described as Lot 6, Less the East 45 feet, of Block 19, Capitol 
Hill Addition to the City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma, from Weare-West Family Trust, 
Arvest Bank, Trustee, addressed as 216 SE Wyandotte Ave. 
 
Exhibits / Attachments:   
1) Location Map   3)  Zoning Map 
2) Photos     4)  Deed 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The Weare-West Family Trust owns 216 SE Wyandotte Ave., legally described as Lot 6, Less the East 
45 feet, of Block 19, Capitol Hill Addition to the City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma.  
The property is a vacant lot located at the northeast corner of Wyandotte Ave. and SE 3rd St.  The 
property is zoned General Commercial C-5. Based on City GIS mapping, the lot is approximately 66 
feet wide and 89 feet in depth, from Wyandotte Ave, around 5,874 square feet more or less (subject to 
a survey of the property). 
 
The Trustee of the owner of the property, Arvest Bank, wishes to donate the property to the City. The 
property was the former site of a house that suffered extensive fire damage and was declared 
dilapidated and demolished by the City on October 21, 2022 pursuant to code enforcement case, DS-
0922-0104.  The lien for the cost of the demolition was paid by the owner, and the City has released 
that lien.  The donation of the property would include a waiver of any remaining City code enforcement 
liens on the property, if any remain. 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
City staff recommends acceptance of this donation of land and the waiver of any remaining City 
liens on the property, if any. 

  

7.d.i.



 

2 

Exhibit 1 – Location Map 
 

 
 
 
Exhibit 2:  Photos of 216 S. Wyandotte Ave. 
 

216 S. Wyandotte, View Looking East 

 
 

216 S. Wyandotte Ave, View looking Northwest 

 
 
 
 



 

3 

Exhibit 3:  Zoning Map 
 

 
 







Agenda Item ___ 
October 7, 2024 
Larry R. Curtis, 

 Community Development Director 
 

 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 
Discuss and take possible action to approve a Resolution amending the Budget for the 
City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 appropriating unanticipated 
revenue in the Restricted Revenue Fund of the Community Development Department to 
utilize grant funds from Phillips 66 for a tree planting program. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 

  
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 

In order to accept $15,000 in funding from Phillips 66 and to utilize said funding for a 
tree planting program as per an agreement with Up With Trees, a budget amendment must 
be approved.  The attached resolution authorizes a budget amendment to the Restricted 
Revenue Fund (243) of the Community Development Department (180). 
 
  

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
There is no impact to the current budget. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the budget resolution as presented.  
  

7.e.i.



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 
OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025, APPROPRIATING UNANTICIPATED 
GRANT REVENUE IN THE RESTRICTED REVENUE FUND OF THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT FOR THE USE OF GRANT FUNDS FROM 
PHILLIPS 66 FOR A TREE PLANTING PROGRAM. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville has received unbudgeted grant funding in the amount of 
$15,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $15,000 of these revenues prior to 
their expenditure; 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 
  
 The Restricted Revenue Fund (243) of the Community Development Department (180) 

shall be increased as follows: 
 

 Other Services (52510) $ 15,000 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 7th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2024. 
 
 
 
   
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
 City Clerk 

 
 
 



7.e.ii.





1 Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within schools. HR 10/23 100%

2
Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential vacation 
buyback program.

HR 10/23 100%

3 Implement a job swap program for employees. HR 10/23 100%
4 Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. HR 07/24 100%

5
Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for 
applicable employees.

HR 04/24 100%

1 Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation programs. Admin 10/23 100% Committee has met and is gathering data.

2
Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation process for 
general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this process for 
uniformed groups in the future.

HR 07/23 100%

3
Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine how we 
can integrate these systems into our operating departments.

IT 04/24 90%
Selected alternative solutions due to usability 
issues with 311 and EAM.

4
Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations to 
improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities.

CCO 10/24 75%

1
Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in utility bill. 

Admin 09/24 100%
Changed the date to match up with our fiscal 
year.  Original completion date was 4/24.

2
Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and requests for all 
City departments. Individual departments may also be surveyed individually as part 
of a larger survey plan.

Admin 04/24 80% Began Polco implementation

3
Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and the City as 
an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

HR 07/23 100%

4
Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as 
appropriate.

Admin 10/23 100%

5
Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow subscription base by 
10%.

CCO 04/24 100%

1 Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:
a Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. A&F 10/23 100%

BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2024

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, 

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

1 of 4

Agenda Item 7.f.i.



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2024

b
Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 5 years 
and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt multiyear rate plans. 

A&F 10/23 100%

c
Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council concurrently with the budget 
every year. 

A&F 10/23 100%

2
Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and expenditures for 
major operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in better planning for the 
future. 

A&F 07/25 35%
Will contact Crawford & Assoc.  If they are 
unable to provide service, then implementation 
may be delayed.

3
City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide current and 
future City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to schedule a Council 
workshop to discuss this item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan. 

Admin 04/24 100%

1

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, condition, 
and service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, 
wastewater, water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aid in planning 
improvement priority and capital needs.

Eng

a
Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and what data 
needs to be collected

Eng 10/23 100% Software selected and implementation began.

b Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. Eng

i Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water Eng 10/24 75%
Most data collected but storm drain may require 
comprehensive study.

ii Signs and signals Eng 10/25 75% Data collected but needs to be integrated.

1 Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). Eng
a Complete PCI update currently under contract. Eng 04/23 100%

b
Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, desired PCI in 
5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment requirements – 6 
months.

Eng 06/23 100%

1
Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing accepted 
best practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). 

Comm Dev

a Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant. Comm Dev 06/23 100%

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC VITALITY
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the character of our community.

2 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2024

b Present recommendations to the Council Comm Dev 10/24 50%
Joint meeting of Council and CPC schedule for 
10/17/24

2
Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate private 
development and land use following the updated comprehensive land use plan. 

Comm Dev 06/25 5%

1
Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as 
economic development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between economic 
development partners, developer, and City departments. 

Admin 06/23 100%

2
Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine how best 
to support their efforts and to define the expectations for all parties.

Admin 12/23 100%

3 Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners. Admin 100%

1 Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. Admin 09/23 100%

2
Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young 
professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 75% Meetings have started.

3
Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and restaurants 
that attract young professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 0%

4
Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and 
accomplishments 

Admin 01/24 100%

1 Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our community. Library 01/24 100%

a Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet.
b Partner/support this group for an annual event.

2 Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, venues, etc.) Library 01/25 0%
This goal will be updated in the next version of 
the NEXT plan

1
As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified in 
Economic Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and 
parks and recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public.

Comm Dev 10/24 50% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

2
Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans such as 
bicycle plan.

CD/S&T 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

a Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan CD/S&T 10/24 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation systems.

3 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2024

1
Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, including 
destruction or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.

PW/PD

a
Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks combined with 
motion and smoke detectors

Pub Works 04/24 100% 10 of 10 bathrooms installed

b Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems PD 04/24 100%

i
Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, arson, 
trespassing, etc.

PD 04/24 100%

2
Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts and to 
improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic clean up days, 
adopt a mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. 

CD/PW 07/23 100% KBB established.

a Staff to list and prioritize possible programs. CD/PW 01/24 95%
b Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). CD/PW 04/24 50%
c Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this program. CD/PW 10/24 50%

3 Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program PD 10/23 100%
4 Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App Comm Dev 04/24 100%
5 Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-way. Pub Works 07/23 100%

1 Child Care: Admin

a Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care shortage. Admin 04/24 100%
New task force established and meeting 
regularly.

b
Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new 
facilities.

Admin 95%
Proposed regulations will be presented to 
Council on 10/7/24

2 Housing: Comm Dev

a
Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local housing stock 
by price level.

Comm Dev 04/24 100%

3 Homelessness: PD

a
Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including “United 
Way” and “B the Light”.

Admin/CD 04/24 100%
Collaboration with "B the Light" will continue.  
Their construction currently delayed by ODEQ.

b
Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to better 
handle crimes committed by the homeless.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

c
Utilize the mental health team data from PD to better understand our homeless 
population, how many homeless are in Bartlesville, and why they are here.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others 

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

EMERGING ISSUES

4 of 4



Agenda Item ___ 
September 6, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Receipt of Interim Financials for the one month ending July 31, 2024. 

Attachments:
Interim Financials for July 30, 2024 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for July 2024; these should
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request.
All information is subject to change pending audit.

III. BUDGET IMPACT

N/A

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for July 30, 2024.

7.g.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Quinn Schipper
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Finance Supervisor

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The One Month Ended July 31, 2024

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

8.4%

8.6%

8.8%

9.0%

9.2%

9.4%

9.6%

 1,200,000
 1,250,000
 1,300,000
 1,350,000
 1,400,000
 1,450,000
 1,500,000
 1,550,000
 1,600,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

7.0%

7.5%

8.0%

8.5%

9.0%

9.5%

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

7.4%

7.6%

7.8%

8.0%

8.2%

8.4%

8.6%

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 14,869,148$  1,239,096$     1,577,572$     -$                   1,577,572$     10.6% 1,548,349$     8.6%
Use Tax 4,513,154       376,096          377,063          -                     377,063          8.4% 368,121          7.6%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,656,600       138,050          119,539          -                     119,539          7.2% 81,087            5.3%
Licenses and Permits 260,000          21,667            105,110          -                     105,110          40.4% 98,723            38.0%
Intergovernmental 629,000          52,417            54,491            -                     54,491            8.7% 57,824            7.9%
Charges for Services 539,900          44,992            52,483            -                     52,483            9.7% 75,709            13.2%
Court Costs 193,900          16,158            9,648               -                     9,648               5.0% 14,182            7.7%
Police/Traffic Fines 393,300          32,775            17,033            -                     17,033            4.3% 31,195            9.2%
Parking Fines 45,300            3,775               4,045               -                     4,045               8.9% 2,910               5.7%
Other Fines 66,000            5,500               4,216               -                     4,216               6.4% 5,494               8.7%
Investment Income 150,000          12,500            408,217          -                     408,217          272.1% 219,120          10.4%
Miscellaneous Income 844,700          70,392            20,073            -                     20,073            2.4% 33,820            3.0%
Transfers In 6,549,579       545,798          545,834          -                     545,834          8.3% 546,780          8.3%

Total 30,710,581$  2,559,216$    3,295,324$    -$                   3,295,324$    10.7% 3,083,314$    8.5%

Expenditures:
General Government 10,094,553$  841,213$        896,828$        147,847$      1,044,675$     10.3% 965,072$        10.7%
Public Safety 18,373,415     1,531,118       1,469,644       310,311        1,779,955       9.7% 1,630,955       9.6%
Street 2,180,609       181,717          182,574          (3,634)           178,940          8.2% 151,373          7.8%
Culture and Recreation 3,820,555       318,380          300,511          44,728          345,239          9.0% 318,546          8.9%
Transfers Out 4,787,466       398,956          398,994          -                     398,994          8.3% 349,142          8.3%
Reserves 1,225,200       102,100          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 40,481,798$  3,373,484$    3,248,551$    499,252$      3,747,803$    9.3% 3,415,088$    9.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 5,555,372$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 46,773            

Ending Fund Balance 5,602,145$    

8% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,742,581$     561,882$        568,642$      -$                   568,642$        8.4% 463,682$        7.6%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds 83,000,000     6,916,667       -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             2,500               3,071             -                      3,071               10.2% 243                  0.2%

Total 89,772,581$  7,481,049$    571,713$      -$                   571,713$        0.6% 463,925$        7.3%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 3,177,550$     264,796$        254,683$      2,767,819$  3,022,502$     95.1% 2,951,133$     99.9%
Wastewater Maint 993,617          82,801             69,088          (984)               68,104             6.9% 62,119             7.5%
BMA Expenses 1,500,000       125,000          -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Transfers Out 1,836,183       153,015          153,029        -                      153,029          8.3% 137,258          8.3%
Reserves 97,138             8,095               -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 7,604,488$    633,707$        476,801$      2,766,835$  3,243,636$    42.7% 3,150,510$    58.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,925,118$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 94,912          

Ending Fund Balance 3,020,030$  

8% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  924,262$        1,161,478$     -$                    1,161,478$     10.5% 852,593$        8.1%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       0.0%
Debt Proceeds 7,500,000       625,000          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       0.0%

Total 18,591,140$  1,549,262$    1,161,478$    -$                    1,161,478$    6.2% 852,593$        7.5%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 4,094,740$     341,228$        284,513$        34,631$         319,144$        7.8% 358,595$        9.7%
Water Administration 465,954          38,830            30,369            328                 30,697            6.6% 41,076            10.0%
Water Distribution 2,373,912       197,826          136,722          39,359            176,081          7.4% 138,787          7.2%
BMA Expenses 10,775,784     897,982          -                       306,009         306,009          2.8% -                       0.0%
Transfers Out 2,878,743       239,895          239,909          -                       239,909          8.3% 215,451          8.3%
Reserves 252,659          21,055            -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 20,841,792$  1,736,816$    691,513$        380,327$       1,071,840$    5.1% 753,909$        6.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,688,787$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 469,965          

Ending Fund Balance 8,158,752$    

8% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,626,914$     552,243$        562,993$          -$                   562,993$        8.5% 492,745$        8.0%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 56,334            45,669            4,487                 -                     4,487               8.0% 11,627            8.4%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,683,248$    597,912$        567,480$          -$                   567,480$        8.5% 504,372$        8.0%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,825,601$     318,800$        287,648$          306,281$      593,929$        15.5% 575,967$        16.3%
Transfers Out 2,684,272       223,689          223,704             -                     223,704          8.3% 220,820          8.3%
Reserves 140,718          11,727            -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,650,591$    554,216$        511,352$          306,281$     817,633$        12.3% 796,787$        12.9%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 261,319$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 56,128               

Ending Fund Balance 317,447$          

8% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,881,469     170,258       9%
E-911 Fund 1,366,836     124,631       9%
Special Library Fund 88,000          3,133            4%
Special Museum Fund -                     -                    N/A
Municipal Airport Fund -                     -                    N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     -                    N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund -                     4,960            N/A
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                     800               N/A
CDBG-COVID 485,000        -                    0%
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,400            53                 2%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     10,656          0%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,371,537     347,790       10%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     4,000            N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          47,880          100%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,155,714     118,026       10%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 71,179          5,938            8%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 95,013          7,926            8%
Municipal Airport Operating 526,200        52,963          10%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 132,951        17,752          13%
Health Insurance Fund 5,530,171     516,748       9%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          6,261            8%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,550,943     129,248       8%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 8,057,005     817,262       10%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

8% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,708,341     1,284,746    23%
E-911 Fund 1,487,474     96,579          6%
Special Library Fund 202,000        1,059            1%
Special Museum Fund 25,100           1,794            7%
Municipal Airport Fund 7,598             -                     0%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 375,860        4,766            1%
Restricted Revenue Fund 306,262        6,630            2%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 21,528           392               2%
CDBG-COVID 485,000        -                     0%
ARPA 500,000        41,674          8%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804           -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 62,723           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 15,009           -                     0%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     -                     0%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 9,388,897     934,136        10%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 87,205           -                     0%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 584,032        -                     0%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 227,358        -                     0%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,093           -                     0%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431        326,564        100%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 341,460        -                     0%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494        45,207          9%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 3,223,984     0                    0%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,337,154     -                     0%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,265,657     97,194          8%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 78,002           9,642            12%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 92,382           9,801            11%
Municipal Airport Operating 706,086        79,895          11%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        34,563          8%
Health Insurance Fund 5,531,208     623,914        11%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 446,559        -                     0%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 14,776,368   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 20,453,000   2,490,545    12%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,515             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

8% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,982,024                 (43,865)         3,938,159     
E-911 Fund 212,689                    32,798          245,487        
Special Library Fund 338,451                    (3,204)           335,247        
Special Museum Fund 163,780                    (1,794)           161,986        
Municipal Airport Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 435,622                    (151)              435,471        
Restricted Revenue Fund 259,665                    (1,670)           257,995        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 49,914                       (552)              49,362           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,732,952                 (41,674)         1,691,278     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804                       -                     14,804           
Neighborhood Park Fund 64,343                       -                     64,343           
Cemetery Care Fund 13,038                       53                  13,091           

Debt Service Fund 3,610,645                 10,656          3,621,301     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,360,355                 (73,983)         6,286,372     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 140,792                    4,000            144,792        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 397,676                    (3,911)           393,765        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 180,119                    47,880          227,999        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 59,177                       -                     59,177           
Community Development Block Grant Fund 211,387                    -                     211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885                         -                     3,885             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386                       -                     31,386           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    -                     327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 350,641                    -                     350,641        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    (207)              526,287        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 3,112,203                 (3,428)           3,108,775     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,564,913                 -                     6,564,913     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 136,622                    30,685          167,307        
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 40,167                       (3,859)           36,308           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 54,603                       (1,330)           53,273           
Municipal Airport Operating 431,254                    (211)              431,043        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 321,209                    5,409            326,618        
Health Insurance Fund 3,001                         (2,020)           981                
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 496,502                    6,261            502,763        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 13,225,425               129,248        13,354,673   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 21,349,355               620,364        21,969,719   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,709                         -                     8,709             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

8% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item ___ 
Sept 19, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the two months ending August 31, 2024.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for August 31, 2024 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for August 2024; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for August 31, 2024. 

7.g.ii.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Quinn Schipper
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Finance Supervisor

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Two Months Ended August 31, 2024

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

16.5%

17.0%

17.5%

18.0%

18.5%

19.0%

19.5%

 2,400,000
 2,500,000
 2,600,000
 2,700,000
 2,800,000
 2,900,000
 3,000,000
 3,100,000
 3,200,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

16.0%

16.5%

17.0%

17.5%

18.0%

18.5%

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

15.6%
15.8%
16.0%
16.2%
16.4%
16.6%
16.8%
17.0%
17.2%
17.4%

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 14,869,148$  2,478,191$     3,130,251$     -$                   3,130,251$     21.1% 3,111,509$     17.2%
Use Tax 4,513,154       752,192          785,851          -                     785,851          17.4% 735,818          15.3%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,656,600       276,100          218,703          -                     218,703          13.2% 184,704          12.0%
Licenses and Permits 260,000          43,333            139,356          -                     139,356          53.6% 136,866          52.6%
Intergovernmental 629,000          104,833          86,571            -                     86,571            13.8% 91,332            12.5%
Charges for Services 539,900          89,983            98,645            -                     98,645            18.3% 118,157          20.5%
Court Costs 193,900          32,317            21,638            -                     21,638            11.2% 29,647            16.0%
Police/Traffic Fines 393,300          65,550            41,120            -                     41,120            10.5% 59,560            17.6%
Parking Fines 45,300            7,550               8,215               -                     8,215               18.1% 6,460               12.6%
Other Fines 66,000            11,000            9,322               -                     9,322               14.1% 10,804            17.1%
Investment Income 150,000          25,000            852,268          -                     852,268          568.2% 438,611          20.7%
Miscellaneous Income 844,700          140,783          150,336          -                     150,336          17.8% 51,938            4.6%
Transfers In 6,549,579       1,091,597       1,091,629       -                     1,091,629       16.7% 1,093,548       16.7%

Total 30,710,581$  5,118,429$    6,633,905$    -$                   6,633,905$    21.6% 6,068,954$    16.6%

Expenditures:
General Government 10,094,553$  1,682,426$     1,461,561$     218,372$      1,679,933$     16.6% 1,575,301$     17.5%
Public Safety 18,373,415     3,062,236       2,906,058       331,970        3,238,028       17.6% 3,032,908       17.8%
Street 2,180,609       363,435          355,740          (35,415)         320,325          14.7% 285,071          14.7%
Culture and Recreation 3,820,555       636,759          624,635          30,110          654,745          17.1% 606,042          16.9%
Transfers Out 4,787,466       797,911          797,946          -                     797,946          16.7% 698,229          16.7%
Reserves 1,225,200       204,200          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 40,481,798$  6,746,967$    6,145,940$    545,037$      6,690,977$    16.5% 6,197,551$    17.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 5,555,372$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 487,965          

Ending Fund Balance 6,043,337$    

17% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,742,581$     1,123,764$     1,132,794$  -$                   1,132,794$     16.8% 1,014,358$     16.6%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds 83,000,000     13,833,333     -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             5,000               3,071             -                      3,071               10.2% 318                  0.2%

Total 89,772,581$  14,962,097$  1,135,865$  -$                   1,135,865$    1.3% 1,014,676$    15.9%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 3,177,550$     529,592$        525,350$      2,516,002$  3,041,352$     95.7% 2,928,478$     99.1%
Wastewater Maint 993,617          165,603          140,451        10,564          151,015          15.2% 141,318          17.0%
BMA Expenses 1,500,000       250,000          -                      -                      -                        0.0% 13,883             N.A.
Transfers Out 1,836,183       306,031          306,043        -                      306,043          16.7% 274,505          16.7%
Reserves 97,138             16,190             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 7,604,488$    1,267,416$    971,844$      2,526,566$  3,498,410$    46.0% 3,358,184$    61.8%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,925,118$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 164,021        

Ending Fund Balance 3,089,139$  

17% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  1,848,523$     2,298,276$     -$                    2,298,276$     20.7% 1,863,311$     17.7%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       0.0%
Debt Proceeds 7,500,000       1,250,000       -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. 293                  0.0%

Total 18,591,140$  3,098,523$    2,298,276$    -$                    2,298,276$    12.4% 1,863,604$    16.3%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 4,094,740$     682,457$        636,173$        54,918$         691,091$        16.9% 716,608$        19.4%
Water Administration 465,954          77,659            61,235            50,476            111,711          24.0% 67,437            16.4%
Water Distribution 2,373,912       395,652          300,284          14,866            315,150          13.3% 274,687          14.3%
BMA Expenses 10,775,784     1,795,964       181,188          306,009         487,197          4.5% 191,661          4.7%
Transfers Out 2,878,743       479,791          479,803          -                       479,803          16.7% 430,890          16.7%
Reserves 252,659          42,110            -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 20,841,792$  3,473,633$    1,658,683$    426,269$       2,084,952$    10.0% 1,681,284$    13.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,688,787$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 639,593          

Ending Fund Balance 8,328,380$    

17% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,626,914$     1,104,486$     1,129,621$       -$                   1,129,621$     17.0% 1,021,815$     16.5%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 56,334            45,669            6,375                 -                     6,375               11.3% 28,800            20.8%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,683,248$    1,150,155$    1,135,996$       -$                   1,135,996$    17.0% 1,050,615$    16.6%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,825,601$     637,600$        576,775$          210,610$      787,385$        20.6% 749,190$        21.2%
Transfers Out 2,684,272       447,379          447,392             -                     447,392          16.7% 441,630          16.7%
Reserves 140,718          23,453            -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,650,591$    1,108,432$    1,024,167$       210,610$     1,234,777$    18.6% 1,190,820$    19.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 261,319$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 111,829             

Ending Fund Balance 373,148$          

17% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,881,469     332,886       18%
E-911 Fund 1,366,836     248,056       18%
Special Library Fund 88,000          8,849            10%
Special Museum Fund -                     10,000          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund -                     154,087       N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     4,000            N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund -                     4,960            N/A
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                     800               N/A
CDBG-COVID 485,000        -                    0%
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,400            141               6%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     18,990          0%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,371,537     641,073       19%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     4,000            N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          47,880          100%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,155,714     231,838       20%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 71,179          11,869          17%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 95,013          15,843          17%
Municipal Airport Operating 526,200        103,883       20%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 132,951        28,831          22%
Health Insurance Fund 5,530,171     1,088,259    20%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          12,510          17%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,550,943     258,493       17%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 8,057,005     1,631,254    20%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

17% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,708,341     1,284,749    23%
E-911 Fund 1,487,474     191,515        13%
Special Library Fund 202,000        7,592            4%
Special Museum Fund 25,100           3,932            16%
Municipal Airport Fund 7,598             -                     0%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 375,860        14,433          4%
Restricted Revenue Fund 306,262        6,630            2%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 46,253           1,477            3%
CDBG-COVID 485,000        -                     0%
ARPA 500,000        83,340          17%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804           -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 62,723           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 15,009           -                     0%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     -                     0%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 9,388,897     1,090,444    12%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 87,205           -                     0%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 584,032        -                     0%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 227,358        -                     0%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,093           -                     0%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431        326,564        100%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 341,460        -                     0%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494        45,207          9%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 3,223,984     -                     0%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,337,154     53,855          1%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,265,657     196,006        15%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 78,002           32,308          41%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 92,382           34,339          37%
Municipal Airport Operating 706,086        142,664        20%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        42,537          10%
Health Insurance Fund 5,531,208     1,123,689    20%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 446,559        -                     0%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 14,776,368   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 20,453,000   2,529,544    12%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,515             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

17% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,982,024                 11,698          3,993,722     
E-911 Fund 212,689                    60,287          272,976        
Special Library Fund 338,451                    (2,094)           336,357        
Special Museum Fund 163,780                    6,068            169,848        
Municipal Airport Fund -                                 154,087        154,087        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 435,622                    3,827            439,449        
Restricted Revenue Fund 259,665                    (1,670)           257,995        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 49,914                       (1,637)           48,277           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,732,952                 (83,340)         1,649,612     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804                       -                     14,804           
Neighborhood Park Fund 64,343                       -                     64,343           
Cemetery Care Fund 13,038                       141               13,179           

Debt Service Fund 3,610,645                 18,990          3,629,635     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,360,355                 (121,192)      6,239,163     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 140,792                    4,000            144,792        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 397,676                    (9,037)           388,639        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 180,119                    47,880          227,999        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 59,177                       -                     59,177           
Community Development Block Grant Fund 211,387                    -                     211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885                         -                     3,885             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386                       -                     31,386           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    -                     327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 350,641                    -                     350,641        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    (207)              526,287        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 3,112,203                 (20,393)         3,091,810     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,564,913                 (34,503)         6,530,410     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 136,622                    73,140          209,762        
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 40,167                       (21,055)         19,112           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 54,603                       (18,112)         36,491           
Municipal Airport Operating 431,254                    (3,081)           428,173        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 321,209                    6,664            327,873        
Health Insurance Fund 3,001                         4,570            7,571             
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 496,502                    12,510          509,012        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 13,225,425               258,493        13,483,918   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 21,349,355               1,259,637    22,608,992   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,709                         -                     8,709             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

17% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item 7.h.i.



Agenda Item 7.h.ii.



Agenda Item 7.h.iii.



Agenda Item 7.h.iv.



Agenda Item #___ 
10/02/2024 

Prepared by Steve Roper 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-006R for the Tuxedo Bridge over Caney 
River. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Construction Plans 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project is a priority project included in the 2020 General Obligation Bonds (GO Bond).  The 
revised project consists of deck reconstruction of the westbound Tuxedo Bridge over the Caney 
River and bank stabilization improvements under both bridges over the Caney River.  Deck 
repairs to the eastbound bridge and all repairs to the overflow bridge to the east of the Caney 
River were omitted from the revised project to reduce project costs to near the project funding 
limits.  All items of work were included in the Base Bid with no Bid Alternates.  

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

The project was advertised in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and 
Southwest Construction News.  Four (4) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and 
two (2) contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Two (2) contractors submitted a 
bid.  The base bids were as follows: 

 

    Bright Lighting, Inc. (Tulsa, OK)     $2,750,000.00 

  Wildcat Construction Co., Inc. (Topeka, KS)    $1,513,685.75 

   

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  All bids 
had all of the necessary components and were mathematically correct.    

  

8.



C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

This project, originally funded through the 2020 GO Bond, currently has a construction budget 
of $1,310,000.00.  Design fees were offset by allocation of surplus funds.  The lowest compliant 
bid by Wildcat Construction Co, Inc of $1,513,685.75 exceeds the available budget by 
$203,685.75.  Project funding will be supplemented with excess funds from the completed 
Indiana asphalt overlay project. 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Wildcat Construction is a firm with a long history of bridge construction in Oklahoma and 
Kansas.  While they do not have experience with the City of Bartlesville, they have successfully 
completed similar projects for the Oklahoma Department of Transportation. Wildcat 
Construction has provided information confirming they have the bonding capacity and technical 
expertise to complete this project.  

Staff recommends awarding the base bid to Wildcat Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of 
$1,513,685.74.   

 
 
  
              
                        Council Member      Date 
 



30918

L

OR

N
IC

E
S

E
D

P

K AM
O

LA OH

R
E

ESF SIO
LAN

E
N

E
G
I

N

FOLKS

BRAD S.

L

AO

L
E

N
G
IN

O
K

AHOMA

SION

E
E

R

STEPHEN J.

NICHOLLS

22327

P
L

F
R

D
E

S
N

CI

ES

E

BRIDGE AND APPROACH REHABILITATION PLANS 

TUXEDO BRIDGE OVER CANEY RIVER
PLAN OF PROPOSED

BRIDGE "5" LOCATION 74E0180N39500N8

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE JOB NO. 2022061

LOCATION MAP

X

+2% -2%

PRES. R/W

R/W

PROPOSED ROAD

RANGE & TOWNSHIP

SECTION LINES

QUARTER SECTION LINES

FENCES

GROUND LINE

EXISTING ROADS

BASE LINE

GRADE LINES

TELEPHONE & TELEGRAPH

POWER LINES

BUILDINGS

DRAINAGE STRUCTURES - IN PLACE

DRAINAGE STRUCTURES - NEW

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES - EXISTING

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES - NEW

CONTROLLED ACCESS

RIGHT-OF-WAY FENCE

RAILROADS

 CONVENTIONAL SYMBOLS

OILWELL

PLAN

PROFILE HOR.

VER.

LAYOUT MAP

SCALES

1''

DESIGN DATA

STORM AND SANITARY

GAS LINESG

WATER LINESW

SS

NTS

  1'' = 20'

  1'' = 20'

THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION, DECEMBER 18, 2019.

2019 OKLAHOMA STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION-ENGLISH GOVERN, APPROVED BY 

B
A

R
T
L
E
S
 R

D

D
E

W
E

Y

HENSLEY BLVD

  1'' = 5'

LOCAL BRIDGE 9

PR-4-1

LTU-5-1

LECS-5-2

CSCD-6-2

TSD-0

ROADWAY (2019)

7'22"°55'24"  LONGITUDE W 95°4LATITUDE N 36

WASHINGTON COUNTY

SUBMITTED BY: 

                         (THIS SEAL COVERS SHEETS 0001,0002,AR01,AT01,R001-R004,T001-T007)
BRAD FOLKS, P.E. NO. 330918

THE FOLLOWING STANDARD DRAWINGS WILL BE NEEDED:

BEGIN PROJECT

CRL STA. 10+00.00

 INDEX OF SHEETS 

TRAFFIC CONTROL SHEETS

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS

CONCRETE REPAIR AND GUARDRAIL DETAIL PLAN SHEETS

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

TYPICAL SECTION (BRIDGE "6")

GENERAL PLAN AND ELEVATION (BRIDGE "6")

DETAILS OF APPROACH SLABS

DETAILS OF BEARING ASSEMBLIES

DETAILS OF STEEL BEAM BRACING

DETAILS  OF DIAPHRAGMS 

DETAILS OF SUPERSTRUCTURE

DETAIL OF SUBSTRUCTURE REPAIRS

GENERAL PLAN AND ELEVATION (BRIDGE "5")

ENVIRONMENTAL NOTES

SUMMARY OF PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES (TRAFFIC)

SUMMARY OF PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES (ROADWAY)

SUMMARY OF PAY QUANTITIES (BRIDGE)

GENERAL NOTES (BRIDGE) 

TYPICAL SECTIONS

TITLE

T002-T007

T001

R002-R004

R001

B016

B015

B013-B014

B0011-B012

B010

B009

B004-B008

B003

B001-B002

AE01

AT01

AR01

AB03

AB01-AB02

0002

0001

Existing NBI NO. 14187

Renewal Date: June 30, 2026

Certificate of Authorization No. 1427

SW FRANK PHILLIPS BLVD

SH-60

N
 3

9
5
0
 R

D

W 1800 RD

MAYOR

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

2024DAY OFTHIS DATE

APPROVED

TCS15-1-00

TCS14-1-00

TCS9-1-01

TCS7-1-02

TCS5-1-00

TCS4-1-01

TCS2-1-00

TCS1-1-01

DBF2-1-00

SSA1-1-00

SSP1-1-02

GMS1-1-00

SBS2-1-00

SBS1-1-00

RSD1-1-00

DU2-1-00

DU1-1-00

PM3-1-02

TRAFFIC (2009)

GRW2-1-00

GRW1-1-00

SKT-1-00

THRI-1-02

TRAFFIC  (2009)

SUBMITTED BY: 

(THIS SEAL COVERS SHEETS AB01-AB03, B001-B016)
STEPHEN J. NICHOLLS P.E. NO. 22327

Renewal Date: June 30, 2025

Certificate of Authorization No. 7432

NEO DESIGN LLC

NO SCALE FACTOR

NAVD 1988

VERTICAL DATUM:

GRID, AND ARE NOT ASTRONOMIC.

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON STATE PLANE

OKLAHOMA NORTH ZONE (3501) NAD 83.

HORIZONTAL DATUM:

SURVEY CONTROL DATA

LOCAL BRIDGE 5 & BRIDGE 6

END PROJECT

CRL STA. 30+50.00

= 3.7 M20yr. Flex ESALS
= 40 MPHV
= 10402 2043AADT
= 7000 2023AADT

BRIDGE "6" LOCATION 74E0180N39500S8

7'26"°55'23"  LONGITUDE W 95°4LATITUDE N 36

Existing NBI NO. 21121

R
A

M
O

N
A

SE ADAMS BLVD

MINNESOTA ST

BRIDGE "9" LOCATION 74E0180N3950009

7'17"°55'26"  LONGITUDE W 95°4LATITUDE N 36

Existing NBI NO. 21083

E 14TH ST.

S
IL

V
E

R
 L

A
K

E
 R

D

H
IL

L
C

R
E

S
T

 D
R

C
A

N
E

Y
 R
IV

E
R

FOR BRIDGE SHEETS

TRAFFIC CONTROL SHEETS = STA. 0+00.00 

STA 15+34.21 FOR ROADWAY AND 

STATION EQUATION NOTE

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

TUXEDO BLVD

WASHINGTON COUNTY

6
345

32 33 34

2728

29

30

09-11-2024

9-11-2024

R003

R003

Agenda Item 8 Attachment



NEO DESIGN LLC

“ ”

N:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
ar

tle
sv

ille
 5

 6
 9

 - 
NO

TE
S 

AN
D 

PQ
.d

w
g,

 N
OT

ES
1,

 9
/4

/2
02

4 
5:

19
:2

4 
PM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
ar

tle
sv

ille
 5

 6
 9

 - 
NO

TE
S 

AN
D 

PQ
.d

w
g,

 N
OT

ES
2,

 9
/4

/2
02

4 
3:

15
:4

8 
PM



 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL NOTES

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

GUY ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY HIGHWAY SHEET NO.

 
 
 
 

  

 

 

CITY JOB NO.

SEK

SEK

WASHINGTON E. TUXEDO BLVD. 2022061 AE01

BF

BF

09/24

 

09/24

09/24

09/24

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE



 

 

ROADWAY
SUMMARY OF PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

GUY ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY HIGHWAY SHEET NO.

 
 
 
 

  

 

 

CITY JOB NO.

SEK

SEK

WASHINGTON E. TUXEDO BLVD. 2022061 AR01

BF

BF

09/24

 

09/24

09/24

09/24

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE



 

 

TRAFFIC
SUMMARY OF PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

GUY ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY HIGHWAY SHEET NO.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY JOB NO.

SEK

SEK

WASHINGTON E. TUXEDO BLVD. 2022061 AT01

BF

BF

09/24

 

09/24

09/24

09/24

TRAFFIC TO THE SOUTH TWO LANES OF BRIDGE 9  AND TO BRIDGE 6.

SHIFT AND DIRECTION EACH IN LANE ONE TO TRAFFIC REDUCE 

TRAFFIC SHIFT AND DIRECTION EACH IN LANE ONE TO TRAFFIC REDUCE 

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

 

SUGGESTED CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

COMPLETE REPAIRS TO BRIDGE 5 INCLUDING GUARDRAIL.

COMPLETE REPAIRS TO BRIDGE 6.

TO THE NORTH TWO LANES OF BRIDGE 5.

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
rid

ge
 5

 - 
GP

E.
dw

g,
 G

PE
1,

 9
/5

/2
02

4 
8:

23
:1

3 
AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
rid

ge
 5

 - 
GP

E.
dw

g,
 G

PE
2,

 9
/3

/2
02

4 
12

:1
4:

28
 P

M



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- D

ET
AI

LS
.D

W
G,

 A
BU

T,
 5

/3
0/

20
23

 1
0:

03
:3

4 
AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- T

YP
IC

AL
.d

w
g,

 T
YP

IC
AL

, 5
/3

0/
20

23
 1

0:
08

:5
5 

AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- T

YP
IC

AL
.d

w
g,

 L
ON

G 
SE

C,
 5

/3
0/

20
23

 1
0:

11
:2

3 
AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- T

YP
IC

AL
.d

w
g,

 D
EC

K 
RE

IN
F.

, 5
/3

0/
20

23
 1

0:
13

:5
3 

AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- T

YP
IC

AL
.d

w
g,

 A
DD

. R
EI

NF
., 

5/
30

/2
02

3 
10

:1
8:

16
 A

M



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- T

YP
IC

AL
.d

w
g,

 D
EA

D 
LO

AD
, 5

/3
0/

20
23

 1
0:

19
:4

0 
AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5-
 D

IA
PH

RA
GM

S.
dw

g,
 1

1x
17

, 5
/3

0/
20

23
 1

0:
33

:4
3 

AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
 - 

BR
AC

IN
G.

dw
g,

 B
RA

CI
NG

, 5
/3

0/
20

23
 1

0:
34

:1
1 

AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- B

EA
RI

NG
S.

dw
g,

 B
EA

RI
NG

, 5
/3

0/
20

23
 1

0:
35

:3
6 

AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
RI

DG
E 

5 
- B

EA
RI

NG
S.

dw
g,

 B
EA

RI
NG

 (2
), 

5/
30

/2
02

3 
10

:3
6:

05
 A

M



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
rid

ge
 5

 - 
AP

PR
OA

CH
.d

w
g,

 A
PP

RO
AC

H,
 5

/3
0/

20
23

 1
0:

38
:0

8 
AM



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
14

18
7 

BR
ID

GE
 5

\B
rid

ge
 5

 - 
AP

PR
OA

CH
.d

w
g,

 A
PP

RO
AC

H 
(2

), 
5/

30
/2

02
3 

10
:3

9:
34

 A
M



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
21

12
1 

BR
ID

GE
 6

\B
rid

ge
 6

 - 
GP

E.
dw

g,
 G

PE
1,

 9
/1

1/
20

24
 1

:1
5:

06
 P

M



NEO DESIGN LLCN:
\J

OB
S\

Gu
y\

NE
O2

22
9 

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ar
tle

sv
ille

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

s\
21

12
1 

BR
ID

GE
 6

\B
RI

DG
E 

6 
- S

UP
ER

ST
RU

CT
UR

E.
dw

g,
 T

YP
IC

AL
, 9

/3
/2

02
4 

12
:1

6:
25

 P
M



 

 

 

PRACTICES FOR CONTROLLING STORM WATER POLLUTION.    

INTERCEPTION OF THESE POLLUTANTS BEFORE LEAVING THE CONSTRUCTION SITE ARE THE BEST

PREVENTION OF SOIL EROSION, CONTAINMENT OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND/OR THE

THE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS USED IN THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS.  THE

FROM CONSTRUCTION SITES HAS A POTENTIAL FOR POLLUTION DUE TO EXPOSED SOILS AND

IMPROVE WATER QUALITY BY REDUCING POLLUTANTS IN STORM WATER DISCHARGES.  RUNOFF

SITES, ASPHALT/CONCRETE PLANTS, ETC. THE BASIC GOAL OF STORM WATER MANAGEMENT IS TO

THE PROJECT MUST BE DOCUMENTED IN THE SWPPP, I.E., BORROW PITS, WORK ROADS, DISPOSAL

THE PROGRESSION OF THE PROJECT. ALL CONTRACTOR OFF-SITE OPERATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH

QUALITY (ODEQ).  THE PLAN MUST BE KEPT CURRENT WITH UP-TO-DATE AMENDMENTS DURING

CERTIFICATE THAT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH THE OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL

ON THE JOB SITE ALONG WITH COPIES OF THE NOTICE OF INTENT (NOI) FORM AND PERMIT

INITIATED DURING THE DESIGN PHASE, CONFIRMED IN THE PRE-WORK MEETINGS AND AVAILABLE

OKLAHOMA POLLUTION DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (OPDES) REGULATIONS.   THIS PLAN IS

A STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) IS REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE

CHEMICAL ADDITIVES,  CONCRETE CURING COMPOUNDS AND CONTAMINATED SOILS.

MEASURES.   EXAMPLES INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: PAINTS,  ACIDS,  CLEANING SOLVENTS,

FEDERAL REGULATIONS TO ENSURE CORRECT HANDLING,  DISPOSAL, SPILL PREVENTION AND CLEANUP

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FOLLOWING MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS, STATE AND

PROPER MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS WASTE MATERIALS IS REQUIRED.   THE

REQUIREMENTS OF ALL FEDERAL,  STATE AND LOCAL AGENCIES.

SPILL PREVENTION AND CLEANUP MEASURES.   CONTROLS AND PRACTICES SHALL MEET THE 

FROM THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS. PRACTICES INCLUDE DISPOSAL, PROPER MATERIALS HANDLING,

CONTRACTOR.  MATERIALS INCLUDE STOCKPILES,  SURPLUS,  DEBRIS  AND ALL OTHER BY-PRODUCTS

PROPER MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL OF CONSTRUCTION WASTE MATERIAL IS REQUIRED BY THE

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLSSITE DESCRIPTION

PROJECT LIMITS:

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

SUGGESTED SEQUENCE OF EROSION CONTROL ACTIVITIES:

SOIL TYPE:

(FOR CONTRACTOR USE)
OFFSITE AREA TO BE DISTURBED:

OF CENTER OF PROJECT:

LATITUDE & LONGITUDE

NAME OF RECEIVING WATERS:

SENSITIVE WATERS OR WATERSHEDS: YES

YES

NO

NO

REVISED 10-15-2020

221

220

107.20

107.01

106.08

104.13

104.12

104.10

103.05

IN ADDITION:

BE NOTED:

THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF THE 2019 ODOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS SHOULD

GENERAL NOTES:

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:

WASTE MATERIALS:

FOLLOWING:

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THESOIL STABILIZATION PRACTICES:

STRUCTURAL PRACTICES:

MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION:

OFFSITE VEHICLE TRACKING:

NOTES:

EXCESS DIRT ON ROAD REMOVED DAILY

LOADED HAUL TRUCKS TO BE COVERED WITH TARPAULIN

HAUL ROADS DAMPENED FOR DUST CONTROL

EROSION CONTROL MATS AND BLANKETS

COMPOST FILTER SOCKS

FLEXMAT / ARTICULATED CONCRETE BLOCK

TEMPORARY STREAM CROSSINGS

SANDBAG BERMS

TEMPORARY BRUSH SEDIMENT BARRIERS

INLET PROTECTION

RIP RAP

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT REMOVAL

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT FILTERS

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT TRAPS

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASINS

TEMPORARY DIVERSION CHANNELS

PAVED DITCH W/  DITCH LINER PROTECTION

TEMPORARY SLOPE DRAIN

ROCK FILTER DAMS

DIVERSION, INTERCEPTOR OR PERIMETER SWALES

DIVERSION, INTERCEPTOR OR PERIMETER DIKES

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

TEMPORARY SILT DIKES

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT

OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.

FOR OVER 14 DAYS.  METHODS USED WILL BE AS SHOWN ON PLANS,

ALL DISTURBED AREAS WHERE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES HAVE CEASED

NOTE:  TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL METHODS MUST BE USED ON

HYDROMULCH/HYDROSEED

PRESERVATION OF EXISTING VEGETATION

SOIL RETENTION BLANKET

VEGETATIVE MULCHING

PERMANENT SODDING, SPRIGGING OR SEEDING

TEMPORARY SEEDING

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

MANAGEMENT PLAN
STORM WATER

 

 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
ROADWAY DESIGN DIVISION

DESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY ROAD CITY JOB NO. SHEET NO.

NOYES

NO

LOCATED IN A TMDL:

LAKE THUNDERBIRD TMDL:

PROJECT WILL DISCHARGE TO:

IF YES, LIST IMPAIRMENT:

YES NOMS4 ENTITY

IF YES, LOCATION:

(d)303      IMPAIRED WATERS:

CONSTRUCTION SITE:
TOTAL AREA OF THE

 

COEFFICIENT OF THE SITE:

POST-CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF

ESTIMATED AREA TO BE DISTURBED:

PRE-CONSTRUCTION:
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA 

POST-CONSTRUCTION:

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA 

YES

NEED TO BE INSPECTED.

AND EXITS ALONG WITH EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL LOCATIONS ARE EXAMPLES OF SITES THAT

AREAS,  DRAINAGEWAYS,   MATERIAL STORAGE,  STRUCTURAL DEVICES,  CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES

RECORDED BY A NON-FREEZING RAIN GAUGE TO BE LOCATED ON SITE.  POTENTIALLY ERODIBLE

7 CALENDAR DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER ANY STORM EVENT GREATER THAN 0.5 INCH AS

INSPECTION BY THE CONTRACTOR AND ANY NECESSARY REPAIRS SHALL BE PERFORMED ONCE EVERY

THE BEGINNING OF CONSTRUCTION UNTIL AN ACCEPTABLE VEGETATIVE COVER IS ESTABLISHED.

ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS WILL BE MAINTAINED IN GOOD WORKING ORDER FROM

CONTROL SUMMARIES, PAY ITEMS, & NOTES. 

FOR THIS PROJECT.  THIS SHEET SHOULD ALSO BE  USED WITH THE EROSION

ILLUSTRATES THE DRAINAGE PATTERNS/PATHWAYS AND RECEIVING WATERS

THIS SHEET SHOULD BE USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH A DRAINAGE MAP THAT 

NOTE:

SURFACE, GROUND OR CITY WATER SOURCES FOR ACTIVITIES SUCH AS WATERING.

ADDITIONAL PERMITS REQUIRED FROM OKLAHOMA RESOURCES BOARD AND/OR MUNICIPALITY FOR USE OF

STATE OF OKLAHOMA." ODEQ, WATER QUALITY DIVISION, OCTOBER 18, 2022.

"ODEQ GENERAL PERMIT (OKR10) FOR STORM WATER DISCHARGES FROM CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT CONTROL

MANAGEMENT OF EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, AND STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS TO BE OBSERVED

STORAGE AND HANDLING OF MATERIAL

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK

FINAL CLEANING UP

BONDING REQUIREMENTS

MEASURES.

DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES, AND ALSO THE DATES OF INSTALLATION OF EROSION CONTROL

AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER. THE CONTRACTOR WILL MAINTAIN A LOG OF MAJOR SOIL

MODIFY THE TYPE OR ARRANGEMENT OF SPECIFIED PRACTICES TO IMPROVE THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

70%) HAS BEEN ATTAINED. AS SITE CONDITIONS WARRANT, THE CONTRACTOR MAY CHOOSE TO

SALVAGED TOPSOIL AND REMOVE DEVICES WHEN AN ACCEPTABLE VEGETATIVE COVER (AT LEAST

CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS AS PRACTICAL. IF DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER,  REPLACE

VEGETATION AS POSSIBLE. INSTALL, MAINTAIN AND/OR MOVE TEMPORARY SEDIMENT ITEMS WITH

TOPSOIL. CLEAR AND GRUB ONLY IN NECESSARY AREAS, PRESERVING AS MUCH NATIVE

PERIMETER TEMPORARY SEDIMENT CONTROLS SPECIFIED. STRIP, STOCKPILE AND STABILIZE

PRIOR TO INITIATING SOIL DISTURBING ACTIVITIES, THE CONTRACTOR WILL INSTALL ALL

X

X

X

X

X

X

0.5 MILES NORTH OF US-60 IN THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE.

TUXEDO BLVD. OVER CANEY RIVER, 1.2 MILES WEST OF US-75 AND 

GUARDRAIL WIDEN SECTION.

APPROACHING BRIDGES. REPLACE APPROACH GUARDRAIL AND ADD CONCRETE 

APPROACH SLABS. REPLACE BROKEN CONCRETE PANELS AND SEAL CRACKED PANELS 

REHABILITATE BRIDGES 5, 6 AND 9 AND CORRESPONDING 

N36°45'22.45" W95°57'16.97"

0.49

0.99 ACRES (43,300 SF)

0.86 ACRES (37,531SF)

0.85 ACRES (36,873 SF)

3.49 ACRES (151,983 SF)

VERDIGRIS CLAY LOAM

CANEY RIVER

SEK 06/23

SEK

BF

BF

WASHINGTON TUXEDO BLVD. 2022061 R001

X

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

06/23

06/23

06/23

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

FISH BIO

X

X

HEIGHT OF THE DEVICE.

REMOVAL OF SEDIMENT WHEN IT REACHES HALF THE 

X

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE



12
+
0
0

13
+
0
0

14
+
0
0

15
+
0
0

1
6

+
0

0

1
7
+

0
0

1
8
+

0
0

Guy Wire

Guy Wire

Guy Wire

PP

PP (Old Guy Pole)
PP w/ Dip

PP

B/W

Dilapidated 

 
C
h
a
in
 
Li
n
k

 Chain Link

TPED

Gravel

Gravel 

Concrete

15" RCP
Elev.=668.08

\ 

Grave
l 

Pipe Gate

Parking Bum
pers

Gravel
PP w/ Dip

PP

WM

PP

G
ra

v
e
l

B/W

Dilapidated 

5-Wire OHE
3-Wire OHT

Concrete Wall

Tuxedo Blvd

Concrete

 Chain Link

A
s
p
h
a
lt 

T
ra
il 

Guy Wire
Guy Wire

LP

DIP

LP w/ Elec. 

LP

PP

PP

(AT&T)

TPED

WM

DIP

LP w/ Elec. 

1-Wire OHE

Guy Wire

Guy Wire

PP

5-Wire OHE
3-Wire OHT

1-
W
ire O

H
E

1-
W
ire O

H
T

1-
W
ir
e
 
O

H
T

1-Wire OHT

1
-

W
ire
 

O
H

E

1-
W
ir
e
 
O
H
E

1
5
"
 
R

C
P

1
5
"
 
R

C
P

\ Elev.=675.41

TG Elev.=681.26

SGDI

\ Elev.=676.18

TG Elev.=679.13

SGDI

End Location Unknown

15" RCP

WV

Asphalt

Asphalt

 Elev.=676.86

LC

 Elev.=676.44

LC

Elev.=676.34

LC 

4-Wire OHE
2-Wire OHT

4-Wire OHE

2-Wire OHT

1-Wire OHT

Guardrail

Guardrail

Post

Blue Painted T-

Gate Post

T

T

Gas Pin Flag (ONG)

\ Elev.=676.71

TG Elev.=679.06

SGDI

Gate Post

 Station 

USGS Gage

 Elev.=668.18

\

 Elev.=657.48

\

LEGEND

BENCHMARK

EXISTING CONCRETE JOINT

       

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATIONDESIGN

ROADWAY DESIGN DIVISION
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

SHEET 1 OF 2
DETAIL PLAN 

CONCRETE REPAIR AND GUARDRAIL 

COUNTY HIGHWAY CITY JOB NO. SHEET NO.WASHINGTON E. TUXEDO BLVD. R002

SEK

BF

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

 S
T

A
. 
1
8
+

0
0
.0

0

20' 40'

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =          ft.

(HORIZ.)

0

20

20'

INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY
ALIGNMENT AND STATIONING ARE FOR 

BEGIN BRIDGE 5

BEGIN BRIDGE 6

2022061

09/24

09/24

09/24

09/24SEK

RED

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

INSTALLATION.
TO COMPLETE GUARDRAIL 
REMOVE AND RESET SIGNS AS NEEDED

THRIE-BEAM

THRIE-BEAM



1
9
+

0
0

2
0

+
0

0

2
1+

0
0

2
2
+
0
0

2
3
+
0
0

7402

7403

Guy Wire
Guy Wire

PP

PP

Sign - Reflector

PP

 Pipe

Exposed 10" Steel

 Pipe

Exposed 10" Steel

4-Wire OHE
3-Wire OHT

4-Wire OHE

3-Wire OHT

LP

4-Wire OHE

3-Wire OHT

4-Wire OHE

3-Wire OHT

Tuxedo BlvdConcrete

12"
 P

P

1
5
" 

C
M
P

1
5
"
 
C

M
P

Conduit

1" Metal \ Elev.=676.27

TG Elev.=681.27

SGDI

\ Elev.=677.62

TG Elev.=679.58

SGDI

\ Elev.=677.37

TG Elev.=679.24

SGDI

A
s
p
h
a
lt 

T
ra
il 

1
5
"
 
C

M
P

Elev.=676.85

LC 

 Elev.=676.64

LC

 Elev.=677.32

LC

Elev.=677.36

LC 

Guardrail

Guardrail

Elev.=677.27

LC 

Reflector

Sign - 

 Chevron

Sign -

 Chevron

Sign -

 Chevron

Sign -

 Reflector

Sign -

2" Steel Post

2" Steel Post

Sign - Chevron

 Chevron

Sign -

Sign -
 Caney River

Guardrail

Guardrail

Elev.=657.26

\ 

Elev.=663.41

\ 

Elev.=664.80

\ 

       

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATIONDESIGN

ROADWAY DESIGN DIVISION
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

SEK

BF

 R003                SHEET NO.      2022061                  CITY JOB NO.       E. TUXEDO BLVD.                 HIGHWAY        WASHINGTON  COUNTY     

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

 S
T

A
. 
1
8
+

0
0
.0

0

20' 40'

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =          ft.

(HORIZ.)

0

20

20'

END BRIDGE 6

END BRIDGE 5

09/24

09/24

09/24

09/24SEK

RED

SHEET 2 OF 2
DETAIL PLAN 

CONCRETE REPAIR AND GUARDRAIL 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

THRIE-BEAM

LEGEND

BENCHMARK

EXISTING CONCRETE JOINT



                       

 

 

STAY ALERT

PLEASE

IN WORK ZONE

FLUORESCENT ORANGE (REFLECTORIZED)

FLUORESCENT YELLOW (REFLECTORIZED)

WHITE (REFLECTORIZED)

RED (NON-REFLECTORIZED)

BACKGROUND:

BLACK (NON-REFLECTORIZED)

LEGEND, SYMBOL AND BORDER

COLOR:

IN=0.75"

TH=0.75"

R=1.5"

BORDER

5.2" 37.6"

3.6"

4"

6" B

2.5"

5" C 

2.5"

12"

2.5"

5" B 

4.8"

5.2"

4
'-

0
"

4'-0"

CONSTRUCTION SPEED LIMIT TO BE DETERMINED BY THE CITY.3. 

FOUR (4) CHANNELIZING DEVICES.

(IN MPH). DOWNSTREAM TAPERS SHALL CONTAIN A MINIMUM OF 

DEVICES (IN FEET) SHALL BE EQUAL TO THE POSTED SPEED LIMIT

FOR TAPERS, A MAXIMUM SPACING BETWEEN CHANNELIZING2.

DRUMS.

EXCEED 100 FEET FOR TYPE II BARRICADES, VERTICAL PANELS OR

EXCEED 75 FEET FOR CHANNELIZER CONES, SPACING SHALL NOT

FOR CONES OR TUBE CHANNELIZERS. SPACING SHALL NOT

FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS: SPACING SHALL NOT EXCEED 50 FEET

SHALL BE TWICE THE POSTED SPEED LIMIT (MPH) WITH THE

MAXIMUM SPACING BETWEEN CHANNELIZING DEVICES (FEET)1.

GENERAL TRAFFIC CONTROL NOTES:

S
E

E
 S

H
E

E
T

S
 T

0
0
2
-T

0
0
3
 F

O
R

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 P

H
A

S
IN

G

E. TUXEDO BLVD. EB

E. TUXEDO BLVD. WB

E. TUXEDO BLVD. EB

E. TUXEDO BLVD. WB

40LI
M

IT

SP
E

E
D

R
O

A
D

 W
O

R
K

E
N

D

4
0

L
IM
IT

S
P
E
E

D

R
O

A
D

 W
O

R
K

E
N

D

150'150'150'150'150'150'

S
T

A
Y

 A
L

E
R

T

P
L

E
A

S
E

IN
 W

O
R

K
 Z

O
N

E

A
H

E
A

D

W
O

R
K

R
O

A
D

 

L
IM

IT

S
P

E
E

D

3535LI
M

IT

SP
E

E
D

Z
O

N
E

W
O

R
K

B
E

G
IN

F
IN

E
S

 D
O

U
B

L
E

W
O

R
K

 Z
O

N
E

A
R

E
 P

R
E

S
E

N
T

W
H

E
N

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S

CS-16E

CS-17E

CS-18ETYPE "A" LIGHT

W20-1 (AHEAD)

TYPE "A" LIGHT

W3-5 (35)
CS-13F

CS-14F

R2-1F(35)

5
0
0
 F

T

W
O

R
K

R
O

A
D

 

35LI
M

IT

SP
E

E
D

TYPE "A" LIGHT

W20-1 (500 FT)

CS-13F

R2-1F(35)

B
E

G
IN

350'

G20-2A

G20-2A

R2-1F(40)

R2-1F(40)

350'150' 150' 150' 150' 150' 150'

S
T

A
Y

 A
L

E
R

T

P
L

E
A

S
E

IN
 W

O
R

K
 Z

O
N

E

A
H

E
A

D

W
O

R
K

R
O

A
D

 

L
IM
IT

S
P

E
E

D

3
5

3
5

L
IM
IT

S
P
E
E

D

Z
O

N
E

W
O

R
K

B
E

G
IN

F
IN

E
S

 D
O

U
B

L
E

W
O

R
K

 Z
O

N
E

A
R

E
 P

R
E

S
E

N
T

W
H

E
N

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S

CS-16E

CS-17E TYPE "A" LIGHT

W20-1 (AHEAD)

TYPE "A" LIGHT

W3-5 (35)
CS-13F

CS-14F

R2-1F(35)

5
0
0
 F

T

W
O

R
K

R
O

A
D

 

3
5

L
IM
IT

S
P
E
E

D

TYPE "A" LIGHT

W20-1 (500 FT)

CS-13F

R2-1F(35)

B
E

G
IN

CS-18E

350'

350'

 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

ROADWAY DESIGN DIVISION
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS

SEK

SEK

BF

RED

06/23

06/23

06/23

06/23

 T001                 SHEET NO.      2022061                  CITY JOB NO.       E. TUXEDO BLVD.                 HIGHWAY        WASHINGTON  COUNTY     

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE



12
'

12
'

245' MERGING TAPER W/ DRUMS AT 35' C/C

10
+
0
0

11
+
0
0

12
+
0
0

13
+
0
0

14
+
0
0

15
+
0
0

10
+
0
0
.0

0
P

O
B
 

7400

Concrete

Asphalt Asphalt

 

SHEET 1 OF 3
TRAFFIC CONTROL PHASE 1

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

GUY ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY HIGHWAY SHEET NO.CITY JOB NO.

SEK

SEK

WASHINGTON E. TUXEDO BLVD. 2022061 T002

BF

09/24

TYPE "A" LIGHT 

W4-2R

TYPE "A" LIGHT

W6-3

09/24

09/24

09/24

INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

FOR ARE STATIONING AND ALIGNMENT 

ON BRIDGE 6, SHIFT TRAFFIC TO NORTH 2 LANES.

PLACE  TAKE SHALL CONSTRUCTION 2 PHASE 

PLAN.CONTROL TRAFFIC 1 PHASE OF 

MIRROR A IS CONTROL TRAFFIC 2 PHASE 

S
T

A
.
 
1
5

+
0
0

SIGNS, SHEET T001.

SEE ADVANCED WARNING 

20' 40'

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =          ft.

(HORIZ.)

0

20

20'

K
E

E
P

R
IG

H
T

R4-7AR

RED

Tuxedo Blvd

LEGEND

BENCHMARK

CHANNELIZING TUBE/DRUM

PHASE 2 TRAFFIC FLOW DIRECTION

PHASE 2 TRAFFIC SIGN

PHASE 2 WORK AREA

COMPLETED GUARDRAIL WIDENED AREA

TEMPORARY WHITE STRIPE (PAINT)

STRIPE (PAINT)

TEMPORARY YELLOW 

125' SHIFTING TAPER85'
100'

TUBES AT 35' C/C

STRIPE (PAINT) & CHANNELIZING

TEMPORARY DOUBLE YELLOW

(TYPE A LIGHT ON EVERY OTHER DRUM)

4 DRUMS AS SHOWN

(AT EQUAL SPACING AS SHOWN)
PLACE 3 DRUMS ON EACH SIDE OF DRIVE

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE



2
0

+
0

0

2
1+

0
0

2
2
+
0
0

Guardrail

Guardrail

12
'

12
'

15
+
0
0

1
6

+
0

0

1
7
+

0
0

1
8
+

0
0

Gravel 

Gravel

Concrete Wall

A
s
p
h
a
lt 

T
ra
il 

Guardrail

Guardrail

 

SHEET 2 OF 3
TRAFFIC CONTROL PHASE 1

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

GUY ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY HIGHWAY SHEET NO.CITY JOB NO.

SEK

WASHINGTON E. TUXEDO BLVD. T003

BF

S
T

A
.
 
1
5

+
0
0

20' 40'

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =          ft.

(HORIZ.)

0

20

20'

B
R

E
A

K
L

I
N

E
 S

T
A

. 
1

8
+

0
0

B
R

E
A

K
L

I
N

E
 S

T
A

. 
2

0
+

0
0

S
T

A
.
 
2
2

+
0
0

(TYPE A LIGHT ON EVERY OTHER TUBE)

CHANNELIZING TUBES AT 35' C/C

SEK 09/24

09/24

09/24

09/24

2022061

RED

W1-4R

LEGEND

BENCHMARK

CHANNELIZING TUBE/DRUM

PHASE 2 TRAFFIC FLOW DIRECTION

PHASE 2 TRAFFIC SIGN

PHASE 2 WORK AREA

COMPLETED GUARDRAIL WIDENED AREA

STRIPE (PAINT)

DOUBLE YELLOW 

STRIPE (PAINT)

DOUBLE YELLOW 

100'

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

Tuxedo Blvd
Tuxedo Blvd

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE



2
2
+
0
0

2
3
+
0
0

2
4
+

0
0

2
5
+

0
0

2
6
+

0
0

2
7
+

0
0

MB

Box

Unknown Metal 

Guardrail

Guardrail

Guardrail

Guardrail

LEGEND

BENCHMARK

CHANNELIZING TUBE/DRUM

PHASE 2 TRAFFIC FLOW DIRECTION

 

SHEET 3 OF 3
TRAFFIC CONTROL PHASE 1

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

GUY ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY HIGHWAY SHEET NO.CITY JOB NO.

SEK

WASHINGTON E. TUXEDO BLVD. T004

BF

S
T

A
.
 
2
2

+
0
0

20' 40'

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =          ft.

(HORIZ.)

0

20

20'

YELLOW STRIPES (PAINT)

TEMPORARY DOUBLE

"ROAD CLOSED" SIGN (X3)

TYPE III BARRICADE WITH

TYPE "A" LIGHT

W6-3

PHASE 2 TRAFFIC SIGN

SEK 09/24

09/24

09/24

09/24

2022061

RED

PHASE 2 WORK AREA

COMPLETED GUARDRAIL WIDENED AREA

Tuxed
o Blv

d

Tuxedo Blvd

STRIPE (PAINT)

TEMPORARY DOUBLE YELLOW

245' MERGING TAPER

(TYPE A LIGHT ON EVERY OTHER TUBE)
CHANNELIZING TUBES AT 35' C/C

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
, 
M

a
y
 1

0
, 
2
0
2
3
 9

:0
8
 A

M

V
:\

2
2

-1
4

2
5

E
 B

R
 5

 6
 &

 9
 C

a
n

e
y

 R
iv

e
r 

- 
R

e
h

a
b

s
, 

B
a
rt

le
s
v

il
le

\C
IV

3
D

\P
L

A
N

S

DATEREVISIONSDESCRIPTION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

125' SHIFTING TAPER

TYPE "A" LIGHT 

W4-2r

20'

TYPE "A" LIGHT

W1-4L

SEE ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS, SHEET T001.



9.







10.













11.













                    1  Agenda Item   
October 2, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A public hearing to consider a request by Raymond Crow to close a portion of a 20-foot-wide 
utility easement located on the south side of Lot 1, Block 4, Corrected Plat for Covington Park, 
Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. 
 
Attachments: 

Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Applicant:   Raymond Crow 
 
Requested Action: A public hearing to consider a request to close a portion of a 20-

foot-wide utility easement on the south side of Lot 1, Block 4, The 
Corrected Plat for Covington Park, Bartlesville, Washington 
County, Oklahoma said portion of right-of-way being more 
particularly described as follows: 

  
THE NORTH 10 FEET OF THE SOUTH 20 FEET OF LOT 1, 
BLOCK 4, THE CORRECTED PLAT FOR COVGINGTON 
PARK, BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 
OKLAHOMA, LESS AND EXCEPT THE WEST 15 FEET 
THEREOF. 
  

SPECIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting the closure so that they can construct a storage building in 
the back yard of the property.  They had the property surveyed to verify no utilities were 
located within the limits of easement to be vacated. 
 

1. City Staff: Staff has received no objections from Police, Fire, Planning, 
Public Works, Water Utilities or Engineering departments.  There are no City-
owned facilities located in the easement. 

 
2. Utility Companies: Staff has received no objections from ONG, AT&T or 

Sparklight.  ONG is located in the front and side of the lot.  There are 
communications utilities located within the easement, but they are in the south 
10 feet of the easement and would not be affected by the closure.  PSO has stated 

 12.



that they have facilities in the vicinity of this easement and do not support 
closing any portion of the 20’ easement. 

  
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Staff recommends holding the public hearing and denial of the request to vacate the north 10 feet 
of the 20-foot utility easement based upon input received from PSO.  An ordinance has been 
included with this recommendation in the event Council chooses to approve the request. A public 
hearing notice has been placed in the Examiner Enterprise. 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

An Ordinance to close a portion of the 20-foot-wide utility easement, located on the south side 
of Lot 1, Block 4, the corrected plat for Covington Park Addition, Bartlesville, Washington 
County, Oklahoma. 

 
 

WHEREAS, heretofore the City Council of the City of Bartlesville received a request for the closing of 
a portion of a utility easement hereinafter described; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council duly set said matter for public hearing and gave proper notice thereof and said 
matter was duly heard before the Council in an open meeting on October 7, 2024, where all viewpoints 
were considered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council, after consideration, determined it necessary, expedient and desirable that the 
portion of the utility easement hereinafter to be closed. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 
The following described utility easement, described to wit: 
 
A UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED IN LOT 1, BLOCK 4, THE CORRECTED PLAT FOR 
COVINGTON PARK, BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
THE NORTH 10 FEET OF THE SOUTH 20 FEET OF LOT 1, BLOCK 4, THE CORRECTED 
PLAT FOR COVINGTON PARK, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, LESS AND 
EXCEPT THE WEST 15 FEET THEROF. 
     
Also, as shown as Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance be and the same is hereby 
closed. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma this 
7th day of October, 2024. 

 
 
  
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 
(SEAL) 
 



wmsiemers
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



 
 

Agenda Item ___ 
October 7, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Snyder, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
CASE NO. TA-0924-0001: Public hearing and possible action on proposed text amendments to 
the Zoning Regulations for the City of Bartlesville. The proposed revisions shall include 
modifications to Section 7.3 (Child and Adult Care Facilities) and Section 4.2 (Permitted Uses 
in Residential Districts). 
 
Attachments: 

• Ordinance with Exhibit A & Exhibit B Attachments showing proposed amendments 
• Planning Commission Staff Report and Attachments 

 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
City Staff is proposing text amendments to the Zoning Regulations pertaining to residentially-
based child care facilities in an effort to reduce regulatory burden on child care providers and 
align local regulations with the minimum standards required by Oklahoma State Statute, Title 
10, Chapter 18 and the Oklahoma Department of Human Services.  
 
Additionally, the Bartlesville NEXT Strategic Plan indicates Child Care as the highest priority 
under Emerging Issues. The Strategic Plan also noted that approaches to addressing the local 
child care shortage could include collaborating with local groups to help find solutions to and 
helping to advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new facilities. To 
this end, Staff has collaborated with the Strategic Childcare Committee, coordinated by the City 
Manager’s office, and received feedback that the proposed amendments are favorable. 
 
Attached is the Staff Report provided to the Planning Commission with more detailed 
information as well as a draft ordinance with Exhibits A & B showing the proposed changes to 
the zoning regulations. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Bartlesville City Planning Commission held a public hearing on this proposed zoning text 
amendment on Tuesday, September 24, 2024. No one spoke during the public hearing for this 
item. Staff recommended approval of the proposed amendments to the Zoning Regulations and 
the Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 5-0.  

13.



 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 4.2 AND 7.3 OF THE ZONING REGULATIONS 
FOR THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, PERTAINING TO RESIDENTIALLY-BASED CHILD 
CARE FACILITIES. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Bartlesville City Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 24, 2024, 

to consider proposed amendments to the Zoning Regulations of the City of Bartlesville; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the Planning Commission’s recommendation of approval, and 
after conducting a second public hearing on October 7, 2024, concluded the proposed amendments to be 
appropriate;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 

Section 1.  That Section 4.2, Permitted Uses in Residential Districts, of the Zoning Regulations are 
hereby amended as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 
 Section 2. That Section 7.3, Child Care and Adult Care Facilities, of the Zoning Regulations are hereby 
amended as shown in Exhibit B attached hereto. 

 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma this 

7th day of October, 2024. 
 

  
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 8

TABLE 4.2-TABLE OF PERMITTED USES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

PERMITTED USES

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS

(See Sec.) 

PARKING 
SPACES 

REQUIRED 
(See Sec.

7.4.2) RA RE/RS 
RM
1/ 

RT
1/ 

Accessory uses, in addition to those accessory uses set forth specifically in 
this list.  None None X X X X

Agricultural Implement Sales and Repair 10.5 None S
Agriculture: accessory uses including storage. None None X X X X
Agriculture: animal and poultry husbandry, beekeeping, dairying and 
pasturage, but not including retail sales on the premises or the feeding of 
offal or garbage.  None None X 
Agriculture: field crops, floriculture, greenhouse, horticulture, nursery, truck 
gardening or viticulture, but not including retail sales on the premises. None None X X X X

Agriculture: retail sales of agricultural products raised on the premises. None None X 

Airport or aircraft landing strip. 7.7.1(1) None X 

Animal Hospital, Pound or Shelter 
7.7.1(2), 

10.5 None S

Art gallery or museum, public. 7.7.1(21)
One/200 sq. 
ft. floor area X X

Auditorium, arena, coliseum, theater or similar facility. 
7.7.1(20) 
7.7.1(21) One/4 seats X X

Bait shop. 10.5 None S
Batching plant, asphaltic or Portland Cement concrete, non-commercial,
temporary.  7.7.2(3) None X X X X

Bed and Breakfast; see Major Home Occupation 
7.7.1(24) &

10.5 S S S S 

Blacksmith, Horseshoeing. 10.5 None S

Cemetery, columbarium or mausoleum. 7.7.1(6) None X 

Ceramic Crafts, manufacture and sale on premises. 10.5 

One/300 sq. 
ft. of floor

area S
Child/Adult Care Facilities 

 Residentially-Based Facilities 
a) Family Child Care Home
b) Large Child Care Home

-Commercial

7.2, 7.3 
7.2, 7.3, 10.5

7.3, 10.5

7.2, 7.3 
7.2, 7.3 
One/1.5

employee 

X 
S
S

X
S
S 

X 
S
S

X
S
S 

Church or other place of worship. 7.7.1(7) 
One/4 seats 
in sanctuary X X X X

Club or Lodge; Private, except those whose chief activity is carried on as a
business.  

7.7.1(8)
10.5 

One/500 sq. 
ft. of floor

area S S S S 
College or University:

a) Auditorium or similar facility.

7.7.1(9), 
7.7.1(20), 
7.7.1(21) One/3 Seats X X X X

b) Dormitory, fraternity, sorority. 7.7.1(10) One/3 Beds X X X X

c) All other facilities other than stadium. 7.7.1(9)
One/500 sq. 
ft. floor area X X X X

Community building, public. 7.7.1(21) 
One/400 sq. 
ft. floor area X X X X

Construction building and/or yard, temporary.  7.7.2(3) None X X X X

Dwelling, multi-family, including duplex None 

Three/2
dwelling 

units X X

  EXHIBIT A
            Section 4.2
   Previous Regulations

lmsnyder
Rectangle



lmsnyder
Image



TABLE 4.2-TABLE OF PERMITTED USES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

PERMITTED USES 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS 

(See Sec.) 

PARKING 
SPACES 

REQUIRED 
(See Sec. 

7.4.2) RA RE/RS 
RM 
1/ 

RT 
1/ 

Accessory uses, in addition to those accessory uses set forth specifically in 
this list. None None X X X X 
Agricultural Implement Sales and Repair 10.5 None S 

Agriculture: accessory uses including storage. None None X X X X 
Agriculture: animal and poultry husbandry, beekeeping, dairying and 
pasturage, but not including retail sales on the premises or the feeding of 
offal or garbage. None None X 
Agriculture: field crops, floriculture, greenhouse, horticulture, nursery, truck 
gardening or viticulture, but not including retail sales on the premises. None None X X X X 
Agriculture: retail sales of agricultural products raised on the premises. None None X 
Airport or aircraft landing strip. 7.7.1(1) None X 

Animal Hospital, Pound or Shelter 
7.7.1(2), 

10.5 None S 

Art gallery or museum, public. 7.7.1(21) 
One/200 sq. 
ft. floor area X X 

Auditorium, arena, coliseum, theater or similar facility. 
7.7.1(20) 
7.7.1(21) One/4 seats X X 

Bait shop. 10.5 None S 
Batching plant, asphaltic or Portland Cement concrete, non-commercial, 
temporary. 7.7.2(3) None X X X X 

Bed and Breakfast; see Major Home Occupation 
7.7.1(24) & 

10.5 S S S S 
Blacksmith, Horseshoeing. 10.5 None S 
Cemetery, columbarium or mausoleum. 7.7.1(6) None X 

Ceramic Crafts, manufacture and sale on premises. 10.5 

One/300 sq. 
ft. of floor 

area S 
Child/Adult Care Facilities 

Residentially-Based Facilities 
Commercial Facilities 

7.2, 7.3 
7.3, 10.5 

7.2, 7.3 
7.3 

X 
S 

X 
S 

X 
S 

X 
S 

Church or other place of worship. 7.7.1(7) 
One/4 seats 
in sanctuary X X X X 

Club or Lodge; Private, except those whose chief activity is carried on as a 
business. 

7.7.1(8) 
10.5 

One/500 sq. 
ft. of floor 

area S S S S 
College or University: 

a) Auditorium or similar facility.

7.7.1(9), 
7.7.1(20), 
7.7.1(21) One/3 Seats X X X X 

b) Dormitory, fraternity, sorority. 7.7.1(10) One/3 Beds X X X X 

c) All other facilities other than stadium. 7.7.1(9) 
One/500 sq. 
ft. floor area X X X X 

  EXHIBIT A
            Section 4.2
   Amended Regulations

lmsnyder
Rectangle



Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 43

7.3 Child Care and Adult Care Facilities

7.3.1 Residentially-Based Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as an
accessory use in a residential structure occupied principally as a residential use, said facilities shall be
approved pursuant to the Home Occupation Regulations contained in Section 7.2 and as modified herein.
The State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements for Family Child Care Homes and Large Child Care
Homes, and any amendments thereto, are hereby adopted, except as modified herein.

7.3.1.1 Family Child Care Home. A Family Child Care Home is a family home which provides care and
protection for seven or fewer children for part of the 24-hour day. The total number of children in a family
child care home includes children under five years of age who live in the home and are present in the home
while children are in care, foster children twelve years of age and younger who live in the home and are
present in the home while children are in care; and the children of any substitute or assistant caregiver.

A Family Child Care Home shall be a permitted use in all residential zoning districts as a Minor Home
Occupation subject to compliance with the performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation, except as
modified by the following conditions:
1. Approved hours of operation for a Family Child Care Home shall be between the hours of 7:00 a.m.

and 7:00 p.m. Traffic associated with pickup and delivery of children to this family child care home
shall also be limited to these hours of operation. Traffic associated with the Family Child Care Home
shall not exceed an average of one (1) vehicle per hour during approved hours of operation.

2. Sufficient off-street parking area must be provided by on-site to accommodate all traffic coming to and
from the Family Child Care Home for the pick-up and delivery of children. If such off-street parking is
not available on site due to the size or location of the site, such off-street parking can be provided on
other property not more than four hundred (400) feet distant from the site with the written consent of
the property owner. On-street parking shall not be utilized in conjunction with the operation of a
Family Child Care Home.

3. All outdoor play areas for the Family Child Care Home shall be permitted only in an approved rear or
side yard and shall be enclosed with a cyclone or comparable fencing at least 4 feet high.

4. The performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation concerning sewerage and water usage (Section
7.2.2.A.10), or noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical interference (Section 7.2.2.A.11) shall
not apply to a Family Child Care Home, except to the extent that such is determined to be remarkable
for a Family Child Care Home by the Community Development Director or his/her designee.

5. Signage for a Family Child Care Home shall be limited to that permitted by the Minor Home
Occupation performance criteria.

6. A Family Child Care Home shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and Local regulations,
codes, and requirements.

7. A copy of the approved license issued by the State of Oklahoma, Department of Human Services,
Washington County, shall be provided with the application for a Minor Home Occupation for a Family
Child Care Home.

Modifications to these conditions shall be permitted only with approval from the Board of Adjustment as a
Major Home Occupation.

7.3.1.2 Large Child Care Home. A Large Child Care Home is a residential family home that provides care
and supervision for eight to twelve children for part of the 24-hour day. The total number of children in a
family child care home includes children under five years of age who live in the home and are present in
the home while children are in care, foster children twelve years of age and younger who live in the home
and are present in the home while children are in care; and the children of any substitute or assistant
caregiver.

A Large Child Care Home shall be permitted in all residential zoning districts subject to the granting of a
Special Zoning Permit by the Board of Adjustment as a Major Home Occupation subject to compliance
with the performance criteria for a Major Home Occupation, except as modified by the following
conditions:

1. Approved hours of operation for a Family Child Care Home may include any part, but not all, of the
24-hour day, as declared in the approved Major Home Occupation Permit. Traffic associated with
pickup and delivery of children to this Large Child Care Home shall also be limited to these approved

EXHIBIT B
            Section 7.3
   Previous Regulations

lmsnyder
Rectangle



Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 44

hours of operation. Traffic associated with the Large Child Care Home shall not exceed an average of
one (1) vehicle per hour during approved hours of operation.

2. Sufficient off-street parking area must be provided by on-site to accommodate all traffic coming to and
from the Large Child Care Home for the pick-up and delivery of children. If such off-street parking is
not available on site due to the size or location of the site, such off-street parking can be provided on
other property not more than four hundred (400) feet distant from the site with the written consent of
the property owner. On-street parking shall not be utilized in conjunction with the operation of a Large
Child Care Home.

3. All outdoor play areas for the Large Child Care Home shall be permitted only in an approved rear or
side yard and shall be enclosed with an opaque fence at least six (6) feet high.

4. The performance criteria for a Major Home Occupation concerning sewerage and water usage (Section
7.2.2.B.10), or noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical interference (Section 7.2.2.B.11) shall
not apply to a Large Child Care Home, except to the extent that such is determined to be remarkable
for a Large Child Care Home by the Community Development Director or his/her designee.

5. Signage for a Family Child Care Home shall be limited to that declared in the approved Major Home
Occupation Permit.

6. A Large Child Care Home shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and Local regulations, codes,
and requirements.

7. A copy of the approved license issued by the State of Oklahoma, Department of Human Services,
Washington County, shall be provided with the application for a Major Home Occupation for a Large
Child Care Home.

7.3.1.3 Adult Care Facilities. Residentially-based care facilities that provide care for adults for part of the
24 hour day shall be treated as family home facilities that provide care for children as set forth in Sections
A and B above.

7.3.2 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as the
principal use of a structure, said facilities shall be located where permitted in Tables 4.2 and 6.2. Such
facilities shall be approved pursuant to any applicable State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements, and any
amendments thereto, except as modified herein.

7.3.2.1 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities may be permitted in a residential district as shown in
Table 4.2 with approval of a Special Zoning Permit subject to the following conditions:

1. The site must be at least 10,000 square feet in area.
2. A solid wall or fence at least six (6) feet high shall be provided and maintained between any outdoor

play area on the site and any contiguous property line in a residential district.
3. The site shall have its main ingress and egress on a major thoroughfare, or on a collector street not

more than 2,640 feet (1/2 mile) distant (by the shortest route) from a major thoroughfare.

7.3.2.2 Commercial child or adult care facilities shall be permitted in any non-residential zoning district as
shown in Table 6.2 without additional conditions.

(Remainder of page left blank intentionally.)

EXHIBIT B
            Section 7.3
   Previous Regulations

lmsnyder
Rectangle



lmsnyder
Image

lmsnyder
Rectangle

lmsnyder
Image



lmsnyder
Image

lmsnyder
Rectangle

lmsnyder
Image



7.3 Child Care and Adult Care Facilities 

7.3.1 Residentially-Based Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as an 
accessory use in a residential structure occupied principally as a residential use, said facilities shall be 
approved pursuant to the Home Occupation Regulations contained in Section 7.2 and as modified herein. The 
State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements for Family Child Care Homes and Large Child Care Homes, and 
any amendments thereto, are hereby adopted, except as modified herein. 

7.3.1.1 Child Care Home. A Child Care Home includes both Family Child Care Homes and Large Child 
Care Homes as defined by the State of Oklahoma, and is a family home which provides care and supervision 
for children for part of the 24-hour day, complying with the minimum requirements set forth by the State of 
Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS). 

A Child Care Home shall be a permitted use in all residential zoning districts as a Minor Home Occupation 
subject to compliance with the performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation, except as modified by the 
following conditions: 
1. Approved hours of operation for a Child Care Home shall be between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 8:00

p.m. Traffic associated with pickup and delivery of children to this family child care home shall also be
limited to these hours of operation.

2. On-street parking is permitted for the pick-up and delivery of children if off-street parking is not feasible.
3. Play areas shall be enclosed with safe fencing; flexibility in materials and height is allowed, provided

safety is ensured and OKDHS requirements are met. Unless in conflict with OKDHS requirements, any
site perimeter fencing shall meet requirements set forth in Section 9.5.3.

4. The performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation concerning sewerage and water usage (Section
7.2.2.A.10), or noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical interference (Section 7.2.2.A.11) shall
not apply to a Child Care Home, except to the extent that such is determined to be remarkable for a Child
Care Home by the Community Development Director or his/her designee.

5. Signage for a Child Care Home shall be limited to that permitted by the Minor Home Occupation
performance criteria.

6. A Child Care Home shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and Local regulations, codes, and
requirements.

7. A copy of the approved license issued by the State of Oklahoma, Department of Human Services,
Washington County, shall be provided with the application for a Minor Home Occupation for a Child
Care Home.

Modifications to these conditions shall be permitted only with approval from the Board of Adjustment as a 
Major Home Occupation. 

7.3.1.2 Adult Care Facilities. Residentially-based care facilities that provide care for adults for part of the 
24 hour day shall be treated as family home facilities that provide care for children as set forth in Section 
7.3.1.1. 

7.3.2 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as the principal 
use of a structure, said facilities shall be located where permitted in Tables 4.2 and 6.2. Such facilities shall 
be approved pursuant to any applicable State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements, and any amendments 
thereto, except as modified herein. 

7.3.2.1 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities may be permitted in a residential district as shown in 
Table 4.2 with approval of a Special Zoning Permit subject to the following conditions: 

1. The site must be at least 10,000 square feet in area.
2. A solid wall or fence at least six (6) feet high shall be provided and maintained between any outdoor

play area on the site and any contiguous property line in a residential district.
3. The site shall have its main ingress and egress on a major thoroughfare, or on a collector street not more

than 2,640 feet (1/2 mile) distant (by the shortest route) from a major thoroughfare.
4. One parking space per 1.5 employees shall be required.

7.3.2.2 Commercial child or adult care facilities shall be permitted in any non-residential zoning district as 
shown in Table 6.2 without additional conditions. 

EXHIBIT B
            Section 7.3
   Amended Regulations

lmsnyder
Rectangle



 
1 

 

 

  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
TO: Bartlesville City Planning Commission 

FROM: Micah Snyder, Senior Planner 

DATE: September 24, 2024 

CASE NO. TA-0924-0001 

Subject: Public hearing and possible action on proposed text amendments to the Zoning Regulations 
for the City of Bartlesville. The proposed revisions shall include modifications to Section 7.3 (Child 
and Adult Care Facilities) and Section 4.2 (Permitted Uses in Residential Districts). 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 

City Staff is proposing text amendments to the Zoning Regulations pertaining to residentially-based 
child care facilities in an effort to reduce regulatory burden on child care providers and align local 
regulations with the minimum standards required by Oklahoma State Statute, Title 10, Chapter 18 
and the Oklahoma Department of Human Services.  

Additionally, the Bartlesville NEXT Strategic Plan, adopted by City Council in July 2022, indicated 
Child Care as the highest priority under Emerging Issues. The Strategic Plan also noted that 
approaches to addressing the local child care shortage could include collaborating with local groups 
to help find solutions to and helping to advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as 
barriers to new facilities. To this end, Staff has collaborated with the Strategic Childcare Committee, 
coordinated by the City Manager’s office, and received feedback that the following proposed 
amendments are favorable. 

Zoning Regulations for residentially-based child care facilities currently have separate requirements 
for facilities that provide care for seven or fewer children (“Family Child Care Home”) and facilities 
that provide care for eight to twelve children (“Large Child Care Home”) for part of the 24-hour day. 
This distinction is in line with the State of Oklahoma’s definitions, but not necessarily its 
requirements. 

Presently, the Zoning Regulations require a Home Occupation Business License for both 
classifications to operate, however Large Child Care Homes must obtain a Major Home Occupation 
License as well as a Special Zoning Permit from the Board of Adjustment. Major Home Occupation 
Business Licenses and Special Zoning Permit applications require a public hearing process that goes 
before the Board of Adjustment. Family Child Care Homes need only a Minor Home Occupation 
Business License, which is processed administratively only with no public hearing. The other 
pertinent difference between the two classifications is that Large Family Child Care Homes are not 
currently limited in the scope of their hours of operation as long as it is only part of the 24-hour day. 
Family Child Care Homes are only permitted to operate between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 



 
2 

Both classifications are currently required to provide sufficient off-street parking spaces for all traffic 
coming to and from the facility for pick-up and delivery of children, and no on-street parking may be 
utilized in conjunction with any part of the operations. Both classifications are also required to 
provide enclosures of specific heights and types around outdoor play areas. 

Because these requirements are locally imposed and may add the barrier of unnecessary regulatory 
burden to potential new facilities, the Zoning Regulations for residentially-based child care facilities 
are proposed to be amended as follows: 

1. Unified Classification for Child Care Homes: 
o Remove the distinction between small and large child care homes. All residentially-

based child care facilities will be classified as "Child Care Homes," regardless of the 
number of children. The state of Oklahoma limits this to 12 children in a home. 

2. Permitting by Right in Residential Districts: 
o The public hearing process to obtain Special Zoning Permit and/or Major Home 

Occupation License for larger operations can be time consuming and cumbersome. 
Therefore, Child Care Homes will be permitted by right in all residential zoning 
districts with a Minor Home Occupation License only, eliminating the need for this 
process unless the facility wishes to request a modification to the requirements. 

3. Updated Performance Standards for Residentially-Based Child Care Minor Home 
Occupation License: 

o Operating Hours: Extend permissible hours of operation from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
 Facilities that wish to operate outside of these hours may still apply for a 

Major Home Occupation License to the Board of Adjustment. 
o Traffic and Parking: Allow on-street parking for drop-off and pick-up if off-street 

parking is not feasible. Eliminate the overall prohibition of associated on-street 
parking. 

o Outdoor Play Areas: Eliminate specific requirements for outdoor play area 
enclosures – Instead, play areas shall be enclosed with safe fencing; flexibility in 
materials and height is allowed, provided safety is ensured and OKDHS 
requirements are met. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

A notice of public hearing for amendments to these sections of the Zoning Regulations was published 
in the Bartlesville Examiner-Enterprise.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to the Zoning Regulations. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Current Regulations for Residentially-Based Child Care Facilities 
 Proposed Changes to Regulations (Redline Version) 
 Proposed Changes to Regulations (Clean Version) 
 Bartlesville Next Strategic Plan 



Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 8

TABLE 4.2-TABLE OF PERMITTED USES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

PERMITTED USES

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS

(See Sec.) 

PARKING 
SPACES 

REQUIRED 
(See Sec.

7.4.2) RA RE/RS 
RM
1/ 

RT
1/ 

Accessory uses, in addition to those accessory uses set forth specifically in 
this list.  None None X X X X

Agricultural Implement Sales and Repair 10.5 None S
Agriculture: accessory uses including storage. None None X X X X
Agriculture: animal and poultry husbandry, beekeeping, dairying and 
pasturage, but not including retail sales on the premises or the feeding of 
offal or garbage.  None None X 
Agriculture: field crops, floriculture, greenhouse, horticulture, nursery, truck 
gardening or viticulture, but not including retail sales on the premises. None None X X X X

Agriculture: retail sales of agricultural products raised on the premises. None None X 

Airport or aircraft landing strip. 7.7.1(1) None X 

Animal Hospital, Pound or Shelter 
7.7.1(2), 

10.5 None S

Art gallery or museum, public. 7.7.1(21)
One/200 sq. 
ft. floor area X X

Auditorium, arena, coliseum, theater or similar facility. 
7.7.1(20) 
7.7.1(21) One/4 seats X X

Bait shop. 10.5 None S
Batching plant, asphaltic or Portland Cement concrete, non-commercial,
temporary.  7.7.2(3) None X X X X

Bed and Breakfast; see Major Home Occupation 
7.7.1(24) &

10.5 S S S S 

Blacksmith, Horseshoeing. 10.5 None S

Cemetery, columbarium or mausoleum. 7.7.1(6) None X 

Ceramic Crafts, manufacture and sale on premises. 10.5 

One/300 sq. 
ft. of floor

area S
Child/Adult Care Facilities 

 Residentially-Based Facilities 
a) Family Child Care Home
b) Large Child Care Home

-Commercial

7.2, 7.3 
7.2, 7.3, 10.5

7.3, 10.5

7.2, 7.3 
7.2, 7.3 
One/1.5

employee 

X 
S
S

X
S
S 

X 
S
S

X
S
S 

Church or other place of worship. 7.7.1(7) 
One/4 seats 
in sanctuary X X X X

Club or Lodge; Private, except those whose chief activity is carried on as a
business.  

7.7.1(8)
10.5 

One/500 sq. 
ft. of floor

area S S S S 
College or University:

a) Auditorium or similar facility.

7.7.1(9), 
7.7.1(20), 
7.7.1(21) One/3 Seats X X X X

b) Dormitory, fraternity, sorority. 7.7.1(10) One/3 Beds X X X X

c) All other facilities other than stadium. 7.7.1(9)
One/500 sq. 
ft. floor area X X X X

Community building, public. 7.7.1(21) 
One/400 sq. 
ft. floor area X X X X

Construction building and/or yard, temporary.  7.7.2(3) None X X X X

Dwelling, multi-family, including duplex None 

Three/2
dwelling 

units X X

current regulations



Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 43

7.3 Child Care and Adult Care Facilities

7.3.1 Residentially-Based Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as an
accessory use in a residential structure occupied principally as a residential use, said facilities shall be
approved pursuant to the Home Occupation Regulations contained in Section 7.2 and as modified herein.
The State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements for Family Child Care Homes and Large Child Care
Homes, and any amendments thereto, are hereby adopted, except as modified herein.

7.3.1.1 Family Child Care Home. A Family Child Care Home is a family home which provides care and
protection for seven or fewer children for part of the 24-hour day. The total number of children in a family
child care home includes children under five years of age who live in the home and are present in the home
while children are in care, foster children twelve years of age and younger who live in the home and are
present in the home while children are in care; and the children of any substitute or assistant caregiver.

A Family Child Care Home shall be a permitted use in all residential zoning districts as a Minor Home
Occupation subject to compliance with the performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation, except as
modified by the following conditions:
1. Approved hours of operation for a Family Child Care Home shall be between the hours of 7:00 a.m.

and 7:00 p.m. Traffic associated with pickup and delivery of children to this family child care home
shall also be limited to these hours of operation. Traffic associated with the Family Child Care Home
shall not exceed an average of one (1) vehicle per hour during approved hours of operation.

2. Sufficient off-street parking area must be provided by on-site to accommodate all traffic coming to and
from the Family Child Care Home for the pick-up and delivery of children. If such off-street parking is
not available on site due to the size or location of the site, such off-street parking can be provided on
other property not more than four hundred (400) feet distant from the site with the written consent of
the property owner. On-street parking shall not be utilized in conjunction with the operation of a
Family Child Care Home.

3. All outdoor play areas for the Family Child Care Home shall be permitted only in an approved rear or
side yard and shall be enclosed with a cyclone or comparable fencing at least 4 feet high.

4. The performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation concerning sewerage and water usage (Section
7.2.2.A.10), or noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical interference (Section 7.2.2.A.11) shall
not apply to a Family Child Care Home, except to the extent that such is determined to be remarkable
for a Family Child Care Home by the Community Development Director or his/her designee.

5. Signage for a Family Child Care Home shall be limited to that permitted by the Minor Home
Occupation performance criteria.

6. A Family Child Care Home shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and Local regulations,
codes, and requirements.

7. A copy of the approved license issued by the State of Oklahoma, Department of Human Services,
Washington County, shall be provided with the application for a Minor Home Occupation for a Family
Child Care Home.

Modifications to these conditions shall be permitted only with approval from the Board of Adjustment as a
Major Home Occupation.

7.3.1.2 Large Child Care Home. A Large Child Care Home is a residential family home that provides care
and supervision for eight to twelve children for part of the 24-hour day. The total number of children in a
family child care home includes children under five years of age who live in the home and are present in
the home while children are in care, foster children twelve years of age and younger who live in the home
and are present in the home while children are in care; and the children of any substitute or assistant
caregiver.

A Large Child Care Home shall be permitted in all residential zoning districts subject to the granting of a
Special Zoning Permit by the Board of Adjustment as a Major Home Occupation subject to compliance
with the performance criteria for a Major Home Occupation, except as modified by the following
conditions:

1. Approved hours of operation for a Family Child Care Home may include any part, but not all, of the
24-hour day, as declared in the approved Major Home Occupation Permit. Traffic associated with
pickup and delivery of children to this Large Child Care Home shall also be limited to these approved

current regulations



Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 44

hours of operation. Traffic associated with the Large Child Care Home shall not exceed an average of
one (1) vehicle per hour during approved hours of operation.

2. Sufficient off-street parking area must be provided by on-site to accommodate all traffic coming to and
from the Large Child Care Home for the pick-up and delivery of children. If such off-street parking is
not available on site due to the size or location of the site, such off-street parking can be provided on
other property not more than four hundred (400) feet distant from the site with the written consent of
the property owner. On-street parking shall not be utilized in conjunction with the operation of a Large
Child Care Home.

3. All outdoor play areas for the Large Child Care Home shall be permitted only in an approved rear or
side yard and shall be enclosed with an opaque fence at least six (6) feet high.

4. The performance criteria for a Major Home Occupation concerning sewerage and water usage (Section
7.2.2.B.10), or noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical interference (Section 7.2.2.B.11) shall
not apply to a Large Child Care Home, except to the extent that such is determined to be remarkable
for a Large Child Care Home by the Community Development Director or his/her designee.

5. Signage for a Family Child Care Home shall be limited to that declared in the approved Major Home
Occupation Permit.

6. A Large Child Care Home shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and Local regulations, codes,
and requirements.

7. A copy of the approved license issued by the State of Oklahoma, Department of Human Services,
Washington County, shall be provided with the application for a Major Home Occupation for a Large
Child Care Home.

7.3.1.3 Adult Care Facilities. Residentially-based care facilities that provide care for adults for part of the
24 hour day shall be treated as family home facilities that provide care for children as set forth in Sections
A and B above.

7.3.2 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as the
principal use of a structure, said facilities shall be located where permitted in Tables 4.2 and 6.2. Such
facilities shall be approved pursuant to any applicable State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements, and any
amendments thereto, except as modified herein.

7.3.2.1 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities may be permitted in a residential district as shown in
Table 4.2 with approval of a Special Zoning Permit subject to the following conditions:

1. The site must be at least 10,000 square feet in area.
2. A solid wall or fence at least six (6) feet high shall be provided and maintained between any outdoor

play area on the site and any contiguous property line in a residential district.
3. The site shall have its main ingress and egress on a major thoroughfare, or on a collector street not

more than 2,640 feet (1/2 mile) distant (by the shortest route) from a major thoroughfare.

7.3.2.2 Commercial child or adult care facilities shall be permitted in any non-residential zoning district as
shown in Table 6.2 without additional conditions.

(Remainder of page left blank intentionally.)

current regulations









Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 8 

TABLE 4.2-TABLE OF PERMITTED USES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

PERMITTED USES 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS 

(See Sec.) 

PARKING 
SPACES 

REQUIRED 
(See Sec. 

7.4.2) RA RE/RS 
RM 
1/ 

RT 
1/ 

Accessory uses, in addition to those accessory uses set forth specifically in 
this list. None None X X X X 
Agricultural Implement Sales and Repair 10.5 None S 

Agriculture: accessory uses including storage. None None X X X X 
Agriculture: animal and poultry husbandry, beekeeping, dairying and 
pasturage, but not including retail sales on the premises or the feeding of 
offal or garbage. None None X 
Agriculture: field crops, floriculture, greenhouse, horticulture, nursery, truck 
gardening or viticulture, but not including retail sales on the premises. None None X X X X 
Agriculture: retail sales of agricultural products raised on the premises. None None X 
Airport or aircraft landing strip. 7.7.1(1) None X 

Animal Hospital, Pound or Shelter 
7.7.1(2), 

10.5 None S 

Art gallery or museum, public. 7.7.1(21) 
One/200 sq. 
ft. floor area X X 

Auditorium, arena, coliseum, theater or similar facility. 
7.7.1(20) 
7.7.1(21) One/4 seats X X 

Bait shop. 10.5 None S 
Batching plant, asphaltic or Portland Cement concrete, non-commercial, 
temporary. 7.7.2(3) None X X X X 

Bed and Breakfast; see Major Home Occupation 
7.7.1(24) & 

10.5 S S S S 
Blacksmith, Horseshoeing. 10.5 None S 
Cemetery, columbarium or mausoleum. 7.7.1(6) None X 

Ceramic Crafts, manufacture and sale on premises. 10.5 

One/300 sq. 
ft. of floor 

area S 
Child/Adult Care Facilities 

Residentially-Based Facilities 
Commercial Facilities 

7.2, 7.3 
7.3, 10.5 

7.2, 7.3 
7.3 

X 
S 

X 
S 

X 
S 

X 
S 

Church or other place of worship. 7.7.1(7) 
One/4 seats 
in sanctuary X X X X 

Club or Lodge; Private, except those whose chief activity is carried on as a 
business. 

7.7.1(8) 
10.5 

One/500 sq. 
ft. of floor 

area S S S S 
College or University: 

a) Auditorium or similar facility.

7.7.1(9), 
7.7.1(20), 
7.7.1(21) One/3 Seats X X X X 

b) Dormitory, fraternity, sorority. 7.7.1(10) One/3 Beds X X X X 

c) All other facilities other than stadium. 7.7.1(9) 
One/500 sq. 
ft. floor area X X X X 

proposed



Zoning Regulations as Amended through January 5, 2015 Page 1 

7.3 Child Care and Adult Care Facilities 

7.3.1 Residentially-Based Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as an 
accessory use in a residential structure occupied principally as a residential use, said facilities shall be 
approved pursuant to the Home Occupation Regulations contained in Section 7.2 and as modified herein. The 
State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements for Family Child Care Homes and Large Child Care Homes, and 
any amendments thereto, are hereby adopted, except as modified herein. 

7.3.1.1 Child Care Home. A Child Care Home includes both Family Child Care Homes and Large Child 
Care Homes as defined by the State of Oklahoma, and is a family home which provides care and supervision 
for children for part of the 24-hour day, complying with the minimum requirements set forth by the State of 
Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS). 

A Child Care Home shall be a permitted use in all residential zoning districts as a Minor Home Occupation 
subject to compliance with the performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation, except as modified by the 
following conditions: 
1. Approved hours of operation for a Child Care Home shall be between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 8:00

p.m. Traffic associated with pickup and delivery of children to this family child care home shall also be
limited to these hours of operation.

2. On-street parking is permitted for the pick-up and delivery of children if off-street parking is not feasible.
3. Play areas shall be enclosed with safe fencing; flexibility in materials and height is allowed, provided

safety is ensured and OKDHS requirements are met. Unless in conflict with OKDHS requirements, any
site perimeter fencing shall meet requirements set forth in Section 9.5.3.

4. The performance criteria for a Minor Home Occupation concerning sewerage and water usage (Section
7.2.2.A.10), or noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical interference (Section 7.2.2.A.11) shall
not apply to a Child Care Home, except to the extent that such is determined to be remarkable for a Child
Care Home by the Community Development Director or his/her designee.

5. Signage for a Child Care Home shall be limited to that permitted by the Minor Home Occupation
performance criteria.

6. A Child Care Home shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and Local regulations, codes, and
requirements.

7. A copy of the approved license issued by the State of Oklahoma, Department of Human Services,
Washington County, shall be provided with the application for a Minor Home Occupation for a Child
Care Home.

Modifications to these conditions shall be permitted only with approval from the Board of Adjustment as a 
Major Home Occupation. 

7.3.1.2 Adult Care Facilities. Residentially-based care facilities that provide care for adults for part of the 
24 hour day shall be treated as family home facilities that provide care for children as set forth in Section 
7.3.1.1. 

7.3.2 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities. Where child or adult care facilities are provided as the principal 
use of a structure, said facilities shall be located where permitted in Tables 4.2 and 6.2. Such facilities shall 
be approved pursuant to any applicable State of Oklahoma Licensing Requirements, and any amendments 
thereto, except as modified herein. 

7.3.2.1 Commercial Child or Adult Care Facilities may be permitted in a residential district as shown in 
Table 4.2 with approval of a Special Zoning Permit subject to the following conditions: 

1. The site must be at least 10,000 square feet in area.
2. A solid wall or fence at least six (6) feet high shall be provided and maintained between any outdoor

play area on the site and any contiguous property line in a residential district.
3. The site shall have its main ingress and egress on a major thoroughfare, or on a collector street not more

than 2,640 feet (1/2 mile) distant (by the shortest route) from a major thoroughfare.
4. One parking space per 1.5 employees shall be required.

7.3.2.2 Commercial child or adult care facilities shall be permitted in any non-residential zoning district as 
shown in Table 6.2 without additional conditions. 

proposed





INTEGRITY
Do the right thing; the rest will 
follow. We hold ourselves to the 
highest level of honesty, truthfulness 
and ethical conduct.

COMMUNITY
We are both responsive and 
proactive in our efforts to help 
Bartlesville realize our potential.

SERVICE 
We are dedicated to providing 
effective and timely customer service 
with courtesy and respect in a 
fiscally sound manner.

TEAMWORK
We collaborate on common goals for 
the greater good of our community.

COMMUNICATION
We share information and ideas in  
a clear, open and timely manner.

INNOVATIVE
Ours is a “do things differently, 
do different things” mindset in our 
approach as community builders.

OUR  
VISION
A Leading 
Community  
by Choice

OUR 
MISSION

Through collaboration,  
we strive to provide 
exceptional public  

services and enhance  
the distinctive character  

of our community.

OUR VALUES 



STRATEGIC PRIORITIES KEY OBJECTIVES

FINANCIAL 
STRENGTH AND 
OPERATIONAL 
EXCELLENCE

Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department 
collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture  
and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations 
for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward 
based evaluation process, and furthering integration of IT systems into 
our operating departments.

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a 
standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets,  
multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

EFFECTIVE 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
NETWORK

Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC  
VITALITY

Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, 
regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the 
character of our community.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to 
optimize development.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young 
professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY 
CHARACTER

Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our 
parks, recreation and transportation systems.

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

EMERGING  
ISSUES

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on 
existing needs and potential solution that address (in order of priority) 
Child Care, Housing, Homelessness and Others to be Determined.



14.

























































































































































































15.











Agenda Item ___ 
September 24, 2024 

Prepared by Mike Bailey 
Administration 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss potential cost recovery methods for police and other city department expenses related to 
special events. 
 
Attachments: 

Sample Special Event Documents from Other Cities 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
At our regular meeting in September 2024, Councilmember Dorsey expressed concern about the 
costs for policing of special events. He asked Staff to investigate potential methods for recovering 
these costs. Detailed in this memo are my research results and conclusions. 
 
There were many questions to be answered in order to offer reasonable, legal policy 
recommendations to the City Council. The most significant are addressed below. 
 

• Can we require event holders to pay for Bartlesville police officers as security at their 
events? 

o Yes. We can if their event requires a special event permit, or if they lease a public 
space for their event. 

• Can different types of events be charged different rates? 
o Yes, but the rate must be based on factors that are independent of the event’s 

content. In other words, we cannot discriminate based on who puts the event on, 
who attends the event, or what the content of the event is. 

• Can we charge an event for police officers that were related to a protest of their event? 
o I do not believe we can, since this would be related to the content of their event. I 

also do not believe we can charge protestors for the police officers related to their 
protest, since protests do not require special event permits or a lease of space. 

• What would be some criteria that we could use for charging for police officers at an event? 
o The easiest would be based on number of attendees, but that may not always work. 

For instance, a 5k covers a large area, but may have relatively few attendees. 
Whereas, a play in the park may draw significantly more people, but they will be 
more condensed. There are also considerations for alcohol served at some events, 
traffic control, etc. And finally, many events already hire police officers and have 
arrangements with reserve officers for crowd and traffic control and security. 

 
With these questions as a basis for understanding the issue, there are a number of methods that 
could be used to charge for officers at special events, but the most obvious and unbiased is based 
on the average daily (or perhaps average hourly) attendance of the event.  



It would be simple to assign a certain number of officers based on the attendees of an event, but 
we would need to research what ratio is appropriate. However, for purposes of illustration, I’ve 
chosen 1 police officer per 1,000 attendees. This allows us to utilize some basic assumptions and 
examine the financial impact on our larger events. The amounts used in the table below are rough 
estimates using the best data publicly available. It is likely that actual attendance at events would 
be significantly different than those used in this estimate, but this is still a valid illustration of the 
potential impacts of this method. 
 

 
 
In its simplest form, utilizing a ratio of officers to attendees creates wildly different rates for our 
events.  Unexpectedly, the variable that has the greatest impact on the total cost is actually the 
length of the event and not just the total number of attendees.  Events that cover days (or even 
months) will have a much higher total cost than an event that lasts only hours. 
 
There are ways to balance this somewhat by creating maximums or allowing event holders to opt 
out.  However, both of these methods could place all or a majority of the cost back on the 
municipality if the City deems that additional officers are needed. 
 
Of all the events listed above, I am only aware of one that currently pays for security, Pride. For 
this event, the number of off duty officers that are hired for security, is the same as the calculated 
amount, so in this example, Pride’s expenditures for security would remain relatively unchanged. 
 
However, Fantasyland of Lights, Sunfest, Christmas in the Ville, etc. generally do not invest 
substantial amounts in security. As such, the increases for these events could be cost prohibitive. 
One other option for a basis for determining the fee for security would be the area of the event. 
However, a quick analysis showed that this method produced more uneven results than the 
previous method. As such, it is not an option without serious constraints that again, must not be 
based on the content of the event. 
 
There are other options including a mutually negotiated number of officers. However, if 
agreement cannot be reached or if the event holder is unwilling to provide the necessary officers 
that our Police Department feels are necessary, what is the solution?  Ultimately, I believe this 
would leave us in the same position as we are now, and we would provide the appropriate number 
of officers to ensure the public safety and enforcement of our laws.  

 Avg Daily 
Attendance 

 Officers 
(1/1000) 

  Hrly Cost/ 
Officer 

 Hours 
for Event 

 Total Cost 
(1/100) 

Sunfest 10,000        10            50$             30            15,000$    
Fantasyland of Lights 500              1              50$             120          3,000$      
Back to Bartlesville Fly-In 1,500           2              50$             24            1,800$      
Christmas in the Ville 500              1              50$             70            1,750$      
Freedom Fest 5,000           5              50$             5              1,250$      
Christmas Parade 5,000           5              50$             3              750$         
Pride 2,000           2              50$             7              700$         
Hot Street Party 2,000           2              50$             5              500$         
CommUNITY Fest 2,000           2              50$             5              500$         
Shamrock the Ville 500              1              50$             2              50$            
Sizzlin Summer Movie Night 500              1              50$             2              50$            



I attempted to find models from other municipalities to use, but it appears that if the City 
determines the number of officers needed, there does not appear to be an effective way to offset 
costs that exceed amounts that the event holder believes are necessary. I have attached various 
policies/application forms that I found somewhat informative. They include: 
 

• Carrollton, TX – their application states that “applicant may be required to provide police 
officers for security, crowd control, and traffic control at the special event… number of 
police officers… determined by the Carrollton Police Department…” This seems to 
indicate that the PD sets the number of officers, but I am uncertain how it would work in 
practice. Does the PD have a set of objective criteria to prevent claims of discrimination 
based on content? What if there is a disagreement on the number of officers required? 
 

• Denton, TX – their application appears to leave the number of officers up to the applicant. 
 

• Oklahoma City, OK – their application states that applicant should use police for security 
and safety. However, it specifically states that, “Police Special Events team can provide 
recommendations or assist you…” This again appears to leave the number of officers 
largely up to the applicant. 

 
• Lafayette, LA – application states, “If your event is open to the public, law enforcement 

security may be required.  If law enforcement security is required, it must be approved 
prior to your permit being issued.” There are no specifics, but the application does later 
ask how many officers and what jurisdiction will provide them. It’s important to note that 
their application appears to be for the sale of alcoholic beverages and not just a general 
special event. 

 
• Edmond, OK – application states, “The Edmond Police Department (EPD) should be 

hired for safety and security at public events.” This again seems to be at the discretion of 
the applicant.  However, if alcohol is being served, a police officer is required. This 
section is very specific, but only requires a single officer.  “Events that elect to serve 
Alcohol must absorb the expense of a law enforcement officer on site during festival 
hours.” This is the clearest example of a policy requiring an officer and requiring the 
event holder to pay the cost, but it is limited solely to alcohol beverage sales. 

 
• Fayetteville, AR – application puts responsibility on applicant to provide security, but 

allows applicant to choose number of officers it wishes to use. It then provides a statement 
that “Fayetteville Police Department (FPD) will review and determine if there is adequate 
security; FPD may request additional security for your event.” This item seems to allow 
for flexibility in determining the number of officers and requiring the event holder to pay 
the costs.  However, I don’t know how this would work in practice. I’ve seen other 
applications that listed the criteria that the PD would use to evaluate necessary security. 

 
In short, I do not believe that there is an easy metric that can be applied to all events to determine 
minimum security. Instead, if we want to require security and require event holders to pay for it, 
then we should consider a framework approach. A framework would incorporate many risk 
factors such as number of attendees, presence of alcohol, area of event, traffic control needed, 
history of event, etc. As we have done in the past, this could be left up to the PD to determine. It 
may be that some events do not require security, and others do based on the risk assessment.  



This type of metric will be the most flexible and accurate, but it is also the most likely to create 
disagreement between event holders and the City. The framework and decision-making process 
would need to be well documented and free of content-based bias, or we would likely find 
ourselves in an indefensible position. 
 
I also believe it is appropriate to consider our most recent event that required security and 
determine how it would have operated under this approach. I have broken the analysis into the 
same types of assignments that were included in the ordinance. 
 

• Officers assigned to patrol the event area for safety and security. I believe under a 
reasonable policy that these could have been the responsibility of the event holder. 

• Officers assigned to the area of protest/counter protest. As these are actually separate, 
protected events, I do not believe that the event holder would be responsible for them, 
and these officers would have been the responsibility of the City. 

• Officers assigned to observe the performance. These officers are not related to the 
safety and security of the event, so I do not believe they would have been the event 
holder’s responsibility. The presence of these officers was related to reports of possible 
criminal activity which is a core function of the police department. These officers would 
have been the responsibility of the City. 

 
There were also a few other areas of cost that should be considered related to this event.  As we 
wished to have a record of all interactions at this event, Council instructed all officers to utilize 
their body worn cameras at all times. As our cameras are approaching end of life, there were 
concerns about battery life, so I authorized the PD to lease 2 surveillance towers to supplement 
our cameras. We also leased barricades to provide better safety and crowd control. And finally, 
due to the number of officers onsite and the complexity of the operation, we deployed command 
staff to monitor the event and our responses. 
 
Which of these expenses could/should be passed on to the event holder? 
 

• Barricades – I believe that it would be reasonable to charge for the use of barricades, but 
if we charge for these, then this would impact parades and other events that use our 
barriers for traffic control. We currently allow the use of these at no cost. 

• Surveillance Towers – I do not believe we could charge these to an event, but it will be 
unusual that we feel the need to utilize these. 

• Command Staff – we could create a reasonable structure that would require corporals, 
sergeants, lieutenants, and even captains or DCs based on the number of officers deployed 
at a time. 

 
While it would certainly be feasible to create a consistent policy to recover some of the costs 
related to special event security, it’s important to consider the adverse impacts that this will have 
on our special events. Our events from Sunfest to OKM to Christmas in the Ville are a source of 
millions of dollars of revenue to our local economy, and are an important part of the fabric of our 
community. Many of these events struggle financially, and any additional costs may adversely 
impact the number of events that are held here. 
 

  



If Council would like to consider a policy, then it would be advisable as a next step for Staff to 
invite the leadership of these events to a meeting to determine their thoughts and the impact that 
it will have on them. If Council wishes to gather further information in this topic, then City Staff 
will begin coordinating these meetings. 
 
Please schedule this item for discussion only at our October regular meeting. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Discussion only. 



 This section office use only 

 

 Application #  Receipt #  

 Cash  CC  Phone order  

Special Event 
Check #  Balance due  

Permit type  Plan #  TIFF #  

 

Date  

⚫ All application fees are non-refundable  ⚫ All credit card transactions include a 2% convenience fee  ⚫ Permits and approved 
plans must be posted on site as failure to post may result in re-inspection fee  ⚫ City will call when permit is ready for pickup 
⚫ Application must be completed in its entirety prior to submittal 

 

 
BUILDING INSPECTION  |  1945 EAST JACKSON ROAD, CARROLLTON, TX 75006  |  972.466.3225  |  FAX 972.466.3220 

BLDGINSP@CITYOFCARROLLTON.COM  |  OFFICE HOURS:  MONDAY-THURSDAY 7:30 AM-5:30 PM  |  FRIDAY 7:30 AM-11:30 AM 
 

Job Address  

Property owner name  Contact name  

Phone  Email  

Organization   Profit        Non-profit 

Event title  Event location  

Note: 

• $25.00 administrative processing fee will be added to all special events, parade and block party permits, per the ordinance. 

• $250.00 deposit required for barricade setup/cleanup for special events on City property or parks, or within City R.O.W. 

• Special Events permit application shall be made 10 business days prior to the event date. 

• Block Party permit application shall be made 7 business days prior to the event date. 

• Parade participant shall be defined as any unit of the parade such as an animal, a person, vehicle, float, band, identifiable 
group, or other similar unit  

• All parades require $25 application fee plus $25 administrative fee plus Police involvement fee (TBD by Police Dept.) 

• Parade permit application shall be made not less than 20 business days nor more than 60 business days prior to the date and 
time of the commencement of the parade 

Check type of event 

  Special Events 
  Picnic/party 
  Festival 
  Other:  ____________________ 
Fee: $50 plus $25 administrative fee 
 

  Parade (attach a separate map specific route) 
  Religious procession 
  Other:  ____________________ 
Fee: $25 plus $25 administrative fee plus Police fee, 

if applicable 

  Block Party 
  Citizen Night Out 
  HOA function 
  Other:  ____________________ 
Fee: $25 plus $25 administrative fee 
 

Start date  End date  Setup time  Teardown time  

Indicate start and stop times for each day involved for event/parade 

Event day Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Start time        

Stop time        

Parade staging location  

Parade ending location  

Parade route  

Stationary performance   Yes   No  Location  

# of persons  # of motorized vehicles  # of other units  

# of animals  # of floats  Total # of units  

Application continues on next page 

 

mailto:BLDGINSP@CITYOFCARROLLTON.COM


Special Events Application p. 2 

 

 
 

Parking spaces will be utilized   Yes   No  # of parking spaces provided  

Fire lanes will be utilized   Yes   No  Off-site parking will be utilized   Yes   No     If yes, submit owner’s permission letter 

Provide site plan and location of all food vendors 

 
Place a check next to the items that will be utilized and indicate on site plan. 
Additional fees and other permits or reservations may be required. 

  Alcohol        Giveaway     Sales 
TABC permit required for alcohol sales prior to Special Events application submittal. For 
more information, contact TABC at 214-688-1603; Dallas 214-678-4000; Denton 940-349-
2877. 

  Animals  

  Banners  

  Barricades/traffic cones, applicant 
provided 

Provide barricade locations. All barricades will be supplied by the applicant. No barricades 
will be placed on City R.O.W. 

  Barricades/traffic cones, City 
provided 

Fee charged based on barricades needed. A $250.00 deposit may be required. Failure to 
meet approved setup and removal timeframes shall result in forfeiture of deposit fees 
established in Section 31.01. Traffic Division 972-466-9872 

  Bleachers  

  Electricity  

  Fencing  

  Fireworks Fire Department 972-466-3210 

  Food/beverage/merchandise Giveaway    Sales   Environmental Services 972-466-3060 

  Food sales vendors # Associated with event:  
Provide a separate list of all vendors and 
their contact information 

  Hot air balloon  #  Supplier  Fire retardant letter-200 sf. or more 

  Inflatable device #  Supplier  Fire retardant letter-200 sf. or more 

  Liquid propane gas Fire Department 972-466-3210 

  Music (amplified) Not allowed after 11:00 p.m. per ordinance 

  Park property (City) Parks & Recreation Department 972-466-9800 or 972-466-9810 

  Police officers #   

Additional cost TBD by Police Department. For larger parades or Special 
Events security paid for by applicant, services must be arranged by 
applicant through Police Department prior to event. Police Dept./Extra 
Job Unit 972-466-3290 

  Restrooms (portable) #  Supplier’s phone number: 

  Rides/equipment (motorized) #  Lot  
Special Use Permit & insurance required; 
contact Planning 972-466-3040 

  Tent Size  Fire retardant letter-200 sf. or more 

Application continues on next page 

  



Special Events Application p. 3 

 

 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
 If the estimated number of participants and spectators exceeds 500 during any day of the special event, or for a block party/street 
closure, the applicant shall, at least 30 days before the special event begins, deliver written notice to all owners or occupants of real 
property abutting the boundaries of the area in which the special event will be conducted, including all owners or occupants of real 
property abutting the route of a progressive event such as a parade or block party.  The notice must include the following 
information:  (1) event date, time and location, (2) statement that an application for a special event has been filed with the City of 
Carrollton. 
 

 
PARADE ORDINANCE STATEMENT 
We, the undersigned, acknowledge that we have read, and agree to the following statements relating to the City of Carrollton, TX’s 
Parade Ordinance (Ordinance No. 3121 of the City of Carrollton, amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 117). 
1) That no individuals under the age of 11 years old will be allowed to walk, march, or ride any self-propelled vehicle in the 

parade on arterial streets as defined by the City of Carrollton’s Thoroughfare Plan. 
2) That each marching unit or organization will only be allowed to conduct a maximum of one stationary performance at a 

specified and approved location during the parade route. 
3) That the undersigned has received authorization from the property owner(s)/manager(s) for use of their property for the 

parade assembly and disassembly areas. 
4) That the parade assembly and disassembly will be directed and orderly so as not to block traffic flow. 
5) That, if necessary, the Transportation or Police Departments may change the parade route. 
6) That the City Manager or designee may revoke a parade permit for any of the stated reasons below, though not limited to: 

a) If the information contained in the application for a parade permit is found to be inaccurate in any material detail. 
b) If the parade fails to begin within 30 minutes of the appointed time of commencement. 

If the applicant of a parade with more than 100 estimated participants or more than 25 parade units does not provide the final 
parade participation count at least seven days before the scheduled date of the parade. 
 

 
INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
1) As a condition of a special event permit being issued, the permit holder acknowledges that they have voluntarily applied for 

a special event permit that in consideration of the privileges associated therewith, we agree to PROTECT, INDEMNIFY and 
HOLD HARMLESS, the City, its officers, agents and employees, from and against suits, actions, claims, losses, liability or 
damage of any character, and from and against costs and expenses including attorney fees incidental to the defense of such 
suits, actions, claims, losses, damage or liability on account of injury, death or otherwise, to any person or damage to any 
property, arising from any negligent act, error or omission of the undersigned, its officers, employees or agents, arising out 
of, resulting from, or caused by any act occurring as a result of the exercise of the privileges granted by this permit. 

2) We agree that this INDEMNITY AGREEMENT is intended to be as broad and inclusive as is permitted by the laws of the State 
of Texas, and that if any portion is held invalid, then it is agreed that the balance shall, notwithstanding, continue in full legal 
force and effect. 

3) This agreement contains the entire agreement of the undersigned and the City of Carrollton, and may not be modified or 
altered without the express written consent of the City of Carrollton. 

4) This agreement is interpreted by Texas law and is performable for all purposes in the County of Dallas, State of Texas, the 
County of Collin, State of Texas or the County of Denton, State of Texas. 

 

 
SECURITY, CROWD CONTROL AND TRAFFIC CONTROL 
The applicant may be required to provide police officers for security, crowd control, and traffic control at the special event.  The 
total number of police officers working at the special event is determined by the Carrollton Police Department, and in some cases 
may use planning variables, including: (1) the estimated number of participants and spectators; (2) the availability of alcoholic 
beverages; (3) topography and size of the event location; (4) weather conditions; (5) the time of day during which the special 
event is conducted; (6) the need for street closures or rerouting of vehicular or pedestrian traffic; and, (7) the history of the 
particular special event. 
 

Application continues on next page 

 
  



Special Events Application p. 4 

 

 
 

 
 

By signing below, I hereby certify that I have read and examined this application and know the same to be true and correct. All 
provisions of laws and ordinances governing this type of work will be complied with whether specified herein or not. The granting 
of a permit does not presume to give authority to violate or cancel the provisions of any state or local law regulating construction 
or the performance of construction. The issuance of any permit neither exempts nor modifies any covenants, deed restrictions, city 
ordinances and/or state or federal laws, whether herein specified or not. 

 

To have the City mail the permit and plans, please provide a correctly-sized, stamped, self-addressed envelope. 

Check ensuing pages of application for more information 

 

Name  Signature  

Phone  Email  

 

THIS SECTION OFFICE USE ONLY 

Special Events Parade or Block Party 

  

  Elliot Reep, Emergency Management Coordinator    Elliot Reep, Emergency Management Coordinator  

  Maricarmen Palomares-Garcia, Emergency Mgmt Specialist   Maricarmen Palomares-Garcia, Emergency Mgmt Specialist 

  Herb Cavenaugh, Fire Prevention   Herb Cavenaugh, Fire Prevention 

  Charles Monroe, Police   Charles Monroe, Police 

  Michael Brighton, Traffic (if City-provided barricades)   Michael Brighton, Traffic (all parades or block parties) 

  Krista Pender, Environmental Services   Tom Hammons, Transportation 

  Scott Whitaker, Parks & Recreation  

 
 

Addison Holmes, Emergency Management Specialist Addison Holmes, Emergency Management Specialist



Special Events Application p. 5 

 

 
 

 
 

Special Events with Food Vendors 

No food sales  $50.00 plus $25 administrative fee 

Food sales with 1 – 2 vendors $90.00 plus $25 administrative fee 

Food sales with 3 – 5 vendors $130.00 plus $25 administrative fee 

Food sales with 6 – 10 vendors $210.00 plus $25 administrative fee 

Food sales with 11-15 vendors $290.00 plus $25 administrative fee 

Food sales with Over 15 vendors $370.00 plus $25 administrative fee 

No food sales  $50.00 plus $25 administrative fee 

 

Services Provided by the City 

 Parade (*Note below) Block Party Special Events 

Traffic Operations 
972-466-9872 

Barricades/cones Barricades Call for barricades 

Police Department 
972-466-3290 

Officers provided as required—
call for service 

Call for service Call for service 

Fire Department 
972-466-3070 

Provide fire equipment as 
available 

Call for service Stand by for emergency at 
larger events 

Parks & Recreation 
972-466-9800 Or 9810 

  Call for reservations 
 

Environmental Services 
972-466-3060 

 Health & sanitation 
Contact Environmental Services 
for more information 

Health & sanitation 
Contact Environmental 
Services for more information 

*Note: Carrollton Police Dept. will require additional officers and an additional fee if parade has more than 100 participants. 

Submit complete application to 
Building Inspection 

Permit process center 

Block Party 
Submit written application 7 business 

days prior to block party. 
 

Special Events 
Submit written application 10 business 

days prior to special event 

*Parade 
Submit written application 20 
business days prior to parade 

Building Inspection manager Building Inspection manager 

• Transportation Division 

• Streets Division 

• Traffic Operations 

• Fire Department 

• Police Department 

Permit process center 

Issue permit 

• Transportation Department 

• Fire Department 

• Police Department 

• Parks Department 

• Marketing Services 

• Environmental Services 

Special Events Permit Process 



Special Events Application p. 6 

 

 
 

Special Events Ordinance Requirements 
Code of Ordinance Chapter 117 

 
DEFINITION:  Special events are temporary activities that are abnormal to the specific site when needs of traffic, parking, 
restrooms, crowds, zoning, etc. exceed the original design and intent of the site. 
 
This article does not apply to temporary activities occurring on property appropriately zoned to permit the activity. 
 
In the event that provisions contained herein conflict with other ordinance provisions regulating temporary activities, the 
provisions contained herein shall govern. 
 
PERMITS: 

1. PERMIT REQUIRED. It shall be unlawful for any person to conduct a special event, parade or block party without 
first having obtained a permit from the office of Building Inspection and paying the prescribed fee. 

 
2. PERMIT FEE. The fee for a special event is $50.00, plus $25.00 administration fee. 

 
3. APPLICATION FOR PERMIT. A person seeking a special event permit shall file an application with the Building 

Official upon the form provided herein at least ten (10) business days before the date of the special event. 
 

4. SIGN PERMITS. Temporary signage will be allowed without permits; however, all off-site signage must comply with 
city ordinances governing temporary signs. 

 
5. SPECIAL USE PERMIT (SUP) REQUIRED. Traveling circuses, carnivals, amusement rides and large entertainment 

events will be allowed on private property by an SUP even if in conjunction with a special event permit. Each 
amusement ride will provide the insurance and inspection certificate as required by the State Board of Insurance. 
Special use permits require a minimum of ninety (90) days for approval. 

 
6. REVOCATION OF PERMIT. At any time the Building Official may, after notice to the applicant, revoke the permit on 

a finding that the preparations for the event have not been carried out as stated in the application or the 
conditions imposed by the permit have not been met. 

 
REQUIREMENTS: 
 

1. DURATION OF THE PERMIT. Special events are limited to three (3) per calendar year for a site. The permit granted 
under the terms of these guidelines shall not exceed a seven (7) consecutive day period 

 
Exception: The downtown area may have fifteen (15) special events per calendar year. "Downtown area" is more 
particularly described as the area having boundaries that prescribe a trapezoid formed by Belt Line Road, Missouri-Kansas 
Texas Railroad, Fifth Street and the I-35N service road. 
 

2. LOCATION. Special events will be allowed on property that is used for non-residential uses. 
 

3. USE OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY PROHIBITED. Any use of the public right-of-way is prohibited. 
 
Exceptions: 
 

1. In conjunction with the Old Downtown Association located in the downtown area as described in Requirement No. 
one (1), listed above. 

 



Special Events Application p. 7 

 

 
 

2. As approved by City Council after a public hearing. Only one (1) event per site per calendar year shall be allowed 
on a public street designated by the Transportation Plan as a Major Collector Undivided (C4U) or smaller. The 
following shall be provided by the applicant: 

 
a. Written agreement to indemnify the city for claims of injury or damage supported by a policy of insurance 

for $500,000 of General Liability. 
 
b. All costs for preparation, implementation, and clean-up related to the event. 
 
c. Traffic Impact Analysis which includes, at a minimum, the following: 

 
1. Alternate traffic routes and detours 
2. Parking plan 
3. Provision for alternate site access for adjacent property or permission of property owner and 

occupant to block access 
4. Expected vehicle volume for event and rerouted traffic 
5. Traffic-Control Officer scheduling 
6. Duration and scheduling of event 

 
The request will be processed by the Planning Department (972-466-3040) as a Miscellaneous Development Case upon 
receipt of application and appropriate fees. The city shall mail notice to all property owners within 200 feet of the street 
area to be closed at least fifteen (15) days before the public hearing. 
 

4. OUTSIDE DISPLAY. Outside display and activities currently prohibited by the zoning code will be allowed. 
 
HEALTH & SANITATION: 
 

1. FOOD HANDLING.  A separate food permit is required. Temporary food guidelines are attached. Permit holder, 
however, will distribute guidelines to each food vendor. 

 
2. SANITARY FACILITIES. Adequate sanitary facilities as required by Environmental Services (972-466-3060) shall be 

provided to accommodate the estimated attendance of the special event. 
  
  



Special Events Application p. 8 

 

 
 

Block Party Guidelines, Petition and Release 
Building Inspection Department 

 
The Building Inspection Department is responsible for coordinating block parties for the City of Carrollton. All block party 
requests are handled in the following manner: 
 

1. Contact Building Inspection at (972) 466-3225 to acquire a block party request form. 
 

2. Complete the request form in its entirety.  At least 75% of all properties involved in the block closing must sign the 
petition and release from liability agreement.  Return the form to Building Inspection, 1945 East Jackson Road, 
Carrollton, Texas 75006. This must be done at least 7 working days before the date requested for the block party. 

 
3. To cancel a block party due to inclement weather, contact Police Dispatch at (972) 466-3333.  Police Dispatch will 

notify the Traffic Operations’ On-Call personnel to cancel the barricading. Contact Building Inspection at (972-466-
3225) the following Monday to confirm the desired reschedule date. 

 
4. When the form is returned a $25 nonrefundable fee will be required to cover the costs and labor involved in 

setting up and retrieving the barricades. In addition, another nonrefundable administrative fee of $25 will be 
required for permit processing by Building Inspection department. 

 
Once the participants of the block party have met all obligations, the Transportation Department will come to the location 
on the date specified for the party and set up the barricades. Barricades must be maintained by the residents as installed 
by the Transportation Department (phone 972-466-9872). 
 
It is the obligation of the participants of the party to set the barricades to the side of the street for the Transportation 
Department to pick up following the party. 
  
  



Special Events Application p. 9 

 

 
 

Petition for Neighborhood Block Party and Release from Liability and Agreement Not to Sue 
 

 
1. We, the undersigned, are the residents of _________________________ Street from________________________ 

Street to __________________________ Street and do request that the City of Carrollton allow us to conduct a 

block party on _____________________ from _____________________ to _____________________. 

 (date)  (time) (time) 

  

*From 9 a.m. to 10 p.m. Maximum 

 

Due to inclement weather, desired reschedule date for block party _________________ from ________________ 

to ________________.  (date) (time) 

  (time) 

 *From 9 a.m. to 10 p.m. Maximum 

 

We, the undersigned, acknowledge that we have voluntarily applied for a permit to conduct a block party, and 

that, in consideration of the privileges associated therewith, I do, for myself and my heirs, executors, 

administrators, personal representatives, successors, and assigned hereby RELEASE AND AGREE NOT TO SUE THE 

CITY OF CARROLLTON OR ANY OFFICE, AGENT OR EMPLOYEE THEREOF ON ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR ALL LIABILITY 

FOR ANY INJURIES, DEATH OR OTHERWISE, WHETHER CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE CITY OF CARROLLTON 

OR ITS OFFICERS, AGENT OR EMPLOYEE OR OTHERWISE while the applicant is exercising the privileges granted by 

this permit. 

 

2. I agree that this RELEASE FROM LIABILITY AND AGREEMENT NOT TO SUE is intended to be as broad and inclusive 

as is permitted by the laws of the State of Texas, and that if any portion is held invalid, then it is agreed that the 

balance shall, notwithstanding, continue in full legal force and effect. 

 

3. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of myself and the City of Carrollton, and may not be modified or 

altered without the express written consent of the City of Carrollton. 

 

4. This Agreement is interpreted by Texas law and is performable for all purposes in the County of Dallas, State of 

Texas or the County of Denton, State of Texas. 

 

5. In consideration of the rights and privileges granted by this permit, I agree to indemnify the City of Carrollton, 

Texas, from and against all claims, suits, damages, costs, losses and expenses in any manner arising out of or 

connected with the exercise of the privileges granted herein. 

 

6. I further warrant, state and represent that I have entered into this RELEASE from liability and agree not to sue of 

my own free will, and execute and deliver this RELEASE FROM LIABILTIY AND AGREEMENT NOT TO SUE, and that I 

have otherwise complied with the laws of the State of Texas which would allow me to assume full contractual duty 

and liabilities of the applicant therein, and I further warrant, state and represent that I have been given sufficient 

time to read carefully, and in fact, have read carefully, this RELEASE FROM LIABILITY AND AGREEMENT NOT TO 

SUE, that I know fully and understand the contents hereof and that my signature represents my acceptance by my 



Special Events Application p. 10 

 

 
 

free will of any and all of its provisions.  I further understand that I have a perfect right and opportunity to have 

advice of legal counsel prior to the execution of this RELEASE FROM LIABILITY AND AGREEMENT NOT TO SUE. 

  

We understand that the City Transportation Department will provide and set up the necessary barricades and that 

there will be a minimal charge for this service of $25.00. We also understand that at the end of the Block party (no 

later than 10:00 p.m.) we will be responsible for setting the barricades to the side of the street for the 

Transportation Department to pick up. The person who will be responsible for the block party is: 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Name 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Address 

 
___________________________________ 
Phone 

 
Dated this _____ day of _______________, 20 ____ 

 
 
 

___________________________________  _______________________________ 
Petitioner’s Signature     Witness 
  

  



Special Events Application p. 11 

 

 
 

I have been given sufficient time to read this RELEASE FROM LIABILITY AND AGREEMENT NOT TO SUE and fully understand 
the contents hereof and that my signature represents my acceptance by my free will of any and all of its provisions. 
 

SIGNATURE  ADDRESS 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  



Special Events Application p. 12 

 

 
 

Environmental Services Food Safety Program 
Temporary Food Establishment Guidelines Checklist 

 
• Submit a list of all food items to Environmental Services. 
 
• All food products must be from an approved source. Where was it purchased? Where was it prepared? (NOTE:  

Home preparation is not permitted.) 
 
• Provide information on how the food will be transported and from where. 
 
• The stand must have approved flooring.   
 
• The stand must have suitable covering.   
 
• A metal stem meat thermometer with readings from 0 degrees to 220 degrees or above must be provided. See 

section (C) of Guidelines for food temperature requirements. (Below 45 degrees or above 140 degrees.) 
 
• Provide separate empty container for hand washing waste water. 
 
• Provide five (5) gallons of potable water in a sturdy plastic-dispensing container with spigot to be used for hand 

washing, utensil cleaning and sanitizing.   
 
• Provide three (3) sturdy pails or tubs: 

1. One pail for soap and water 
2. One pail with plain water 
3. One pail with water and small amount of bleach (sanitizer). 

 
• Provide paper towels, hand cleaning soap or detergent, chlorine liquid bleach, and chlorine test papers (sanitizer 

test strips). 
 
• Provide an adequate sized solid waste container. 
 
• All wastewater from the operation must be disposed of in a sanitary sewer system. 
 
• All condiments, including onions, relish, peppers, ketchup, mustard, etc. must be in individual single service 

packets or should be dispensed from sanitary automatic dispensers. 
 
• Please review remaining items of the Guidelines for Temporary Food Establishment. 

 
  



Special Events Application p. 13 

 

 
 

Guidelines for Temporary Events: 
 
XXIII. Off-Premise Temporary Events 
 

A. Applications for Temporary Food Establishment Permits must be made with the City of Carrollton Environmental 
Health Department at 1945 Jackson Rd. Application must be made at least seven days in advance of the event. 

 
B. A list of all foods to be served must accompany the application for the permit and must be approved in advance by 

the Health Authority. Only those food items requiring a minimum of handling, mixing or preparation (including but 
not limited to foods such as hot dogs or pre-portioned hamburgers), are allowed to be prepared inside the 
temporary facility. If the facility is fully equipped with sinks and hot and cold running water, preparation of other 
food items may be allowed as permitted by the Health Authority. (ONLY FOODS APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT 
WILL BE ALLOWED FOR SALE AT THE EVENT. ALL OTHER FOOD ITEMS MUST BE DISCARDED OR CITATIONS WILL BE 
ISSUED). 

 
C. Events consisting of 10 or more booths should have a designated representative to coordinate the affair with the 

Environmental Health Department. This representative should be a Certified Food Manager. 
  
 

D. Permitted Food Items. 
 

1. All food distributed to the public must originate from an approved/permitted source and may not be prepared 
or stored in a facility not permitted by the appropriate Health Authority. 

 
2. Home preparation or storage is not permitted unless the home kitchen is permitted and routinely inspected 

by the Health Authority. However, certain baked desserts may be prepared at home, with approval of the 
Health Authority. 

 
3. All applicants that are not routinely inspected by the City of Carrollton Health Authority must provide past 

inspection records from the appropriate Health Authority of jurisdiction. 
 

E. Establishment Requirements 
 

1. All temporary food establishments are required to have approved flooring, which includes concrete, asphalt, 
or tight-fitting plywood. If a booth is located on grass, a four-inch high platform will be required to elevate the 
floor to allow for proper runoff of rain water. 

 
2. All stands must have suitable covering over food preparation, cooking, washing, and serving areas. Such cover 

must meet Fire Code Requirements. 
 

F. Food Care in Temporary Establishments 
 

1. All meat, dairy and perishable food products while being stored, prepared, displayed and transported must be 
kept at the following safe temperatures: 

 
a. Cold foods must be maintained at 41° F or below 
 
b. Hot foods must be maintained at 140° F or above. 

 
c. Hamburger patties must be cooked to an internal temperature of 155° F during preparation. 
 



Special Events Application p. 14 

 

 
 

2. A metal stemmed thermometer must be provided for checking food temperatures during preparation and 
storage. 

 
3. All condiments, including onions, relish, peppers, catsup, mustard, etc. for customer self-service should be 

dispensed from sanitary, automatic dispensers or in individual single service packets. 
 
4. All foods, food containers, utensils, napkins, straws, etc., must be stored well above the floor and adequately 

protected from splash, dust, insects, weather or other contamination. No open displays of food products will 
be permitted. Baked goods such as cakes, cookies, pies, etc., should be sold wrapped as a whole or provided 
as wrapped, individual servings. 

 
5. When self service ice dispensers are not provided, ice scoops are required. Handles of ice scoops must extend 

out of ice. Ice used for human consumption must be stored separately from ice used to refrigerate drink 
bottles, cans or cartons. Ice storage units must have open drains to prevent submergence of chilled drink 
cartons, cans or bottles in melted ice water. 

 
G. Sanitation in Temporary Establishments 

 
1. All stands in which open food will be handled or prepared will be required to have convenient hand washing 

and utensil washing facilities. The size, type, and number of sink compartments will depend upon the type of 
operation and will be determined by the Health Authority. 

 
2. Food handling personnel must wash hands as frequently as necessary, even though disposable gloves may be 

used and are recommended. 
 

3. Those facilities which are in operation for more than 96 hours, and that sell non-packaged, potentially 
hazardous foods must provide both hot and cold running water in quantities sufficient for hand washing by 
employees and for cleaning and sanitizing utensils and equipment. 

 
4. Those establishments which are in operation for 96 hours or less, and that sell non-packaged, potentially 

hazardous foods must furnish the following facilities if hot and cold running water and sanitary sewage 
facilities are not conveniently available: 

 
a. At least five gallons of potable water in a sturdy plastic dispensing container to be used for hand washing, 

utensil cleaning and sanitizing. If potable water replenishment is not readily available, additional 
containers of potable water may be required. 

 
b. One empty sturdy pail or tub to collect wastewater from washing hands. 

 
c. An adequate size container of household liquid chlorine bleach and chlorine test strips for verifying a 

chlorine concentration of at least 50 parts per million (ppm). 
 

d. Disposable paper towels and hand cleaning soap or detergent. 
 

e. Three sturdy plastic pails or tubs at least two gallons capacity; one for washing (fill with water and dish 
soap), one with plain water (for rinsing off soap), and one with water and liquid chlorine bleach solution of 
50 parts per million or greater (for sanitizing). 

 
f. A sturdy five gallon plastic container with a small opening and funnel to receive and store liquid wastes 

until proper disposal can be made to a sanitary sewer system. 
 

g. Convenient solid waste containers, preferably with plastic liners. 



Special Events Application p. 15 

 

 
 

 
5. The use of tobacco, eating food or drinking beverages is prohibited in food preparation and food service areas. 

Sitting on tables and counters is prohibited. 
 

6. Suitable hair restraints, including hair nets, caps or hair sprays, are required in food preparation and serving 
areas. 

 
7. Animals are prohibited in all food establishments. 

 
8. Wastewater from sinks, steam tables, etc., must be drained into the city sanitary sewer system or disposed of 

in accordance with liquid waste disposal ordinances and regulations. 
  
  



Special Events Application p. 16 

 

 
 

Tents, Canopies, Temporary Membrane Structures 
 

1. A permit is required for tents and membrane structures in excess of 200 square feet and canopies in excess of 
400 square feet. 

 
2. An 8½" x 11" drawing showing property lines, existing buildings, access roads, and parking is required. 

 
3. A copy of the Certification of Flame-Retardance is required. 

 
4. Plans will be reviewed for compliance with current International Fire Code. 

 
5. A CANOPY is any temporary structure, enclosure, or shelter constructed of fabric or pliable material supported 

by any manner except by air or the contents it protects, and is open without sidewalls or drops on 75 percent 
or more of the perimeter. 

 
6. A MEMBRANE STRUCTURE is any air-inflated, air-supported, cable or frame-covered structure as defined by 

Building Code Appendix Chapter 31, Division II, which is erected for less than 180 days and not otherwise 
defined as a tent, canopy, or awning. 

 
7. A TENT is any temporary structure, enclosure, or shelter constructed of fabric or pliable material supported by 

any manner except by air or the contents it protects. 
 
 
 
Carrollton Fire Department, Fire Prevention Division: 972-466-3210 
  
  



Special Events Application p. 17 

 

 
 

Event Planning Checklists 
 
This basic checklist outlines suggested steps to make a success of the event. All activities may not be necessary for every 
event. 
 
Determine Event Goals 

• Who are the target audiences? 
• What is the target message? 
• What action do we want participants to take? 
• What is the purpose? 
• What will the event accomplish? 
• Is it compatible with sponsor’s mission and core values? 
• Who are possible co-sponsors and volunteers? 
• What is the event budget? 
• Be sure the event is worthwhile and high quality. 
• Timing and location are crucial to the success of the event. 
• Successful marketing and promotions geared to the target market are needed to attract people to the event. 

Develop a promotion/marketing plan that explicitly states what will be publicized, when and how. Have this plan 
in writing and include calendar dates for action. 

• Follow through with the details to ensure success. 
 

Determine Theme (90 Days in Advance) 
____ Evaluate resources 
____ Attendance projections 
____ Strategic goals alignment 
____ Designate coordinator(s) 
____ Committee assignments 

 
Set Date and Time 

____ What day of the week 
____ What time of day 
____ Does the event conflict with another event? 
____ Confirm date with key participates 
____ Set rain date 

 
Get Permit(s) 

____ Tent permit 
____ Special events permit (Ord. 117) 
____ Parade 
____ Block party 
____ Carrollton Mobile (reservation: Parks & Recreation) 
 

Select Location 
____ Site preparations 
____ Facilities reservations 
____ Layout of the area 
____ Attendance projections 

 
 
 
Bad Weather Planning 

____ Alternate location and set-up 



Special Events Application p. 18 

 

 
 

____ Announcement of postponement 
____ Media/participants contacts 
____ Sign at entrance 

 
Site Arrangements 

____ Room area sizes 
____ Accessibility/transportation issues 
____ Acoustics/lighting 
____ Parking/validations/attendants 
____ Electric outlets/energy sources 
____ Trash containers/ice chests 
____ Tents 
____ Arrange for refreshment serving area 
____ Reserve rooms 
____ Consider weather; if outside, plan for cover/tents 
____ Plan physical set-up (tables, chairs, podium, generator, trash cans, etc.) 
____ Keys/access to area 
____ Pre-event preparations: painting, lawn mowing, repairs, cleaning 
____ Chairs, tables 
____ Electrical sources 
____ Arrange security and first aid resources/command post 
____ Restrooms/port-a-johns/sanitation 
____ Directional parking signs/traffic control 
____ Raised platform, podium 
____ Evacuation/emergency plans 
____ Flags (follow protocol) 
____ Public address system/microphones 
____ Barricades/cones 

 
Reserve seats for: 

____ Dignitaries 
____ Disabled 
____ Media, photographers 
____ Other 

 
Set up welcome and presentation area 

____ Mementos  
____ Projector, podium 
____ Name badges 
____ Displays 
____ Tape recorder and back-up machine, extra tapes, batteries 
____ Other _____________ 

 
Produce map sites/signage for traffic and safety 

____ Tour routes and directional signs 
____ Telephones  
____ Restrooms 
____ Parking 

 
Print Program 

____ Plan schedule 
____ Speaker biographies and photos 



Special Events Application p. 19 

 

 
 

____ Organization information 
____ List of officials, committees, participants 
____ Print programs 
____ Coordinate plans with appropriate parties 
____ Stage presentation area 
____ Schedule speakers and activities 
____ Scripts for speakers 
____ Plan entertainment/activities 
 

Invitations 
____ Determine guest list 
____ Print and send 
____ RSVP, returned cards/telephone 
____ Reminders (optional) 
____ Print nametags from RSVP list 
 

Decorations 
____ Coordinate with site arrangements 
____ Designate personnel for set-up and take-down 
____ Plan budget 
____ Centerpieces/flowers/tablecloths 
____ Color/theme scheme 
____ Entrance and exits 
____ Speaker’s platform 

 
Refreshments 

____ “Carrollton Mobile” (reserved from Marketing Services; if event is co-sponsored by the city) 
____ Staff, hosts 
____ Supplies, signage 
____ Menu and drinks 
____ Serving materials (napkins, cups, plates) 
____ Caterer 
____ Electricity, propane, trash collection 
____ Permits, licenses 

 
Personnel 

____ Coordinator(s) – Manage budget, monitor schedules & deadlines, checklists, status reports 
____ Speakers, emcee (honorariums) 
____ Staff/hosts/guides/escorts/parking attendants/tour guides 
____ Volunteers/sponsors/partners (document specific contributions; follow-up with acknowledgements) 
____ Photographer 
____ Audio visual staff (sound system, videographer) 
____ Custodians 
____ Committees/ staff (mailing lists, decoration, refreshment, R.S.V.P.’s) 
____ Nametags 
 

Equipment/ Materials 
____ Displays 
____ Handouts/tables 
____ Projector/screen 
____ Sound and audio visual equipment 
____ Microphones 



Special Events Application p. 20 

 

 
 

____ Lighting 
____ Tables/displays 
____ Easels 
____ Podium 

 
Entertainment 

____ Music: ____ Live or ____ Recorded 
____ Location(s) 
____ Scheduling, confirmations 
____ Fireworks 
____ Amusement rides 
____ Booths 
____ Animals 

 
Finances/ Budget 

____ Revenue sources (sponsors, sales, get bids) 
____ Expenses (estimate in advance and monitor) 
____ Wages, honorariums, fees, rentals, utilities, supplies, postage, printing, travel, repairs, maintenance, 

decoration, awards, food, permits 
____ Petty cash 
____ Prepare budget and invoice controls 
____ Check requests for vendors 
____ Final financial report 

 
Publicity 

____ Fax news release to all media; offer photo if available to print media 
____ First Release – general story 
____ Second Release – program highlights, committee/speaker’s names 
____ Third Release – feature story 
____ Fourth Release – final plans, day before the event 
____ Invite reporters and photographers to cover event 
____ Determine advertising strategy 
____ Promote the event and sponsor’s name 
____ Mayors proclamation (contact City Secretary at 972-466-3582) 
____ Banners, T-shirts 
____ Calendar listings 
____ Arrange for photographer(s); videotaping 
____ Interviews 
____ Press conference 
____ Press kit (photo, maps, press releases, copy of prepared speeches, brochures, fact sheets) 
____ Press invitation 
____ Advertisements 
____ Newsletters (internal & external) 
____ Posters 
____ Displays/exhibits 
____ Feature stories 
____ Personal contracts/word-of-mouth 
____ Bulletin boards/information racks 
____ Public Service broadcast announcements 
____ Sponsorships/endorsements 
____ Direct mail/mailing lists/RSVP lists 
____ Audio-visual presentations 



Special Events Application p. 21 

 

 
 

____ Trade shows 
____ Special parking for media personnel 
____ Brochures/fliers/fact sheets/artwork/banners/posters 
____ Order give-a-ways/souvenirs 
____ Call news media to confirm attendance, clarify directions 
 

Tickets 
____ Advance sales 
____ Ticket/money control 
____ Printing and distribution 
____ Sales reports 
____ Complimentary tickets 
____ Collection at event 

 
Other Plans 

____ Inclusion issues (discrimination provisions, handicap accessibility to event) 
____ Vehicle/equipment safety and security, first aid 
____ Crowd management plans 
____ Shuttle buses/routes 
____ Contracts, permits and licenses processing 
____ Count and record attendance three times during the event 
____ Insurance coverage 
____ Post signs; assign people to direct traffic flow 
____ Bring extra copies of officials’ speeches 
____ Background music 
____ Awards/presentations 
____ Sponsorship signs 
____ Order mementos to giveaway 
____ Tours and signage 

 
Follow – Up 

____ Schedule post-event news coverage 
____ Confirm total attendance 
____ Pay outstanding bills/receipts for donations 
____ Return supplies/equipment 
____ Clean-up activities 
____ Review comment cards; prepare final reports 
____ Debrief staff, partners/sponsors, participants 

(What things went right?) 
(What things went wrong?) 

____ Thank all who participated and worked 
____ Mail printing program to officials who did not attend 

  
  



Special Events Application p. 22 

 

 
 

City Events 
 
The following events are typical city sponsored and co-sponsored events: 
 

• Ribbon cuttings, ground breakings, open houses 
• Dedications or services commemorating an event or service 
• Any event where elected officials may be present or are scheduled to speak 
• Breakfasts, luncheons, dinners, and receptions 
 
• City events (Examples) 
 Old Fashioned Christmas at Perry Museum 
 Pool Trout Fish-Out 
 Community Garage Sale 
 
• Co-sponsored events (Examples) 

 Book Sale 
 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Commemoration  
 Holiday Tree Lighting 



CITY OF DENTON

SPECIAL EVENT
PERMIT APPLICATION

Submit the application online at
www.cityofdenton.com/EventApp.

Applications and supplemental documentation are due 60 days 
prior to the event start date or 90 days prior if the event will 

have alcohol on City property or there will be amplified sound.

For help filling out this document, please refer to the 
Denton Event Planning Guide.

Arianna Such, Special Events Supervisor
City of Denton Parks and Recreation

arianna.such@cityofdenton.com
(940) 349-7275 | (940) 349-8732

www.dentonparks.com

VERSION JAN. 2024

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/c2aed2228e9044589867edce5c8b778a
https://www.cityofdenton.com/DocumentCenter/View/8667/Denton-Event-Planning-Guide-Jan2024
mailto:arianna.such%40cityofdenton.com?subject=SUBMISSION%3A%20Special%20Event%20Permit%20Application


Applicant Information:

Applicant Name: Mobile Number: 

Street Address: City, State, Zip: 

Email Address:  HOT Funds or Cash Sponsor Recipient?         Yes           No 

Applicant is, check all that apply:         Event Organizer             On-site Emergency Contact           Organization Representative 

Organization Information:         Same as Applicant

Organization: Mobile Number:

Street Address: City, State, Zip: 

Email Address: HOT Funds or Cash Sponsor Recipient?         Yes           No 

Type of Organization, check all that apply:        Nonprofit        Board/Committee       School        Business        Volunteer       Individual         Other

Event Information:

Event Name: Event Date(s):

Event Location: Total Estimated 
Attendance:

Event Website: Social Media Account:

Is this a first time event?         No            Yes   

Event Details (please provide a detailed description and the purpose of your event):

CITY OF DENTON | Special Event Permit Application
A special event permit application may be filed at least sixty (60) days before the intended event date 
and not more than twelve (12) months in advance of the intended event date. Applications for permits 
filed less than specified number of days before the event may be considered for public assembly or if 
the director of parks and recreation, or his designee, determines that the application can be processed 
in a shorter time period, taking into consideration the nature and scope of the proposed event and the 
number and types of permits required to be issued in conjunction with the special event permit.

A special event application requiring city council approval must be filed at least ninety (90) days before 
the intended date of the event including, but not limited to, the sale or consumption of alcohol in a city 
park, an exception to the amplified sound ordinance.

CLICK TO SUBMIT

2

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/c2aed2228e9044589867edce5c8b778a


By my signature below, I certify the information provided on and in connection with this 
Special Event Permit Application is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant Signature:                    Date:

Event Timeline (please include set up and teardown):

 

Schedule of Events or Additional Timeline Details, as Needed:

Select all that apply:

Day of the Week Date and Year Set-up Time Start Time End Time Take-Down End 
Time Daily Attendance

DAY 1

DAY 2

DAY 3

DAY 4

DAY 5

DAY 6

DAY 7

CITY OF DENTON | Special Event Permit Application

Applicant Booth: Food/Drink (distribute or sell) Alcohol (distribute or sell) Merchandise (distribute or sell)

Vendor Booths: Food/Drink (distribute or sell) Alcohol (distribute or sell) Merchandise (distribute or sell)

Amplified Sound: Live Music DJ Music       Stage Speech and/or 
Announcements

Activities: Run/Bike Race          Parade Games/Crafts/Arts Inflatable(s) Carnival/Fair

Service Needs: Police Security          Fire/EMS Street Closure(s) Park/Facility Solid Waste

Admission: Free Open to the Public Event       Fundraising Event Ticketed Private Event

SIGN OR PRINT

3



Public or Private Event If yes, the following is required:

Will your event be open to the public? General Liability Insurance Certificate

Parade, Block Party, City Streets, Parking Lots If yes, the following is required:

Do you plan to close, block, or use a City street, trail, or sidewalk? Street Closure & Notification Form

Do you plan to close a street that will impact residents & businesses? Street Closure & Notification Form
Do you plan to use a private parking lot or other private property? Letter with Written Permission

Attendance, Tents, and Stage If yes, the following is required:

Do you anticipate 1,000+ event attendees or street/sidewalk spectators? Fire Operational Permit

Do you plan to use a tent larger than 400 sq ft or a canopy in excess of 700 sq ft? Fire Operational Permit

Do you plan to use a large stage with a covering or canopy? Fire Operational Permit

Are you hosting a fair, carnival, exhibit, or tradeshow? Fire Operational Permit
Do you plan to operate carnival, fair, or amusement rides? Submit Vendor Company Name

Food, Drinks, or Merchandise Vendor Booths If yes, the following is required:

Will you or your vendor(s) merchandise or promote business on park property? Vendor List & Vendor Permits

Will you or your vendor(s) serve or sell food or drinks on City property? Vendor List, Vendor Permit, & Temp. 
Food Permit

Will you have food truck(s) that will serve or sell food or drinks on City property? Temporary Food Permit

Sanitation, Water, Waste Water, and Recycling If yes, the following is required:

Will you need a dumpster and/or ClearStream® container for your event? Solid Waste Service Request

Will you or vendors need to dispose of water per Consumer Health requirements? Temporary Food Permit

Will you need assistance developing a Trash and Recycling Plan for your event? Solid Waste Service Request

Amplified Sound at Outdoor Festivals and/or Events If yes, the following is required:

Will you have amplified sound over 70 dba? Submit the online Special Event  
City Council Request Application at 
least 90 days in advance of the event 
for City Council’s consideration.

Will you have amplified sound Monday-Saturday, after 10 p.m.?

Will you have amplified sound anytime on a Sunday?

Will you have amplified sound over 65 dba on a Sunday?

Alcohol on City-Owned Property If yes, the following is required:

Do you or a vendor plan to serve or sell alcohol in a parking lot or in the street? TABC License and/or Permit

Do you or a vendor plan to serve or sell alcohol on City-owned property? TABC License and/or Permit & Security

Do you or a vendor plan to serve or sell alcohol in a park? TABC License and/or Permit & Security 
& Director Approval

Do you plan to apply for a temporary TABC permit for your event? Liquor Liability Insurance

Do you plan to partner with a vendor who is licensed/permitted by TABC? Liquor Liability Insurance

Requests for Services by City Department If yes, the following is required:

Will you need to place portable restrooms on City property? Parks Service Request & Approval

Will you need to request an in-kind City service in the form of co-sponsorship? City Sponsorship Application

Will you need to borrow portable trash and recycle containers? Solid Waste Container Loan Form

None of the above apply to my request for a Special Event Permit None of the above apply

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

Event:

Date(s):

YES

CITY OF DENTON | Event Questionnaire

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

4

https://www.cityofdenton.com/DocumentCenter/View/3576/Special-Event-application-Updated-PDF?bidId=\
https://www.cityofdenton.com/DocumentCenter/View/3576/Special-Event-application-Updated-PDF?bidId=\
https://www.cityofdenton.com/DocumentCenter/View/3576/Special-Event-application-Updated-PDF?bidId=\
https://www.cityofdenton.com/DocumentCenter/View/3576/Special-Event-application-Updated-PDF?bidId=\
https://www.cityofdenton.com/761/Noise-Alcohol-Provisions
https://www.cityofdenton.com/761/Noise-Alcohol-Provisions
https://www.cityofdenton.com/403/City-Sponsorship-Program


Emergency Command Post | Missing Person, Weather Emergency, etc.
In the event of extreme weather or other emergencies, the City of Denton will refer to the Command Post and the individual listed  
below as the point person for emergency updates, announcements, cancellations, and/or other event emergency communications.

Lead Coordinator and/or Volunteer: Mobile Number:

Describe the Location and Functionality 
of the Emergency Command Post:

List Current Weather Emergency Shelters  
that have been Approved for this Event:

Event Security Management

Lead Coordinator and/or Volunteer: Mobile Number: 

Public Security Service Provider: 
i.e. City of Denton PD, Denton County, etc.

Mobile Number: 

Private Security Service Provider: 
i.e. if you plan to use security guards

Mobile Number: 

Communications and Crowd Management

Lead Coordinator and/or Volunteer: Mobile Number:

Method of Crowd Communication: 
i.e. PA system, megaphone, etc.

Number of  
Event Staff: 

Method of Event Staff Communication: 
i.e. hand-held radios, mobile phone, etc.

Number of  
Volunteers:  

Method of Event Staff Identification: 
i.e. uniforms, event shirts, badges, etc.

Number of 
Vendors: 

Attendance to Event Staff Ratio: 
i.e. one staff for every 250 attendees

Total Guest 
Attendance:

Crowd Control Measures to be Used: 
i.e. barricades, fencing, etc.

Booth and Mobile Truck Vendors: A list of ALL vendors and their location on the Site Map is required and due at the time of the permit 
application. Vendors on the list, must match the Site Map and the receipts of Park Vendor Permits obtained prior to the event or thereafter.

Fire Prevention & Emergency Medical Management  

Lead Coordinator and/or Volunteer: Mobile Number:

Head of Medical Support: 
i,e, Denton EMS, hospital, medical clinic, etc: 

Mobile Number: 

List On-site EMS and First Aid Location(s): 

List Types of Fire Prevention and 
Suppression Devices & Vehicles:

Confirm the following are identified on the Site Map or Public Safety Map for larger events:    
      First-aid station(s)          Fire Lanes         Fire Extinguishers          EMS entry-exit access points         Public entry-exit access points & parking

Event:

Date(s):

City of Denton Police and Fire Department will have final authority and approval of your Public Safety Plan.

CITY OF DENTON | Public Safety Plan

5



Street Closure Request Questionnaire

Will there be possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages? TABC permit requirement

Will your event have first aid and/or water stations on the route? Site Map requirement

Will your event reuse a traffic plan from a barricade company? Traffic Control Plan requirement

Will your event start and stop at two different locations? Site Map requirement

Will your event or route cross intersections with traffic signals? Traffic Control Plan requirement

Will your event have a street stage, vendors, food trucks and/or tents?  Site Map requirement

Will your event have live music, amplified sound, or loudspeakers? Site Map requirement

Will one or more sidewalks or trails be obstructed or closed in? Site Map requirement

Will your event require a lane closure? Traffic Control Plan requirement

Rolling Street Closure Request | Parade, March, Fun Run or Similar; complete all that apply

Assemble Time: Assemble  Location:

Start Time: Disassemble Location:

End Time: Length or Distance of Parade, Fun Run, or Other:          

Street Closure and Notification Form and Route Map are required.

Estimated Number of Entries:                Participants                 Vehicles                   Bikes                  Spectators                  Animals            

ACKNOWLEDGMENT | Check that you have read and understand each requirement:
 I ACKNOWLEDGE that a map of the route is required; hand drawn maps are not accepted.          

  I ACKNOWLEDGE that a Traffic Control Plan is required for street closure requests, unless told otherwise.

  I ACKNOWLEDGE that use of a private parking lot will require Written Right of Possession from the property owner.

  I ACKNOWLEDGE that the Street Closure Form and Street Closure Notification Form may be required.

Full Street or Parking Lot Closure Request | Complete all that apply

Start Closure Time: Street(s) Closure Location:

End Closure Time: Parking Lot Location:

Street Closure and Notification Form is required.

Applicant Name: Event Name:

Date of Street 
Closure Request:

Purpose  
of Request:

Type of Request:          Parade         Block Party          March          Run/Walk           Bike           Street Festival         Parking Lot Party           Other

CITY OF DENTON | Street Closure Request

YESNO If yes, the following is required:

Traffic Control Plan

Company Name: Will your event reuse an approved Traffic Control Plan from a previous year?       No         Yes

Equipment Deployment Date: Equipment Deployment Time:

Equipment Pickup Date: Equipment Pickup Time:

6



First and Last Name Street Address Signature Circle One Absent

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

Favor     Oppose

All property owners, business managers, and /or single-home tenants impacted by the Street Closure Request 
MUST be contacted and informed of the proposed closure by either this Street Closure Notification Form or notify 
via a letter or postcard sent to the mailing address. 

The Street Closure Notification form must be emailed upon completion. A Traffic Control Plan must also be present-
ed at the time of notification. The event organizer’s business card, flier, or other notification of visit must be provid-
ed and left if the resident, business owners or tenant is absent.

To notify via a letter or postcard, then they must be sent no later than two weeks prior to the event and the follow-
ing documents need to be submitted with the Special Event Permit Application: a copy of the letter or postcard, a 
copy of the receipt showing the sent date, or a postmarked envelope, and the mailing address list. The letter and 
postcard must include the TCP and what streets will be closed off.

Applicant Name: Event Name:

Date of Street 
Closure Request:

Purpose  
of Request:

CITY OF DENTON | Street Closure Notification Form

7



CITY OF DENTON | Fire Operational Permit Information

Please note, this is NOT a Fire Operational Permit Application.

Select the Permit(s) Required for this Event:

Carnival, Fair, and Festival Permit, $200
Submittal Requirements, check to confirm acknowledgment:  
        Public Safety Plan and Site Plan 
       Insurance Certificates for Rides

Tents of Temporary Membrane Structure, $35 per tent
Submittal Requirements, check to confirm acknowledgment:         
        Copy of the flame spread and fire-proofing certificate. 
       Site Plan showing the location of the tent in relation to lot lines, parked vehicles, and structures.  
       Floor plan of the tent showing locations of fire extinguishers, exit signs, and “no smoking” signs

Outdoor Assembly Event, $200 
Submittal Requirements, check to confirm acknowledgment:  

   Submit a public safety plan, and a site plan showing locations of booths, stages, and structures,  
   first aid stations, information and ticket booths, boundaries of event, fire extinguishers, weather  
   shelters, fire/EMS access roads, assembly areas, approximate occupant amounts, and parking.

Exhibits and Trade Shows, $200
Submittal Requirements, check to confirm acknowledgment: 

  Submit a Public Safety Plan and Site Map that shows location of booths, stages, and structures;  
  first aid stations, information and ticket booths, fire extinguishers, marked exits, and parking.

Permit Inspection Request (date & time):

Permit Inspection Location Request:

The Fire Operational Permit Application can be found on the Fire Prevention Operational Permits webpage and 
must be submitted online via the eTRAKiT system at: https://dntn-trk.aspgov.com/eTRAKiT/

By signing, I understand the requirements listed above and acknowledge that I must submit a Fire Operational Per-
mit Application and supplemental documents through the eTRAKiT system.

Applicant Signature:                                                                                                    Date:                                                 

Applicant Name: Mobile Number:

Street Address: City, State, Zip: 

Email Address: Event Date:

Event Name: Estimated Daily 
Attendance:

Event Location:

Denton Fire Prevention  |  401 N. Elm St., Denton, TX 76201  |  (940) 349-8118 

CLICK HERE TO VIEW THE
FIRE OPERATIONAL

PERMIT APPLICATION

Reminder! Tent Permits & Fire 
Operational Permits are separate from 

the Special Event Application Permit. 

SIGN OR PRINT

8

https://www.cityofdenton.com/334/Operational-Permits
https://dntn-trk.aspgov.com/eTRAKiT/
https://www.cityofdenton.com/321/Fire-Prevention
https://www.cityofdenton.com/DocumentCenter/View/707/Fire-Operational-Permit-Application-PDF?bidId=


CITY OF DENTON | Public Safety Service Request

Event Security | 3-hour Minimum per Police Officer 
There is a 3-hour minimum for Public Safety Security requests.

To view rates of pay and to request police services, please submit an online Denton Extra Duty Detail 
Application.

Examples of objective standards used to determine the number personnel:
g Event alcohol consumption g Traffic Control Plan requirements
g Time, date, and length of event g Estimated number of attendees
g Impact of adj. residential/commercial areas g Vehicular/pedestrian traffic conditions

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) | 4-hour Minimum per EMS Personnel 
The rate of pay for Emergency Ambulance Standby, paramedics, patient transport, 
and other applicable fees are set forth in Ordinance 2010-204. The current rate of pay is $150 per hour. 
There is a 4-hour minimum for EMS requests.

Examples of objective standards used to determine the number personnel:
g Road closure that require EMS personnel g Peak hourly attendance and estimated attendees
g Event alcohol consumption g Time, date, and length of event
g Impact of adj. residential/commercial areas g Need for safety zones, i.e. helicopter landing

Applicants are responsible for reimbursing the City for the cost of security and/or EMS personnel, as 
needed. The public safety team will determine how many staff are needed for the event and payment.

Select the Service Request(s) for this Event:

Applicant Name: Mobile Number:

Street Address: City, State, Zip: 

Email Address: Event Date:

Event Name: Estimated Daily 
Attendance:

Event Location:

Public Safety Service Request  |  601 E. Hickory St., Denton, TX 76205  |  (940) 349-8181

9

https://extradutysolutions.com/app/denton-extra-duty-detail-application/
https://extradutysolutions.com/app/denton-extra-duty-detail-application/
https://www.cityofdenton.com/292/Public-Safety


Applicant Signature: Date:

City Staff Signature: Date:

ClearStream®
Borrow portable bins that are easier to transport, set up, and service to
ensure the correct items are going in the trash and recycling.

Disposal Options

 

Applicant Name: Mobile Number:

Street Address: City, State, Zip: 

Event Name: Email Address:

Event Location: Event Date(s):

Tax ID or Solid 
Waste Acct. # Driver’s License #:

Driver’s license and social security numbers are required  
if a Tax ID or Solid Waste account number are not provided.

Last four digits  
Social Security #:

Select a Trash and Recycling Strategy:      

         Use Trash and Recycle Containers in the Park         Use Fee-Based Services For Dumpster Container

         Use ClearStream® Loan Program, at no cost         Use both Dumpsters and the ClearStream® Loan Program 

CITY OF DENTON | Trash and Recycling Service Request

Solid Waste & Recycling Dept. | 1527 S. Mayhill Rd., Denton, TX 76208 | Phone (940) 349-8027

Container Loan Program | Special Event Recycle and Trash Equipment Form

The applicant or undersigned has the authority to sign on behalf of the event organizer. Replacement costs will be applied if 
containers are not returned or returned significantly soiled or damaged beyond use. Terms and Agreement can be found at 
www.cityofdenton.com for Chapter 24 of the code of ordinances and current rate ordinances. Rates and fees are based on 
upon the current rate.

Requested Pick-up Date and Time: Actual Pick-up Date and Time:

Requested Return Date and Time: Actual Return Date and Time:

8 Yard Recycling Dumpster 8 Yard Trash Dumpster Open Top Roll-Off

10

https://www.cityofdenton.com/en-us/residents/services/trash-recycling


Applicant Name: Mobile Number:

Street Address: City, State, Zip: 

Email Address: Event Date:

Event Name: Estimated Daily 
Attendance:

Event Location:

Additional Picnic Tables  
Based on individual park inventory and availability of staff to move tables on event day.

Outdoor Electricity 
Based on individual park inventory and electric pedestals available on-site.

Inflatables/Attraction Rides in City Parks 
The park and location within the park will require approval.

Portable Restrooms 
The park and location within the park will require approval.

Pavilion Usage 
Indicate if your event includes a park and/or pavilion rental.

Parking Lot Usage 
Indicate if your event will ONLY use the existing park parking lot.

Trail Usage 
Indicate if your event will impact the use of a trail.

Public Park Restrooms Usage 
Indicate if your event includes the use of an on-site park restroom.

Self-Haul Waste Management Strategy 
Indicate if you need assistance confirming if there’s an on-site dumpster.

Self-Haul Waste Management Strategy 
Indicate if you need assistance confirming the number of on-site trash and recycle containers. 

Other 
Please list or describe your event specific service request:

Select a Service Request from the Parks and Recreation Department:

CITY OF DENTON | Parks & Recreation Usage & Service Request

Denton Parks and Recreation | 321 E. McKinney St., Denton, TX  76201 | Office (940) 349-7275 

Park & Facility Usuage Request (Please list all Parks & Recreation facilities and/or parks you are requesting to use):

8 Yard Recycling Dumpster 8 Yard Trash Dumpster Open Top Roll-Off

11

https://www.cityofdenton.com/185/Parks-Recreation


1 

Special Events Guide

Thank you for choosing Edmond for your event location. We look forward to 

working with you to ensure your event is safe and successful. 

A Special Event is a public celebration which involves the use of city property 

and/or facilities which require the provision and coordination of city services.  

A special event permit is required to hold events such as: 

• Festivals, parades, or athletic events on public rights-of-way (City streets).

• Outdoor public events on other City-owned properties (Parks & Arcadia

Lake).

You do not need a special event permit for: 

• Events held on private property

• Private events such as Weddings or Birthday parties held at a City Park

Because every event is unique, it’s important that you consult with the City’s 

Special Event Office as soon as your plan starts developing. Large and/or first year 

events need more time to plan than smaller, seasoned events. 

The goal of the Special Events Office is to help make the coordination of your 

event as seamless as possible. Contact us early in your planning process so we can 

help you from the start: 

Special Events - Public Relations & 

Marketing 

24 E. 1st Street 

Edmond, OK 73034 

Ph: (405) 359-4580   

email: specialevents@edmondok.gov 

Mailing Address: 

City of Edmond - Special Events 

PO BOX 2970 

Edmond, OK 73083 

All of the documents referenced in this guide can be downloaded from 

www.edmondok.gov/specialevents 

http://www.edmondok.gov/specialevents


2 

THE SPECIAL EVENT PROCESS 

1. Consult with the Special Event Office

Start with type of event, date, location, & time. 

2. Submit application and preliminary site plans and/or map to Special Events

Office

Once you know the major details of your event (at least 60 days 

before) submit your application.  

3. Approval from the Special Event Committee

A Special Event meeting is held on the third Wednesday of each 

month unless posted otherwise 

4. Insurance & Payment is due 30 days before your event

See page 4 for Insurance guidelines 

SPECIAL EVENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

All applications must be reviewed by a group of members assembled from 

different City departments called the Special Events Committee. Unless otherwise 

posted meetings are held on the third Wednesday of every month at 11:00am at the 

Multi Activity Center in Mitch Park; 2733 Marilyn Williams Dr.. 

Coordinators organizing events are required to present their applications at a 

Special Event Committee meeting at least 2 months before their event date.  

Applications must be turned into the Special Event Office 1 week prior to the 

meeting date to be added to that month’s meeting agenda. If an event is not added 

on the Agenda before that time it cannot be voted on by the committee. 

https://www.edmondok.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2782/Special-Event-Application-2020


3 
 

GENERAL RULES 

 

• Once an event is approved by the committee, the organizing group will be 

unable to make changes unless the committee is notified in time to call a 

special meeting.   

• To cancel city services, please notify the special events office 72 hours prior 

to event; Monday - Thursday between 7:30 am to 5:30 pm and Friday 

7:30am – 11:30am at 405-359-4580. 

• Events are approved on a first-come, first-served basis. However, if a 

scheduling conflict occurs, previously-permitted annual events may be given 

preference. 

• A Special Event Permit can be approved for a recurring event on multiple 

dates in the same year if no changes are made to the site plan/application. 

• No advertising of an event is allowed until the event is approved. 

• Under NO circumstances will paint, spray chalk or any other substance that 

will remain visible for more than 48 hours, be applied to the street or any 

part of the right of way or public property.  Any application of these 

markings will result in an immediate termination of your permit. 

• No fees may be charged for parking on City property or parks 

• No entrance fees may be charged on City rights-of-way (City streets, 

sidewalks, alleys or easements) 

• No Signs are allowed to be affixed to barricades.  

• The City of Edmond does not issue Noise permits. You may use amplified 

sound if approved by the committee but must adhere to the quiet hours of 

10pm – 8am.  

• No Balloon Releases or Sky Lantern’s will be allowed as part of a Special 

Event 

• All permits are considered revocable. Your permit may be revoked if any of 

the following issues are identified by City Staff: fraud, misrepresentation, 

imminent threat to public health, safety and/or welfare.  

• Failure to abide by the guidelines and the requirements of the Special Event 

Committee is cause for revocation of your permit 

 

 



4 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A certificate of Liability Insurance is required for all events. Proof of 

Insurance must be provided 30 days before your event.  

• The form must state that the City of Edmond is the additional insured party

with the following address:

City of Edmond  

PO BOX 2970 

Edmond, OK 73083 

• Certificate of Insurance has a required minimum of $1 million coverage. The

amount of Insurance must be equal with the Oklahoma Tort Liability Act:

$25,000 property damage, $175,000 personal injury, $1,000,000 liability.

• All aspects of your event must be covered.

o If you are having an inflatable that must be covered.

You may be required to submit your insurance policy in full or submit a list of 

exclusions to your policy. Some events may need extra coverage and will be 

considered on a case by case basis.  

STREET CLOSURES 

Streets are not allowed to be closed without official approval from the Special 

Events Committee and/or the City Manager’s Office. Street Closures are 

considered on a case by case basis.  

An accurate traffic control plan should be developed to show that all traffic 

control devices will be placed in accordance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic 

Control Devices (MUTCD). It is critical to the safety of your participants and 

volunteers that you choose a contractor that understands these guidelines and 

places your barricades correctly. These companies are currently pre-qualified to 

operate in Edmond.  

Here are some additional requirements to include in your traffic control plan: 

• Same day barricade pickup is required.

• Type III barricades are required for all road and lane closures.

• 36” cones, or other approved devices, are required when separating traffic

from participants on a route.

• You are required to keep an open lane for emergency vehicles. - Sidewalks

must remain open as much as possible for public access.

https://www.edmondok.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7843/Traffic-Control-Plan
https://www.edmondok.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7844/pre-qualified-contractors
https://www.edmondok.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2783/Certificates-of-Insurance-example-
https://www.edmondok.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2784/Additional-Insurance-Requirements


5 

• Coordinators may be asked to obtain approval from adjoining property

owners or give advance notice of the closure.

• No parking is allowed in front of/or near barricades.

OPEN ROAD POLICY AND TRAFFIC CONTROL REQUIREMENTS 

Streets are not allowed to be used for events such as bicycle rides, runs, or walks 

without official approval from the Special Events Committee and/or the City 

Manager’s Office.  

• One or more police officers will need to be hired at the expense of the

applicant to control each intersection.

• Police are the ONLY authorized personnel who can direct traffic.

• One (1) and/or Two (2) lanes roads will be considered on a case by case

basis. It is recommended that two (2) lane roads are only used briefly to

leave a property before entering a four (4) lane road.

• It is strongly recommended that organizing groups require participants to

wear appropriate safety equipment such as, but not limited to, helmets.

POLICE SUPPORT 

The Edmond Police Department (EPD) should be hired for safety and security at 

public events. If you plan to use another agency for your event (Oklahoma County 

Sheriff or OHP only), the names and direct contact information for hired officers 

needs to be provided no less than 10 days before event. 

If your event includes a barricaded or traffic-controlled route, it is recommended 

that you provide a contact person (course director). This person would serve as the 

main point of contact for route safety, barricades, intersection control, and 

volunteer- related issues. The course director will need to be available for the 

entirety of the event including set-up and tear-down. Edmond Police officers can 

be contracted through the Special Events Office.  



6 

FIRE SUPPORT 

The Edmond Fire Department 

• All areas including decorations are subject to inspection.

• All outdoor fires must be approved and permitted.

• A Fire Extinguisher size 2A – 10, B, C must be provided at any on-site

cooking.

Fire lane parking Ordinance No.3052 – Fire apparatus access roads shall have an 

unobstructed width of not less than 20 feet. 

Edmond Fire prevention can be contacted at (405) 216-7303 

STAGES & TENTS 

Outdoor structures such as tents and stages must be inspected before they can be 

used if they are… 

• Tents or canopies larger than 225 square feet (15x15)

• Stages that measure 30 inches high off the ground and/or includes an

overhead structure (lighting included)

• Temporary structures

A permit fee and inspection may be necessary, call Building Services, (405) 

359-4780

Tents: 

• No open flames or cooking is allowed under tents.

• No stakes shall be driven into the ground without permission. Utility lines

will first have to be marked and observed. No stakes shall ever be driven

into pavement.

ELECTRICAL 

Additional electrical services other than what is provided at City site may require 

fees and services from the City’s Electric Utility. These requests must be made no 

later than 10 working days prior to day of event.  Any electrical expenses not 

covered by the permit fee will be done on a time and material basis.   

Generators are not provided or rented from the City’s Electric Utility. 



7 
 

All electrical hook-ups must comply with the national, state, and local electrical 

codes.   

Edmond Electric: (405) 216-7662 

SANITATION  

The number of restrooms required will be determined using the rule that one 

portable toilet or restroom facility should be provided for every 500 participants. It 

is required that at least 10 percent of the facilities provided be ADA accessible.  

The number of trashcans depends on the type of event. Some major events will be 

required to contract for trash removal. All litter must be secured in a container or 

dumpster.  

Dumpster Fee Structure: 

4 yard- 60.50 per haul + 22.00 delivery 

6 yard- 77.00 per haul + 22.00 delivery 

8 yard- 93.50 per haul + 22.00 delivery 

 

If your event includes animals/horses you will be responsible for cleaning up after 

them. 

EMERGENCY PLANS 

In cases of severe weather or other concerns that could pose a potential threat to 

your event, Emergency Management and/or EPD will be in communication with 

the event coordinator and/or the special events office. A threat to public safety is 

cause for revocation of a permit. This means your event can be canceled upon 

guidance from Emergency Management and/or EPD.  

 

Other areas to consider having a plan for are medical emergencies, lost and found 

(including lost child), crowd control, accident, loss of utilities, etc.  

 

We encourage all event planners to notify EMSA: (405) 297-7110. 

 

SITE PLANS 

Some Larger events may be asked to submit a map showing locations of all their 

amenity’s and vendors. This would include placement of sanitation services, 



8 

barricades, volunteers/police, vendors, activities (inflatables, rides) and structures 

(tents and stages).  

FOOD & ALCOHOL 

No glass allowed 

FOOD 

Food vendors include food trucks-trailers, stands, tents, canned and/or packaged 

foods, etc. Special Event Food Licenses allow these vendors to sell prepared 

foods at an event for up to 14 days. For your vendors to be issued Special Event 

Food Licenses, the following is needed:  

• A list of all food vendors submitted with your application

• A final list of vendors provided no later than 15 days prior to your event

• Pre-payment of the State licenses with Oklahoma City County Health

Department (OCCHD, 405-425-4327)

• Early setup by each food vendor to allow time for an on-site, day-of-event

inspection by OCCHD.

• State licenses kept on-site and available for review by OCCHD.

REMINDER: Use of open flame for cooking requires that you contact the Edmond 

Fire Prevention, 405-216-7303, this includes propane systems on food trucks-

trailers.  

ALCOHOL 

The serving of alcohol on public property must be approved by the Special Events 

Committee and in compliance with Oklahoma County Health Department 

regulations and Oklahoma State Law.   

Notice: Events that elect to serve Alcohol must absorb the expense of a law 

enforcement officer on site during festival hours.  The officer must be in uniform 

and either an Edmond Police Officer or Oklahoma County Deputy.  No exceptions 

allowed.   

• To sell or offer alcohol at your event, vendors must obtain an Event Alcohol

License from the Alcoholic Beverage Laws Enforcement Commission

(ABLE). To get an Event Alcohol License you will need the following:



9 

- 60 days prior to your event, you must apply for your Event Alcohol

License with ABLE.

• You must have your Event Alcohol Licenses posted where alcohol will be

sold to your event participants.

Alcoholic Beverage Laws Enforcement Commission (ABLE) 

 ABLE, 3812 N. Santa Fe Suite 200, OKC, OK 73118 

(405) 521-3484 or Toll Free 1-866-894-3517

https://oklahoma.gov/able-commission.html

VENDOR SALES 

When including vendors at your event you are required to notify the Oklahoma 

Tax Commission. 405 - 522-4324 

• Contact the Oklahoma Tax Commission to obtain a Special Event

Promoter/Organizer Business Application ($50).

• The application and fee are due no less than 20 days prior to your event.

• You will receive sales tax report forms with your permit number and you

will need to distribute these to vendors at your event.

• After the event, collect all of the forms and return them to the Oklahoma Tax

Commission and send a copy to the Special Events Office.

ASSEMBLY PERMIT (FIRST AMENDMENT)  

The purpose of requiring a permit for any assembly occurring on public property is 

to ensure that public safety and order is maintained when large groups of 

individuals congregate together.  

A permit is needed if: 

• If the assembly consists of 25 or more people

• The assembly will impede or obstruct normal vehicle traffic or pedestrian

use of any street or sidewalk.

• Any event requiring the full closure of any public right-of-way shall also

obtain a Street Closure permit.

file://///coent.edmondok.com/ADS/Sarah/Special%20Events/01_Special%20Event%20Packet/Forms%20&%20Guidelines/Guidelines/www.ok.gov/able/Business_Application_Forms
https://oklahoma.gov/able-commission.html


10 

This permit requires a Special Event Application to be filed with the Special 

Events Office at least 48 hours (exclusive of weekends and holidays) prior to the 

commencement of the assembly. 

PAYMENTS 

A Special Event Permit Fee of $150 will be collected no later than 30 days prior to 

the event date.  

CONTACTS 

Special Events, 24 E. 1st St., Edmond, OK 73034 

Office: 405-359-4580 

Email: specialevents@edmondok.gov  

Oklahoma City County Health Department (OCCHD) Information: 

- For more information regarding Special Events and Temporary Food 
Establishments, or to schedule inspections, please contact the Oklahoma City 
County Health Department:

Elaine Winterink – elaine_winterink@occhd.org , 405-425-4327

Alcoholic Beverage Laws Enforcement Commission (ABLE) 

 ABLE, 3812 N. Santa Fe Suite 200, OKC, OK 73118 

405-521-3484 or Toll Free 1-866-894-3517

https://oklahoma.gov/able-commission.html

Oklahoma Tax Commission, 405-522-4324 

Edmond Building Services, 405-359-4780 

Edmond Fire Prevention, 405-216-7303 

Edmond Electric, 405- 216-7662 

Edmond Emergency Management, 405-359-4564 

EMSA, 405-297-7110 

Edmond Parks & Recreation Department, 405-359-4630 

Edmond Code Enforcement, 405-359-4793 

mailto:specialevents@edmondok.gov
http://www.ok.gov/able/Business_Application_Forms
https://oklahoma.gov/able-commission.html


 
 

 

 

Event Permit Application Instructions and Rules 
 
 
The event permit application is for all events that request the use of City streets, City parking lots 
and/or require City resources such as police or fire departments.  
 
These instructions are intended to help you complete your event permit application. To ensure 
that you have all the required forms and information for your event, please take the time to read 
these instructions prior to starting the application. We want to make sure that your event is 
successful and without problems. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact 
Parking Management by phone 479-575-8280 or by email parking@fayetteville-ar.gov. You may 
also wish to visit the Special Event Permit section on the City of Fayetteville website. 
 
 
APPLICATION SCHEDULE:  Application must be submitted per the schedule below with 
associated documents/forms and fees. 
 

• 21 days prior to event date:  
Closure request(s) is for less than 8 hours 
Application does not request closure(s) of a street or City parking lot 
 

• 45 days prior to event date: 
Application requests a street or City parking lot closure(s) for more than 8 hours 

 
 
RESERVATION POLICY:  Any event that occurs annually and has had at least three successful 
events in the past three consecutive years is considered an “Established Event”. The event will 
automatically be reserved on the City event reservation calendar for the event dates that are 
typical for the event. The producer of the “Established Event” will still be responsible for 
submission of all applicable forms and permit application by the appropriate deadlines. All other 
submitted event requests will be considered on a first-come-first-serve basis. 
 
 
FEES AND CLEANUP DEPOSIT:  Applicable fees may be paid by cash or check to the City of 
Fayetteville.  Application fees are refundable if an event is cancelled or if the event permit is 
denied. Remit payment to the City of Fayetteville: 

• By mail: 113 W. Mountain Street, Fayetteville AR 72701 

• In person: 416 W. Spring Street, Fayetteville AR 72701 (Monday – Friday, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m.) 
  

mailto:parking@fayetteville-ar.gov
http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/754


 

2 

 

 
APPLICATION DETAILS 
Event Name:  Enter the name of the event. This name should be the one that you are using to 
advertise or promote your event.   
 
Event Date(s):  Enter the start and end date of the event. If the event is just one (1) day, enter 
the same date for both. Detailed schedule information, such as hours of operation and site 
preparation dates/times, is required in a separate area of the application. 
 
Event Producer:  Enter the name of the organization, corporation, neighborhood group, etc. that 
is producing the event. If the organization, corporation or group contracts with a firm or agency to 
produce the event, the event producer is the firm/agency contracted.   
 
Nonprofit:  If the event producer is a nonprofit, enter the 501(c)(3) ID #. 
 
Primary Contact:  Enter the name of the primary person who is to be contacted regarding the 
application or event.   
 
Address, City, State, and Zip:  Enter the mailing address information in these blanks of the 
primary contact. 
 
Phone/Email:  Enter the telephone numbers and email address of the primary contact. It is 
important that City staff have the ability to contact this person at all times during the event to 
ensure it runs smoothly and successfully. 
 
Secondary Contact:  Enter name of one additional person who can be contacted regarding 
application or event. 
 
Phone:  Enter telephone numbers and email address of the secondary contact. It is important 
that City staff has the ability to contact the primary or secondary person at all times during the 
event to ensure it runs smoothly and successfully. 
 
Event Location:  Describe where the event will be held including street name(s) and City parking 
lot names.  
 
Event Types:  Check all boxes that apply to your event. A Noise Ordinance Variance Request is 
required if your event may involve sound levels that exceed maximum noise levels of the City of 
Fayetteville Noise Control Ordinance and you will be prompted for additional information 
 
Event Description:  Give a brief description of the event. Please describe any unique 
characteristics of your event.  
 
Dates and Times: 

• Hours of operation:  Enter the daily start and end times of when the event is open for 
attendance.  

• Site Preparation:  Enter the event preparation start date and time. If no preparation is 
necessary enter the event operation start date and time.   

• Dismantling/Cleanup:  Enter the date and time when the dismantling and cleanup will be 
completed and the streets/or sidewalks opened again. 

 
Total Attendance:  Enter the total number of attendees that you expect for your entire event, 
beginning to end. 

https://www.municode.com/library/ar/fayetteville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_ORD_TITIXGERE_CH96NOCO
https://www.municode.com/library/ar/fayetteville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_ORD_TITIXGERE_CH96NOCO


 

3 

 

 
Peak Attendance:  Enter the highest number of attendees you expect at any one time during the 
event. 
 
EVENT FEATURES:  Review list of possible features and check all that apply to your event. Site 
maps are required for almost every event and will need to show where event features are located.  
You may be prompted for additional information based on your selections.  
 

• Alcoholic Beverages Served/Sold:  If alcoholic beverages will be served or sold, please 
contact the Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) at 501-682-1105 to apply for a permit. The 
City’s event application requires the name of the alcoholic vendor name(s) and the ABC 
permit number.  
NOTE: When alcohol is on site, the City requires security to be present at all times.  The 
number of security officers varies based on attendance per event.  The Police Department 
has guidelines for the sale of alcohol. 

 
• Elevated Noise Levels:  A Noise Ordinance Variance Request is required if your event 

may possibly involve sound levels that may exceed the normal requirements of the City of 
Fayetteville Noise Control Ordinance. 

 
• Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Required: Upon review of this application, the 

City’s Fire Chief or Fire Marshal may determine that Emergency Response Services are 
needed. There is a fee for emergency medical services. 

 
• Fireworks:  Per City Code 94.05, fireworks may only be discharged July 1 – July 4. If a 

fireworks display is requested, the name of the fireworks provider/handler and their 
fireworks permit number are required.  

 

• Parking Lot/Spaces Needed and/or Street Closures: 
o Closure Hours:  Select if the closure is more or less than eight hours. 
o Type of Closure:  Select street, parking lot, or both. Select “parking lot” if you 

need parking spaces in a parking lot. 
o Closure Date/Time:  Enter the start date and time of any requested City parking 

lot/spaces and/or street closure(s). 
o Reopen Date/Time:  Enter the date and time when the street and/or City parking 

lot/spaces will be reopened to traffic. 
 

FOR ALL PARKING LOT AND/OR STREET CLOSURES 
Signage must be frequently and conspicuously displayed 24 – 48 hours in advance of 
ANY City parking lot or street closure for a special event.  Minimum display requirements 
are four signs per block per side of the street and one sign per 10 parking spaces for a 
City parking lot. For streets with parking meters and pay stations, the City strongly 
recommends that a sign be placed on each parking meter and/or pay station along the 
street. An example of your City Street/Parking Lot Closure Signage template must 
accompany your application. 
 

  

http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/11595
https://www.municode.com/library/ar/fayetteville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_ORD_TITIXGERE_CH96NOCO
https://www.municode.com/library/ar/fayetteville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_ORD_TITIXGERE_CH96NOCO
https://www.municode.com/library/ar/fayetteville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_ORD_TITIXGERE_CH94FIPR_ARTIGEPR_94.05USFI
http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/11095


 

4 

 

NEW PROCESS PER CITY CODE 72.58(M) 
FOR PARKING LOT AND/OR STREET CLOSURES OF MORE THEN EIGHT HOURS 

 

Notice of Proposed Closure Form and Written Notification Flyer:  As a part of the 
application, the applicant shall submit a Written Notification flyer and a completed Notice 
of Proposed Closure Form. The documents should be combined into one pdf document 
and must accompany the event permit application. 
 

o Notice of Proposed Closure Form: Use the City’s GIS mapping tool to create the 
form with a list of addresses within 300-feet of the proposed closure. The applicant 
should attempt to make personal contact with all property owners/managers and/or 
occupants along and within 300-feet of a City street or City parking lot that is 
proposed to be closed for more than eight (8) hours.  The applicant should seek 
their signature on the Notice of Proposed Closure form and indicate whether they 
agree or disagree with the proposed closure. Should the applicant be unable to 
make personal contact at an address, a written notification of the proposed closure 
must be left at the property in a conspicuous location. 

 
o Written Notification flyer template is provided for your convenience.  

 
• City Parking Lot/Street to be Closed:  Enter name of the parking lot(s) and/or street 

block(s) to be closed. 
 

• Security:  It is the responsibility of the event producer to provide adequate security for an 
event and to ensure that an adequate number of security personnel are present to manage 
the expected size of the event's crowd. Security must include proper crowd control.  When 
prompted, select the type(s) of security needed and complete all required information 
(number of security personnel, security organization name, and contact phone/email). 
Fayetteville Police Department (FPD) will review and determine if there is adequate 
security; FPD may request additional security for your event. 

 
• Street Closings:  See “Parking Lot Closure” above. 

 
• Temporary Electrical Service:  Please choose if public utilities or generators will be used 

to provide electricity.  Events needing more than 120 amps of electricity will be required 
to provide an alternate power source or generators for power.  Otherwise, event producers 
may use the City’s active electrical outlets for minimal requirements. The event producer 
is responsible to ensure proper usage of all electrical services, and is responsible for all 
electrician fees, including fees for servicing/repairing blown electrical services due to 
improper use of electrical supply.  It is recommended that an on-call electrician be 
available for events that need more than 120 amps of electricity.  Please provide their 
name, business, and emergency phone numbers; otherwise indicate that these fields are 
not applicable (n/a) to your event.  

 
• Temporary Restroom Facilities: If groups of 500 or more are attending an event, then 

the City requires the producer to supply portable restrooms. Enter the number of 
temporary restrooms, company name, contact person, and phone number. 

 
• Tents/Vendors:  If tents and/or vendor booths will be at your event, please list the types 

of vendors that will be present. Prior to set up please read and share the Fayetteville Fire 
Marshal’s Office Safety Requirements for Temporary Structures/Tents/Vendor. 

 

https://www.municode.com/library/ar/fayetteville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_ORD_TITVIITRCO_CH72PARE_ARTIIIPAME_72.58OREPAFARURA
http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/11094
http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/11457
http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2440


 

5 

 

Site Map Requirement:  Regardless of event location, a site map must be submitted showing 
the location of the event and all event features.  Please review the site map requirements section 
of the application for all items that are required on the site map. 
NOTE:  Multiple site maps must be combined and submitted as one pdf document. 
  
Trash, Recycling, and Cleanup Plans/Procedures:  Any event producer holding an event on 
City property is responsible for trash removal during the event and after the event. Please describe 
your trash/recycling plan and your cleanup plan. Also, enter the required information: trash and 
recycling coordinator, cleanup coordinator, number of cleanup crew, number and size of 
dumpsters, and number of dumpster service times. 
 
If aluminum containers or plastic drink bottles will be a part of the event, the City encourages 
recycling. Recycling efforts will reduce the event’s trash production and number of trash bag 
changes.  Please refer to the Event Recycling Guidelines and Tips provided by the Recycling and 
Trash Collection Division for all your events’ refuse and recycling needs or contact them directly 
at 479-575-8397. Recycling is not mandatory. 
 
Cleanup Deposit:  A cleanup deposit of $500 is required, payable to the City of Fayetteville. City 
staff will perform an inspection of the event location within 24 hours after the permit-specified 
ending time and date. Upon establishment of a satisfactory inspection of the event site(s), the 
cleanup deposit will be refunded within thirty (30) days. If the cleanup is not satisfactory – then 
all, or a portion of the deposit, may be forfeited to the City in order to pay for appropriate cleanup 
efforts. Cleanup tasks performed by the City are charged at $50 per hour. If cleanup efforts 
performed by the City exceed $500, the event producer will be billed for the additional costs. 
 
Parking lots, streets, and vendor booth areas must be cleaned, swept, washed, and restored to 
their pre-event condition. Sub-contractors must load out at end of event unless pre-arranged with 
the City (e.g. ice merchandisers, staging, light and sound, soft drink dispensers, signage, 
decorations, tables, chairs, vehicles, delivery and supply trucks, generators, portable restrooms, 
etc.).  Any items remaining after cleanup will result in a day rental charge for space occupancy. 
 
Hold Harmless Clause: No application will be processed or permit issued for an event without 
the hold harmless clause being signed by the agent duly authorized by the event applicant. 

CLAUSE: The City shall not be liable to user's employees, agents, invitees, licensee, visitors, or to 
any other person, for injury to person or damage to property on or about the leased premises 
caused by the negligence or misconduct of user, its agents, servants or employees, or any other 
person entering upon the leased premises under express or implied invitation by user, or caused 
by the building improvements located on the leased premises becoming out of repair, or caused by 
leakage of gas, oil, water, smoke, or steam or by electricity emanating from the leased premises. 
The event producer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City from any loss, attorney's fees, 
and expenses or claims arising out of any such damage or injury. The City reserves the right to 
revoke this application at any time. 

  
Proof of liability insurance may be required for an event. 
 
The applicant ensures compliance with the following: 

• The observance of applicable laws and ordinances; 
• Any stipulations or restrictions of the permit; 
• Any stipulations or rules outlined in the Event Permit Application Instructions/Rules; 
• The applicant assumes all liabilities that may arise by street closing and related activity. 

 
 
 

http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2246


 

6 

 

ADDITIONAL RULES 
 
Barricades and Fencing:  The event producer is responsible for placement of all required 
barricades, cones, fencing, etc.  The producer may borrow these items by checking them out and 
picking them up at the Transportation Division located at 1525 S. Happy Hollow Road.  Please 
call the Transportation Division at 479-575-8228 to make arrangements. 
 
Towing of Vehicles:  If the event producer expects the possible need to tow any vehicles during 
an event, this information must be submitted with the permit application.  All areas that may 
require towing of a vehicle must have proper signage (use the City Street/Parking Lot Closure 
Signage template) prominently displayed at each site that a vehicle(s) may be towed.  If towing is 
necessary where the proper signage is not displayed, the producer must contact the Fayetteville 
Police Department at 479-587-3555 to see if they can legally tow or relocate the vehicle. 
 
Pavement Markings:  Pavement markings are strictly prohibited except with temporary spray 
chalk material that is approved by the City.  Spray chalk can be purchased in the Parking 
Management Office located at 416 W. Spring Street. 
 
Pavement Holes/Marring:  Drilling into pavement (parking lots, streets, sidewalks, curbs, etc.) is 
strictly prohibited.  All signage and anchoring must be accomplished with weights such as 
sandbags or concrete filled barrels.  Any holes or damage made to public property will be charged 
to the event producer at a minimum cost of $100 per hole and/or marring of pavement. 
 
Banners and Flyers:  Fayetteville’s Advertising and Promotions Commission/Visitors Center 
processes applications for street banners. These include banners on decorative light posts and 
across-street banners (Block Avenue, Dickson Street/Church Avenue, and Dickson 
Street/University Avenue).  Please call the Fayetteville Advertising and Promotions 
Commission/Visitors Center at 479-521-5776 to make arrangements. 
 
Sales Tax and HMR Tax:  All vendors conducting sales at the event must report and pay all 
applicable state and local sales taxes, including HMR taxes. 
 
 

 
 
Important City Telephone Numbers: 
 Event Permit Applications (Parking Office)  479-575-8280 
 Parking Management Office    479-575-8280 
 Recycling & Trash Collection Division  479-575-8397 
 Transportation Division    479-575-8228 
 Fayetteville Fire Marshal    479-444-3448 
 Fayetteville Police Department   479-587-3555 
 Accounting Office (HMR tax)    479-575-8281 
 Parks and Recreation Department   479-444-3471 
 
Other Important Telephone Numbers: 
 Alcoholic Beverage Control Division   501-682-1105 
 Arkansas State Fire Marshal (fireworks)  501-618-8624 
 Arkansas Dept. of Finance (sales tax)  501-682-7104 
 Arkansas Department of Health   501-661-2171 

University of Arkansas Police Department  479-575-2222 
Washington County Sheriff’s Office   479-444-5700 

http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/11095
http://www.fayetteville-ar.gov/DocumentCenter/View/11095


 

7 

 

Walton Arts Center     479-443-9216 
Farmers’ Market on the Square   479-236-2910 
Fayetteville Town Center and Plaza   479-587-9944 
Fayetteville Advertising & Promotion/Visitors Ctr. 479-521-5776 

 
Click to complete the Event Permit Application 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revised 05/30/2024 

http://documents.fayetteville-ar.gov/Forms/5WZtE
http://documents.fayetteville-ar.gov/Forms/5WZtE


Development and Planning 

Alcohol and Noise Control Division 

  

220 W. Willow Street, Bldg. B  /  P.O. Box 4017-C  /  Lafayette, LA  70502  /  p: 337.291.7116 

 
   

PROCEDURE FOR OBTAINING A SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT 

 
Dear Applicant: 
 
Lafayette Consolidated Government’s, Alcohol and Noise Control Division is pleased to have this opportunity to serve 
you.  In order for us to issue your Special Event Alcoholic Beverage Permit quickly and efficiently, please follow the 
instructions below. 
 
1. Submit completed and notarized application no later than 5 days prior to your event.  Please be advised 

that it is strongly recommended that you apply for your local permit at least 15 days prior to the start of 
your event.  The Louisiana Office of Alcohol and Tobacco Control requires you to submit their application 
10 days prior to your planned event.  You can obtain a copy of the State’s Special Event Permit Application 
at www.atc.la.gov. 

PLEASE NOTE:  If approved, your local Special Event Alcoholic Beverage Permit may take up to three 
business days to be issued.   

2. A payment of $125 for a regular event or $50 for a non-profit organization (must provide verification of 
501(c)(3) status).  Payments shall be in the form of a money order, cashier’s check or certified check, made 
payable to Lafayette Consolidated Government, must be submitted with your Special Event Alcoholic 
Beverage Permit Application.  PAYMENTS ARE NON-REFUNDABLE!! 

3. If you are not the property owner of the location where the event will take place, you will need to provide 
a letter of permission from the PROPERTY OWNER, stating you are allowed to sell, serve and/or allow for 
the consumption of alcoholic beverages on the premises.  The written approval must also include the 
owner’s name, contact number and signature, along with the property address and date(s) of the event. 

4. Please call (337) 291-8431 to inquire if a “Peddler’s License” is also required. 

5. If your event is open to the public, law enforcement security may be required.  If law enforcement security 
is required, it must be approved prior to your permit being issued. 

6. Additional requirements may be necessary prior to the issuance of a Special Event Permit. 

7. Submit required documents and payment to the Office of Alcohol and Noise Control, 220 W. Willow Street, 
Bldg. B, Lafayette, Louisiana 70501 (Clifton Chenier Center). 

8. If your event will have sound levels above the legal limits of 60 dB(a) from 7:00 a.m. -10:00 p.m. or 50 dB(a) 
from 10:00 p.m. – 7:00 a.m. you will also need to apply for a Sound Variance.  For more information 
regarding a Sound Variance, please call (337) 291-8675.  

 
NOTE:  The above procedure is to apply for your local permit only.  After receiving the local permit, you must also 
apply for a “State of Louisiana Special Event Permit”.   

WITHIN 24 HOURS OF THE START OF YOUR EVENT, YOU MUST PROVIDE THIS OFFICE WITH A COPY OF YOUR STATE 
SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY RESULT IN THE REVOCATION OF YOUR LOCAL PERMIT. 

As the permit holder, you are responsible for all litter/trash clean up generated from your event on the property 
of the permit location and all surrounding properties.  All litter/trash must be placed in an approved garbage 
receptacle normally used at your location.  At the permit holder’s expense, you can also rent a dumpster, hire a 
waste collection company or lot cleaners to assist with cleaning all litter/trash generated by your event.  As the 
permit holder, if the litter/trash remains after the end of your event, you will be held responsible all fines and 
collection fees which may occur.  

If you need further assistance with applying for or obtaining a Special Event Permit, please call (337) 291-7116. 

http://www.atc.la.gov/


 

 

1. Name of Business, Individual or Organization applying for Permit: 

2.  Official Mailing Address (Street, City, Zip): 

3.  Applicant’s Information:   
   

             Name: 

            Phone Number: Email Address: 

            Applicant’s Address (if different than the Official Mailing Address): 

            Ethnicity: Gender: DOB: SS#: DL# 

 

4.  Name of Event: 

5.  Address of Event (Street/City/Zip): 

6.  Location of Event (such as: Park Name or Building Name or Description of Property): 

7.  Date(s) of Event:                                                                           Start Time of Event:        End Time of Event: 

8.  Description of the Event: 
 
 

9.  Is event open to the public?                           YES                         NO 

10.  Number of expected participants: 

11.  Will there be law enforcement security? (May be required)                        YES                         NO 
    

 If YES, what law enforcement agency will be providing security?  How many officers?  Name and phone number of contact person.                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
    

12.  Will there be a general admission, registration or ticket fee to attend the event?                        YES                         NO 

13.  Will there be a fee for alcoholic beverages?                      YES                              NO 

14.  Do you own the premises where the event will be held?                      YES                              NO 
             If NO, you must provide a copy of a valid, signed and dated lease or written permission, from the property owner which   
            must also state the applicant has permission to sell, serve and/or allow on premise consumption of alcoholic beverages  
           during this event. 

 

HIGH and/or LOW ALCOHOL                       PERMIT FEE:           $125         NON-PROFIT:  $50     (501(c)(3) verification required) 

 

Office of Alcohol and Noise Control 

220 W. Willow Street, Bldg. B 
P.O. Box 4017-C * Lafayette, LA  70502 

Telephone (337) 291-7116  
 Fax (337) 291-7011 

 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION 

 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

15.  Have you or your spouse ever been convicted of a felony?                      YES - IF YES, please explain:                              NO 

16.  Have you or your spouse ever had an alcoholic beverage permit REVOKED or been convicted of violating any liquor or beer  
        regulatory state rule or local ordinance?                        YES - IF YES, please explain:                              NO                             

 
17.  Is this application being made by you to permit any person, other than yourself, to secure an alcoholic beverage permit? 
                        YES                         NO 
 
18.  Will your event require a Sound Variance Permit? Please see #8 on the instruction of this packet (page 1).  If yes, please call 
(337) 291-8675 to inquire about a Sound Variance.                     YES                          NO 

  
ATTENTION:      
As the permit holder, you are responsible for all litter/trash clean up generated from your event on the property of the permit 
location and all surrounding properties.  All litter/trash must be placed in an approved garbage receptacle normally used at your 
location.  At the permit holder’s expense, you can also rent a dumpster, hire a waste collection company or lot cleaners to assist with 
cleaning all litter/trash generated by your event.  As the permit holder, if the litter/trash remains after the end of your event, you 
will be held responsible all fines and collection fees which may occur.   APPLICANT’S INITIALS:  
 
NOTICE:  Once this office has accepted your application and fees, no refunds shall be issued.  Payment of fees must be made at the 
time of application and in the form of a money order, cashier’s check, or certified check (NO personal or business checks accepted).  
Make payments payable to:  Lafayette Consolidated Government or LCG.   
 
This affidavit must be signed by the owner, if individual ownership; partner, if partnership; or authorized official, if corporation or LLC.  
Misstatement or suppression of material facts in this application is grounds for denial of this permit.  Conviction of filing false public 
records, a violation of Louisiana Revised Statute 14:133, may result in imprisonment for not more than five years with or without hard 
labor and fines of not more than $5,000 (five thousand dollars), or both. 
 

AFFIDAVIT 
I swear that I have read each of the questions in this application and that the answers I have given are true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge and that I meet the qualifications and conditions of Louisiana R.S. 26:80 and 26:280.  I understand that a criminal history 
will be conducted to determine my qualification. 
 
Name of Business:                     
 
 
Signature of Applicant:       Title:      
 
 
Printed Name of Applicant:            

 

 

 

 

For NOTARY Use Only 
 

      , personally appeared before me, and being first duly sworn declared that 

he/she signed this application in the capacity designated, if any, and further states that he/she has read and completed the above 

application and the statements therein contained are true. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this    day of        20   
 
In the parish/county of       
 
 
Notary Public’s Signature:            
 
Printed name of Notary Public:        

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Oklahoma City 

Special Events Guide 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special Events Office • 200 N Walker • 405.297.2890 • specialevents@okc.gov • www.okc.gov/specialevents 

mailto:specialevents@okc.gov
http://www.okc.gov/specialevents


SPECIAL EVENTS 

Thank you for holding your event in Oklahoma City. We look forward to working with you to 
ensure your event is safe and successful. 

A permit is required to hold events such as festivals, parades, walks, athletic events or block 
parties on public rights-of-way (City streets, sidewalks, alleys or easements). Permits are also 
required to hold outdoor public events on private property and on other City-owned 
properties (parks, lakes, the Oklahoma River, the Bricktown Canal, etc.). Information and 
applications included in this packet pertain to the most common events. 

We encourage you to consider hosting your outdoor event in one of our many parks 
and/or trails. Please contact the Parks Special Events Office at 405.297.2691 to learn more 
about what our parks have to offer. The parks along the Oklahoma River offer views of our 
skyline and can be a great fit for smaller events. 

Because every event is unique, it’s important that you consult with the City’s Special Event Office    
as soon as your plan starts developing. Large and/or first year events need more time to plan   
than smaller, seasoned events. 

The goal of the Special Events Office is to help make the coordination of your event in Oklahoma 
City as seamless as possible. Contact us early in your planning process so we can help you from 
the start: 

Special Events Office - Public Information & Marketing
200 N. Walker Avenue
Oklahoma City, OK 73102 
405.297.2890 
email: specialevents@okc.gov 

All of the documents referenced in this guide can be downloaded from 
www.okc.gov/specialevents. 

Events held at the Oklahoma State Capitol, Oklahoma State Fairgrounds, on OK State property 
and/or on U.S. Federal grounds require separate permits and permissions. Contacts for these 
facilities available through the Special Events Office. 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

mailto:specialevents@okc.gov
http://www.okc.gov/specialevents


Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

CONTENTS 

What kind of event permit do I need? (page 3) 
The process at a glance  
City Services  
General rules (page 4) 
Your special event application (page 5) 
Event site plans 
Street closures (page 6) 
Insurance 
Notification and consent (page 7) 
Police support (page 8) 
Fire support 
Electricity plan (page 9) 
Stages 
Waste plans 
Metered parking (page 10) 
Noise permits 
Vendor sales (page 11)  
Oklahoma Tax Commission  
Food and alcohol (page 12-13) 
Parades (page 14) 
Volunteers (page 15) 
Events on Parks property / bleacher rental 
Events on Trust property (page 16) 
Events on private property  
Events on State property  
Emergency plans (page 17)  
EMSA 
Filming (page 18) 
Fees (page 19) 
Deadline Sheet (page 20) 
Special Events Contact List (page 21) 

2 



Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

WHAT KIND OF EVENT PERMIT DO I NEED? 

Consult with the Special Events Office, we can help. Here is a quick list for do-it-yourself types: 

• Revocable Permit (approved by City Council, $25 application, $75 permit)
Major Events: Multiple or extended street, lane and/or sidewalk closures 
(Walks, races, festivals, parades, processions, etc.) 

• Administrative Revocable Permit (approved by City staff, $25 application, $75 permit)
Minor Events: Less than one City block, involving no more than 500 people, less 
than 24 hours, no impact to City Services 
(Block parties, small festivals, closures supporting events in parks, etc.) 

• Outdoor Special Event Permit (approved by City staff, $25 permit)
Private property events with no street and/or sidewalk closures 
(Some parking usage may qualify under this permit) 

THE PROCESS AT A GLANCE 

Listed below is the typical process for getting a Revocable Permit. Some events applying for 
administratively approved permits will be excluded from steps 3 & 4: 

1. Consult with Special Events Office and other City staff
2. Submit application and preliminary plans to Special Events Office (see deadlines, page 5)
3. Submit preliminary plans at a City Services meeting (2-4 months prior to event)
4. Submit final plans to City Council (approximately 30 days prior to event)
5. Event day(s)
6. Debriefing communication with Special Events Office and other City staff

CITY SERVICES MEETINGS 

Coordinators organizing all major events are required to present their plans at a City Services 
meeting 2-4 months prior to their event. Meetings are held at 2 p.m. every other Wednesday 
in the City Clerk's conference room on the second floor of 200 N. Walker. Representatives from 
multiple City departments and affected agencies review and discuss your event plans. The 
agenda is preset so consult with the Special Events Office before planning to attend. Please 
email (specialevents@okc.gov) your packet the Friday before the meeting and bring 20 copies  
to City Services for review. 

Events are not approved or denied at City Services. You will receive feedback about the 
logistics of your event. Do your best to present a complete packet at the City Services meeting, 
but with the understanding that plans are not always finalized there. Additional permits or 
challenges may be identified during or after the meeting. 

3 

https://www.okc.gov/home/showdocument?id=2884
mailto:specialevents@okc.gov


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

 

 

 
 

 

GENERAL RULES FOR APPLICATION 
 

 

• A revocable permit can be approved for a recurring event on multiple dates in the 
same calendar year if no changes are made to the site plan or participants. 

• A special event permit can be approved for a recurring event on multiple dates in the 
same year if no changes are made to the site plan or participants. 

• A revocable right-of-way use permit is required to block pedestrian or vehicular traffic. 
• Runs and walks under 350 runners should not include major streets as a part of their 

route. We encourage the use of City park or lake properties for these events. 
• Noise Permit suggested for sound amplification, 405.297.3884. 
• Traffic control devices must be placed according to the (Manual on Uniform Traffic  

Control Devices (MUTCD) and any additional City requirements (page 6). 
• Notification is required for all events. See notification requirements (page 7). 
• When required, the OKC Police Department must be contacted to arrange for escorts 

and other event-related traffic control. See the police support section (page 8). 
• Applicants must remove all trash immediately following their event (page 9). 
• When required, metered parking must be reserved through 

Public Transportation & Parking, 405.297.1331 (page 10). 4 
• If you plan to sell or offer retail items, prepared food and/or alcohol see the 

Vendor Sales, Food, Beer & Alcohol section (pages 11-13). 
• Entrance fees cannot be charged for admission to events on City rights-of-way 

(City streets, sidewalks, alleys or easements). 
• No event signs or placards may be permanently posted (in the ground or on poles). 
• Rights-of-way must not be altered. Streets, sidewalks, trees, plants and buildings must 

be protected from damage during your event. 
• Streets must not be painted. Handheld chalk and/or tape are the only allowed means 

of marking start lines, finish lines and route markers. 
• Events must be accessible to persons with disabilities. 
• A permit does not give permission to trespass on private property. You will need to 

show proof that you have permission to use private property. 
• Events are processed on a first-come, first-served basis. If a scheduling conflict occurs, 

preference will be given to previously-permitted annual events operating on the usual 
event date(s) and/or time(s). (Example: Second Saturday in January, 3 p.m.) 

• The City of Oklahoma City must not be included as a sponsor of your event. 
• Your permit may be revoked if any of the following issues are identified by City staff: 

fraud, misrepresentation, imminent threat to public health, safety and/or welfare. As a 
result of revocation, future permit requests may be denied. 

• A Cosmetic Cleaning Permit from Storm Water Quality is required for any outdoor 
washing activity. 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2906
http://mutcd.fhwa.dot.gov/
http://mutcd.fhwa.dot.gov/
http://mutcd.fhwa.dot.gov/
https://www.okc.gov/home/showdocument?id=3371


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

 

 

 
 

 

YOUR SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION 
 

 

The first document to complete and return is the Special Event Permit Application (page 19). The 
application typically requires supporting documentation such as an event site plan, traffic  
control plan, waste plan, electricity plan , insurance, etc. The earlier you submit your 
application the better. Applicants can submit preliminary information up to one year prior to 
the event. Deadlines for completing your application are as follows: 

 
Type of Event Application Deadline 
-Major Events (Revocable Permit) 75 days prior 
-Minor Events (Administrative Revocable Permit) 30 days prior 
-Public event on private property (Outdoor Special Event Permit)  30 days prior 

 
 

EVENT SITE PLANS 
 

 

You are required to submit an event site plan, traffic control plan, electricity plan and waste  
plan for Major and Minor Events. Other Events (outdoor public events on private property) may 
also be required to provide these plans. Your plans should include but are not limited to the 
following: 

 

maps of staging areas for 
parades/athletic events 

route maps for 
parades/athletic events 

street closures 

barricade placement 

parking 

directional traffic arrows 

volunteer stations/staging 

trash cans 

restrooms 

generator locations 

retail vendors 

food vendors 

beverage vendors 

first aid stations 

fire lanes 

traffic control signage 

amusement rides 

building or tent entrances 
and exits 

fireworks fall-out zones 
and launching areas 

stages 

emergency plans 

the more info the better… 
 

Google Maps is an excellent starting point to successfully create maps for your event plans. 
Contact the Special Events Office if you have difficulty with this part of the process. 

5 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/home/showdocument?id=2884
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2902
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2930
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2930
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2930
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2934
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2898
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2904
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2902
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2930
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2898
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2934
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2934
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2934


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

 

 

 
 

 

STREET CLOSURES 
 

 

Most street closure requests must be approved by City Council and will be charged a revocable 
permit fee ($75). Some street closures are more complex than others, particularly on heavily 
traveled roads. This may require that you notify the Special Events Office earlier than the 
application deadline. Please contact us early in your planning process. 

 
An accurate traffic control plan should be developed to show that all traffic control devices will 
be placed in accordance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). It is 
critical to the safety of your participants and volunteers that you choose a contractor that 
understands these guidelines and places your barricades correctly. These companies are  
currently pre-qualified to operate in Oklahoma City. 

 
Here are some additional requirements to include in your traffic control plan: 

 

- Same day barricade pickup is required in districts with high pedestrian traffic. 
(Downtown, Midtown, Auto Alley, Bricktown, Film Row, Plaza District, Paseo, etc.) 

- Type III barricades are required for all road and lane closures. 
- 36” cones, or other approved devices, are required when separating traffic from 

participants on a route. 
- You are required to keep an open lane for emergency vehicles. 
- Sidewalks must remain open as much as possible for public access to your site. 
- After your event, traffic control devices must not block any rights-of-way. 

 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

 

A Certificate of Liability Insurance with a receipt of premium paid is required for all major 
events operating in the City rights-of-way. Proof of insurance must be provided before an event 
will be considered for approval. Some Minor Events will be exempt from insurance 
requirements (non-commercial closures). 

 
Below are the standard insurance requirements. Additional insured parties may be added 
depending on the location(s) of your event (Trusts, Parks & Utilities insurance info): 

 

- Certificate of insurance with 
required minimums: 

$1 million Coverage 
$175,000 Personal Injury 
$25,000 Property Damage 

- The form must state that 
The City of Oklahoma City is an 
additional insured party with the 
following address: 

The City of Oklahoma City 
200 N. Walker 
Oklahoma City, OK 73102 

6 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2930
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2888
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2888
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2888
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2890
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2894
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2904


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

 

 

 
 

 

NOTIFICATION AND CONSENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

 

All events are required to provide notification to affected properties. When notifying, your 
street closures must be illustrated and described. The description should clearly define the 
dates and times of your closures, with setup and teardown times included. 

 
In areas of your event site considered to be temporarily closed (athletic event routes, parade 
routes, procession routes, etc.), you are required to notify abutting property owners/ 
lessees. The full impact of your event should be defined to the contacts at these properties. 
This should occur no less than thirty (30) days prior to your event date. Various methods  
can be used (postcards, email, flyers, etc.). 

 

Additionally, a written notice affidavit must be signed, notarized and returned before your 
event will be considered for approval. We strongly recommend that you notify as many 
businesses and residents around your event site as you can. Please make the Special Events 
Office aware of any large-scale marketing done for your event, such as broadcast commercials, 
print ads or billboards. 

7 
Areas Requiring Consent 
You are required to circulate a street closure petition to, or request consent from, properties 
abutting fully closed areas of your event site (athletic event staging areas, parade staging areas, 
festival areas, block parties, etc.). Consent is critical in these areas because property access will 
be restricted for extended periods of time. 

 
If a contact (owner/lessee) for a property cannot be found, a consent letter must be sent to the 
property. Consent can be returned by email, fax or letter. If a contact (owner/lessee) fails to 
respond within 10 days from receipt of notice, it will be considered consent. 

 
Proof of consent is required. When returning your street closure petition, please include 
copies of any returned consent letters. A consent affidavit may also be required to be signed, 
notarized and returned with the street closure petition before your event will be considered 
for approval. Please scan and email these documents to the Special Events Office. 

 

IMPORTANT: You may need to negotiate terms with a property owner to gain their consent. 
If negotiations fail, the street abutting that property needs to be left open and the owner/lessee 
will need to be given reasonable access to their site. 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2936
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2926
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2896


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

 

 

 
 

 

POLICE SUPPORT 
 

 

The Oklahoma City Police Department (OCPD) should be hired for safety and security at public 
events. If you plan to use another public safety agency for your event, the names and direct 
contact numbers for hired officers needs to be provided as a part of your traffic control plan. 

The Police Special Events team can provide recommendations or assist you with: 

- Needs for uniformed officer(s) or other Police personnel 
- Locations, route(s) adjustments, traffic planning and implementation, volunteers, 

staging areas, event parking, traffic flow, etc. 
- Overnight security and any other safety and security issues 

 

If your event includes a barricaded or traffic-controlled route, you are required to provide a 
contact person (course director) to OCPD. This person should be the main point of contact for 
route safety, barricade and volunteer-related issues. The course director will need to be 
available from setup through teardown of the event to ensure the course is setup and cleared 
properly and safely. 

 8 
CONTACT: Police Special Events – 405.297.1144 

 
 

FIRE SUPPORT 
 

 

The Oklahoma City Fire Department can assess safety issues regarding fire, buildings, tents and 
the physical safety of all those involved in your event. You are required to contact the Fire  
Marshals Office if any of these conditions exist (additional permits may be required): 

- Tents or canopies larger than 225 square feet (15x15) 
- Propane is used for cooking (additional permits may be required) 
- Electrical wiring is done 
- Changes are made to building exits or when the character or use of a facility is 

altered 
- Liquid or gas-fueled vehicle or equipment, for display or competition, inside a tent or 

building 
- Candles, open flame devices, flammable or combustible liquids or gases 
- Pyrotechnics/special effects 
- Cryogenics 
- Anytime a material, occupancy load or operation is introduced into a tent or building 

that could possibly pose a hazard 
- Special amusements are provided, such as haunted houses 

CONTACT: Fire Marshal Special Events – 405.297.3584

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2930
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2908
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2908
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2908
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2910
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2910


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

 

 

 
 

ELECTRICITY PLAN 
 

 

The use of generators, electrical wiring and extension cords during your event may require an 
inspection and permit issued by the Development Services Department. The inspection is 
needed to ensure circuits do not become overloaded and that safety guidelines are followed. 
Typically this could include equipment used for cooking, heating, amplification, lighting, etc. 
Please include the location of generators and cords on your electricity plan. 

You are required to provide your plan with your application packet. You are required to 
schedule an inspection with Development Services no later than 5 business days prior to your 
event. Again, an additional permit may be required. Call Development Services, 405.297.2948. 

 
 

STAGES 
 

 

Outdoor temporary structures such as stages and platforms must be inspected before they can 
be used, with a few exceptions. Stages that measure 30 inches or less from the ground and have 
no overhead structure to them do not require a permit. If your stage or platform is taller than 
30-inches and/or includes an overhead structure, call Development Services, 405.297.2948. 

9 
WASTE PLANS 

 

 

A waste plan is required for all events. The plan can be a map or a detailed description but must 
include information about where and when waste services will be available. Most major events 
will be required to contract for trash removal and portable restroom services. Copies of your 
contracts need to be included with your waste plan prior to consideration for approval. 

To provide a sufficient ratio of restrooms and waste receptacles, a participation number for 
your event needs to be discussed with the Special Events Office. This figure will be based on the 
history of your event and/or on similar events and will be included in your plan. 

The number of restrooms required will be determined using the rule that one portable toilet or 
restroom facility should be provided for every 500 participants. At least ten percent of the 
facilities provided must be ADA accessible and should be concentrated where participants and 
spectators will stage. The waste must be disposed of by a hauler licensed by both the 
Oklahoma City-County Health Department and the City of Oklahoma City. 

No direct or indirect discharges are allowed into storm sewer system, community waters or 
waters of the state. Examples of prohibited discharges include dishwater, sanitary sewer 
waste, power wash discharges, leaking water lines, garbage, solid waste and chemical waste, 
like oil or grease. All discharges must be in compliance with Chapter 47 of the municipal code.  
Cooking oil and grease must be properly disposed of by a cooking oil and grease disposal 
company. 

Continued on next page… 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2898
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2934


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

 

 

 

The number of waste receptacles depends on the type of event being held. Your waste plan  
should concentrate services in areas where participants and spectators will stage. For athletic 
events, water stations will need a higher concentration of services. You are responsible for the 
removal of all trash immediately following each event. Failure to clean up after your event may 
require the City to contract for clean-up services. You will be responsible for payment if this 
occurs and it may cause future event applications to be rejected. Recycling is not required, but 
is encouraged. 

 
 

RESERVING METERED PARKING SPACES 
 

 

To help prevent parking within your event area, metered parking spaces can be reserved. You 
may also be required to pay for metered spaces that are within the fully closed areas of your 
event. Please contact the Public Transportation and Parking Office, 405.297.1331. 

 
 

NOISE PERMITS 
 

 
If you plan to have amplified sound during your event we recommend you apply for a noise  
permit. The permit application must be received by the City no less than 10 business days prior 
to your event. Applications will not be accepted after this deadline. A noise permit allows you 10 
to amplify sound, as long as it is within the restrictions set in the permit, for up to 3 consecutive 
days. If an urgent need exists, the permit may be renewed for 3 more consecutive days. 
Athletic events and associated activities are exempt from needing a noise permit. 

 
Each permit will specify sound and time limits based on several factors including the event’s 
proximity to neighborhoods or businesses. It’s important to know that if you violate any of the 
terms of the permit you can be cited for a noise violation. Without the permit, you risk Police 
action being taken on your event. This can include reduction or elimination of the noise and/or 
a citation. 

 
A permit can be issued no more than three times per year in areas determined to be 
residential districts (defined by City ordinance). You are required to keep a legible copy of your 
permit at the permitted location in case you are asked for it by Police or City staff. 

 
Noise permits cannot be issued for any time after 11 p.m. in residential areas and after 
midnight in non-residential areas.  The permits cannot be issued in noise sensitive zones, areas 
within 500 feet of any school, church, hospital, mass care home, hotel or courthouse. 

 
In addition to getting a permit, we recommend you visit with your neighbors or the surrounding 
businesses about the level and type of sound prior to your event so they will know what to 
expect. Again, the permit application must be received by the City no less than 10 business 
days before your event. Applications will not be accepted after this deadline. 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2906
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2906
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2906


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

VENDOR SALES 

Vendors include everything from the sale of food and beverages to retail products. Events that 
include vendor sales require a fee in addition to all other applicable fees. These fees must be 
paid along with your event permit fees and are as follows: 

- 1 vendor No charge 
- 2-10 vendors $150
- 11-25 vendors $200
- 26-50 vendors $250
- 50+ vendors $300

A preliminary list of vendors and site layout must be submitted prior to consideration for 
approval. A finalized list of vendors and site layout must be provided to the Special Events 
Office no less than 10 business days prior to your event. New vendors cannot be added after 
this time. This is necessary to ensure vendors are properly permitted and operating safely. 

In addition to any applicable permits or fees, you will be responsible for ensuring that your 

event vendors are properly remitting sales tax to the State of Oklahoma. See the Oklahoma Tax 11 
Commission's special event requirements. 

OKLAHOMA TAX COMMISSION 

When including vendors at your event you are required to notify the Oklahoma Tax 
Commission, as well as report all sales including money made from admission if applicable. 

- Contact the Oklahoma Tax Commission at 405.522.4324 to
obtain a Special Event Promoter/Organizer Business Application
($50).

- Oklahoma Tax Commission, 2501 N. Lincoln Blvd, OKC, OK 73194 Connors Building, 
Capitol Complex (NW Corner Building of Complex)

- The application and fee are due no less than 30 days prior to your event.
- You will receive sales tax report forms with your permit number and you will need to 

distribute these to vendors at your event.
- After the event, collect all of the forms and return them to

the Oklahoma Tax Commission.
- If selling alcohol, contact Oklahoma Tax Commission for alcohol tax license as well.

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
http://www.tax.ok.gov/btforms/13-90.pdf
http://www.tax.ok.gov/btforms/13-90.pdf


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

FOOD AND ALCOHOL 

12 Food 
Food vendors include food trucks-trailers, stands, tents, canned and/or packaged foods, etc. 
Special Event Food Licenses allow these vendors to sell prepared foods at an event for up to 14 
days. For your vendors to be issued Special Event Food Licenses, the following is needed: 

- A list of all food vendors and a site plan showing the layout of the event and food
vendor locations, submitted with your application

- A final list of vendors provided no later than 10 business days prior to your event
- Pre-payment of the State and City licenses with Oklahoma City County Health

Department (OCCHD, contacts on page 13)
- Early setup by each food vendor to allow time for an on-site, day-of-event inspection
- Both State and City licenses kept on-site and available for review
- Discharging, pouring, spilling, leaking, emitting, pumping or dumping anything to the

storm sewer system is not allowed and could lead to a citation.
- If washing anything outdoors a Cosmetic Cleaning permit with Storm Water Quality is

required.

REMINDER: Use of open flame for cooking requires that you contact the Fire Marshal, this 
includes propane systems on food trucks-trailers. Additional permits may be required. 

Food Licensing 

LICENSE DEADLINE/REQUIREMENTS FEE 
FOOD 

OK State Temporary Food License 
(Issued by OCCHD) 

vendor list - 10 business 
days prior to event $100 per event 

City Special Event Food License 
(Issued by OCCHD) 

vendor list - 10 business 
days prior to event $30 per event 

(Mobile food vendors must already have 
annual mobile food licenses) 

Oklahoma City County Health Department (OCCHD) Information: 
- For more information regarding Special Events and Temporary Food Establishments,

or to schedule inspections, please contact the Oklahoma City County Health
Department: website
Elaine Winterink – elaine_winterink@occhd.org , 405.425.4327

https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2932
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2932
http://www.okc.gov/specialevents


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

Alcohol (Liquor, wine and beer) 
To sell or offer alcohol at your event, vendors must obtain an Event Alcohol License from 
the Alcoholic Beverage Laws Enforcement Commission (ABLE). To get an Event Alcohol 
License you will need the following: 

- 60 days prior to your event, you must apply for your Event Alcohol License with
ABLE.

- Applicants must then follow the same steps for the City of Oklahoma City.  Licensing
office is on the 8th Floor of 420 W. Main St. - 297-2606.

- You must have your Event Alcohol Licenses posted where alcohol will be sold to your
event participants.

CONTACT: Alcoholic Beverage Laws Enforcement Commission (ABLE) 
ABLE, 3812 N. Santa Fe Suite 200, OKC, OK 73118 
405.521-3484 or Toll Free 1-866-894-3517 
www.ok.gov/able/Business_Application_Forms 

13 
PARADES 
Parades can create an opportunity for large groups of spectators and parade participants to 
heavily impact public streets and sidewalks. Because of the increased impact, some additional 
rules must be followed to ensure that your parade operates safely and efficiently: 

- This parade rules list must be distributed to parade registrants prior to and on the
day of the parade.

- A Parade Director must be selected and emergency contact information provided to
the OCPD and City staff. The Parade Director will be the main point of contact for
OCPD and City staff regarding the organization of the parade.

- Parade Marshals (volunteers) are required and will be responsible for monitoring:
Staging areas, securing routes, barricade placement, disbanding areas, cleanup,
distance between parade entries, spectator safety and pedestrian access.

- Each parade entry must provide at least one volunteer Parade Marshal.
- Parade Marshals must dress similarly and must be easily identifiable.
- Parades must be limited to 100 registrations or less, no event day registrations can

be allowed.
- All decorated floats must have a fire extinguisher on board.
- Parades must be limited to 2 hours or less.
- Candy cannot be thrown during parades. It must be handed out by participants

walking the course.
Continued on next page… 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
http://www.ok.gov/able/Business_Application_Forms


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

PARADES continued… 
- Float participants cannot mount or dismount from floats during the parade.
- Nothing other than candy can be distributed by participants at the parade.
- A dedicated cleanup crew or Manure catchers (Bun-Bags) are required for all parade

entries involving animal waste on public rights-of-way. This means that a crew must
follow each of these parade entries, collecting waste as the parade occurs.
Confirmation of this information must be included in your waste plan.

- All motorized vehicle drivers in the parade must have a valid driver’s license.
- Motorized vehicles are not allowed to perform tire burnouts during the parade.
- Motorized vehicles are not allowed to fishtail, drift or spinout during the parade.
- Motorized vehicles with hydraulics must not allow their tires to leave the ground

during the parade.
- No alcohol or glassware is allowed in the parade.
- It is suggested that your final parade entry include a team of volunteers that pick up

waste along the parade route, along with your waste contractor.

VOLUNTEERS 

The number and quality of volunteers you recruit can make or break your event. Participant 
safety often hinges on volunteers who know what they are doing. It’s critical that you have 
more than enough trained volunteers or staff recruited to manage your event. If you are 
organizing events where traffic is controlled on a route (parades, processions, runs, walks, 
cycling events, etc.) your volunteers must wear safety vests or some form of similar and/or 
easily identifiable clothing. 

Volunteers should be stationed properly to help drivers, spectators and participants get to their 
destinations. Locations of volunteers, as well as Police support, should be shown on your traffic 
control plan. 

EVENTS ON PARKS PROPERTY/ BLEACHER RENTAL 

Events held on Parks & Recreation Department property, including City parks, lakes and the 
Oklahoma River trails require coordination with the City’s Parks Special Events Office. Check 
availability and make reservations by calling 405.297.2756. Additional permits and fees 
may be required. 

Athletic events expecting registrations of less than 350 participants are encouraged to operate 
on Parks property. 

Additionally, the Parks and Recreation Department rents portable bleachers on a first come, 
first served basis. Each of the Parks Department’s four bleacher sets can hold up to 180 people. 
Overnight security must be provided. Fees vary. Call Parks at 405.297.3882 to make a 
reservation. 

14 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/departments/parks-recreation/rentals-and-permits/bleacher-rentals


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

EVENTS ON TRUST PROPERTY 

If your event is held in a park near a City lake or near the Oklahoma River, you will likely affect 
property that is owned by a City Trust. Commonly this would include the Oklahoma City Utilities 
Trust (OCWUT) and the Oklahoma City River Redevelopment Authority (OCRRA). Other Trusts 
commonly affected by public events are the Oklahoma City Public Property Authority (OCPPA) 
and the Oklahoma City Zoo Trust. 

If affected, these Trusts will need to be included in the permitting process for your event and 
The Special Events Office or the Parks Special Events Office can help you make contact with 
them. Additional fees, land-use requirements and approvals may be required for the use of 
Trust property. 

EVENTS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY 

If you plan to hold an outdoor public event on private property, you are required to apply for a 
Special Event Permit ($25). This will serve as your notification to the City that there may be 
additional traffic congestion or a larger than normal public gathering at a property. Review of 
your event application may reveal the need for additional permits, inspections and/or the need 15 
for public safety support. 

This is not intended to add additional work or cost to your event. The purpose is to ensure that 
public events are safe and well-planned. 

The Special Event Permit could assist you in overcoming outdoor sales zoning restrictions at 
your event site. This frequently occurs with improperly zoned private lots abutting a larger 
event site. The Special Event Permit, subject to City review and approval, will temporarily allow 
outdoor sales for the duration of your event. Additional fees apply and are outlined in the  
vendor sales portion of this guide. 

The Special Event Permit is not intended to replace the Outdoor Sellers Permit for individual 
solicitors, individual pop-up shops or regular outdoor business operations. It is intended for 
temporary, outdoor public events. 

EVENTS ON STATE PROPERTY 

State of Oklahoma - Capitol Grounds Reservations 

Division of Capitol Assets Management 

Contact information: dcs.ok.gov reservation website, 405.521.2121 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
http://www.ok.gov/DCS/Capitol_Reservation.html


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

EMERGENCY PLANS 

Every event differs based on the activities involved. The list below identifies common risks that 
occur at events. Once you have identified risks we suggest that you establish an emergency 
plan. The Police and Fire Departments can make suggestions and help you gain a better 
understanding of the issues associated with these risks: 

inclement weather 
medical emergencies 

structure collapse 
lost child 

crowd control 
accident 

fire 
lost and found 

loss of utilities communications malfunction 

In cases where severe weather or other concerns pose a threat to your event, OCPD and/or the 
Special Events Office will be in touch with the Oklahoma City Emergency Manager. A threat to 
public safety is cause for revocation of a permit, so please keep in mind that your event can be 
canceled upon guidance from OCPD, the Emergency Manager and other public safety officials. 
In the case that a permit is revoked due to an existing threat, your cooperation with City staff 
 will be needed and appreciated to ensure that all of your event participants stay safe.  16

  EMSA 

  EMSA paramedics staff special events throughout the metro area. EMSA provides medical  
  coverage should a participant need immediate medical assistance or transportation to a hospital. 

You are asked to consider several things before requesting EMSA assistance at your special 
event: 

- The need for a fully staffed EMSA ambulance, Paramedic and/or EMT presence.
- The type of special equipment that might be needed to specifically address the

event participant’s emergencies.
- Event site challenges that might require specialized EMSA staging.
- Probability of responding in tight spaces, i.e. large crowds or wooded areas requiring

bike or ATV response.
- Crowd size that might require more than one EMSA ambulance.

EMSA does not provide over the counter aid such as pain relievers or decongestants to your 
event participants but is ready to respond to injuries and medical emergencies. 

CONTACT: EMSA Special Events Contact – 405.297.7110 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

FILMING 

A special events permit is required for filming from the right-of-way (streets, sidewalks, alleys 
and easements) in the City of Oklahoma City.    

- Please complete the special events application and add any important information
regarding your request.

- A permit is not required if filming indoors or on private property.
- Consult with the special events office regarding the request if needed.
- If filming on sidewalks the applicant must allow pedestrians to cross when needed.
- If intermittent traffic control is needed OCPD off-duty officers must be hired. To

contact the Police Special Events Unit, call 405.297.1144. Please remember only
Police can direct traffic.

- If the request requires a street closure, the applicant must receive 100% approval
from the property owners on the street that would be closed.  A street closure
petition with the signatures and addresses of the property owners is required.
Street closure permits typically take more time to process than an activity permit.
Please keep that in mind when applying for a street closure.

- Invoices must be paid prior to receiving the approved permit.
- For more information regarding filming in the State of Oklahoma and possible

incentives, please contact the Oklahoma Film + Music Office at 405.522.9635 or visit
www.okfilmmusic.org.

- Filming with a drone may require a permit in some cases.  Please contact the Special
Events Office to check if a permit is needed.

17 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2926
https://www.okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=2926
http://www.okfilmmusic.org/


 OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

18

$25 
$75 

SPECIAL EVENT FEES  
Application / Special Event Permit  (non-refundable)   
Revocable Permit (right-of-way use, non-refundable)   
Vendor Permit (refundable up to 10 days prior to event) 

1 Vendor $0 
2-10 Vendors $150 

11-25 Vendors $200 
26-50 Vendors $250 
50+ Vendors $300 

 Noise Permit $TBD 
 Electrical Permit $TBD 
 Generator Permit $TBD 
FIRE DEPARTMENT PERMITS 
Propane Gas Permit  
(required for food trucks, trailers, tents, etc.) 

Single Event $25 
Annual Permit $100 

  Tent Permit $50 
(30 days-Larger than 15' by 15') 

  Pyrotechnics:  1st Day of display $85 
$10 Each Additional day in a 7-day period 

  Haunted House $85 
  Open Flame $25 
  Hot Work Display 

  
$30 

  Display of Fueled Vehicle in Public Assembly $85 
  Certificate of Fitness Test  

(Pyrotechnic Shooter) 

FOOD / BEVERAGE LICENSES 
City 
  Special Event Food/Beverage License 
 Alcohol License  

Outside Agencies 
  State Special Event Food / Beverage   
  ABLE Special Event License 
  OK Tax Commission Special Event Licenses 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

$85 

$30    (all issued by OCCHD) 
$     (varies per ABLE requirements, must 
be purchased prior to event day - must 
have ABLE license before obtaining City 
license)

$100 for first 3 days, $40 per additional day
$  (varies per ABLE requirements) 
$  (varies per OTC requirements) 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text



OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

DEADLINE CHECKLIST 

Event & Date(s):  

Event Coordinator: 

Phone/Email:   

19 

Tasks to be completed 
(All items due to City unless noted) Deadline Initial/Date 

Special event permit application with preliminary plans 
Major Events 
Minor events 
Private property events 

Minimum 75 days prior 
Minimum 30 days prior 
Minimum 30 days prior 

FINAL site, traffic control, waste and electrical plans Prior to approval 
Certificate of insurance listing City as additional insured 
(private property events or non-commercial block parties exempt) 

Prior to approval 

Copies of barricade and waste contracts Prior to approval 
Signed affidavits verifying notification/consent Prior to approval 
Notification to abutting residents/businesses 30 days prior to event 
Special Event application fee ($25) / Street closure fee ($75) w/ approved permit 
Vendor sales fee (see fee schedule above or in guide) w/ approved permit 

Vendor sales: FINAL list and site layout 10 business days prior  

Fire permit(s) 30 days prior to event 
OTC event promoter/organizer business application ($50) 30 days prior to event 

Noise permit ($no fee) 10 business days prior 

OKC alcohol application and fee ($Varies) 10 business days prior 

OKC special event food/beverage license ($30) 10 business days prior 

OK State special event food / beverage license ($100) 10 business days prior 

OCCHD inspections for permits 10 business days prior  

ABLE alcohol licenses ($Varies) 60 days prior to event

Call Okie - Dial 811 before digging or staking ground Prior to approval 

http://www.okc.gov/specialevents
https://www.okc.gov/home/showdocument?id=2880


OKC SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 

SPECIAL EVENTS CONTACT LIST 

20 

Special Events Office 
405.297.2890 200 N Walker 
email: specialevents@okc.gov Oklahoma City, OK 73102 
Downtown Oklahoma City Partnership 211 N. Robinson, Ste 225 
405.235.3500 Oklahoma City, OK 73102 
Development Services Inspections 420 West Main, 8th Floor 
405.297.2351 or 405.297.2606 Oklahoma City, OK 73120 
EMSA 1111 Classen Drive 
405.297.7110 Oklahoma City, OK 73103 
Fire Marshal’s Office 820 NW 5th Street 
405.297.3584 Oklahoma City, OK 73106 
Oklahoma ABLE Commission 3812 N Santa Fe, Suite 200 
405.521.3484 Oklahoma City, OK 73118 
Oklahoma County Court Clerk 320 Robert S Kerr Ave, Suite 409 
405.713.1705 Oklahoma City, OK 73102 

Oklahoma City County Health Dept 2401 NW 23rd St. Suite 2G 
405.425.4454 Oklahoma City, OK 73107 

Oklahoma Tax Commission 2501 N Lincoln Blvd – Connors Bld. 
405.521.3160 Oklahoma City, OK 73194 

Parks and Recreation Department  420 W. Main, 2nd Floor 
405.297.2691 Oklahoma City, OK 73102 

Police Department – Special Events 219 East Main 
405.297.1144 Oklahoma City, OK 73104 
Public Transportation & Parking Office 300 SW 7th St 
405.297.1331 Oklahoma City, OK 73109 
Traffic Management Division 420 West Main, 6th Floor 
405.297.2531 Oklahoma City, OK 73102 
Storm Water Quality 420 West Main, 3rd Floor 
405.297.1774 Oklahoma City, OK 73102 
Call Okie 
Dial 811 www.callokie.com 

mailto:specialevents@okc.gov
mailto:brandi@downtownokc.com
http://www.callokie.com/




 

    

 
 

 
  

 

   

         

            

 

  
       

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
 

   

The City of 

OKLAHOMA CITY 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT 
Page 1 

Current Date __________________ 

Applications are processed in the order received - preference given to long standing events. 

Event Name ___________________________________________________________________ 

Expected Attendance ___________________________________________________________ 

Event Coordinator ________________________________________________________________

Email Address ___________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address ___________________________________________________________ 

Phone  __________________ Fax __________________ 

Event Address (Location)_________________________________________________________ 

Event Start Day/Date ______________________________ Event Start Time _____________ 
Event End Day/Date ______________________________ Event End Time _____________ 

Set-up Day/Date ______________________ Start Time  _______ End Time  _________ 

Tear-down Day/Date ______________________   Start Time _______ End Time  _________ 

Street Closure Times (if applicable) 
Closure Day/Date ___________________________ Time ________ 

Reopening Day/Date ___________________________ Time ________ 

Event description (activities, exact location, etc.). Please also submit an event site map. 

Is this an annual event? __________ If yes, how many years? ___________ 
How many vendors will sell items at your event (retail, food, beverages, etc.)? 

___None ___1 ___2-10 ___11-25 ___26-50 ___50+ 

Please note: the deadline for the food vendor list is a strict 10 business days prior to the event. 

Questions? Call 405-297-2890 Additional information / Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

https://okc.gov/specialevents


  

 

  

 

    

  

 

  

     

 

   

    

 

    

  

                 
                  

    
         

                

 

 

    

 
  

    

The City of 

OKLAHOMA CITY 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT 
Page 2 

Event includes (mark all that apply): 

Block party Assembly event (First Amendment)

Beverage sales Residential area 

Alcohol sales Non-residential area 

Food sales Parklet 

Merchandise sales Athletic event 

Street activities 

Street closure 

Procession/Horse Procession 

Parade

Amplified sound 

Live entertainment 

Electrical wiring/generator(s) Filming 

Number of tents_______________  Size of tent(s)  _______________ 

Number of Parade Entries _______________  Number of Horses/Animals participating ________

Emergency primary contacts during event: 

Name _______________________________ Name _______________________________ 

Mobile_______________________________ Mobile_______________________________ 

Email  _______________________________    Email  _______________________________

Event Coordinator Signature _________________________________________________________
(By signing this permit, the event coordinator and their organizing partners agree to abide by the applicable general rules of 
application listed and the applicable laws referenced under City of Oklahoma City Municipal Code Chapters 50 and 60 

RETURN COMPLETED FORM 
Via U.S. Postal Special Events - Public Information & Marketing 200 N. Walker, OKC, OK 73102 
Via E-Mail specialevents@okc.gov (preferred method) 

Via Fax (405) 297-3124

Questions? Call Special Events Permit Office (405)297-2890

SPECIAL EVENTS OFFICE USE 

Staff comments: 

Special Events Office Approval ___________________________________________________ 

Questions? Call 405-297-2890 Additional information / Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

https://okc.gov/Home/ShowDocument?id=3918
https://okc.gov/specialevents
mailto:specialevents@okc.gov


 

           
         

           
         

         

           
          

       

         
       

         

           
       

           

      
      

         
    

       
   

          

           
  

         
       

      

       
     

          
         

 

     

             
         

      

  

    

The City of 

OKLAHOMA CITY 

SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 
Page 3 

GENERAL RULES FOR APPLICATION 

• A revocable permit can be approved for a recurring event on multiple dates in the same 
calendar year if no changes are made to the site plan or participants. 

• A special event permit can be approved for a recurring event on multiple dates in the same 
year if no changes are made to the site plan or participants. 

• A revocable right-of-way use permit is required to block pedestrian or vehicular traffic. 

• Runs and walks under 350 runners should not include major streets as a part of their route. 
We encourage the use of City park or lake properties for these events. 

• Noise Permit suggested for sound amplification. Call (405) 297-3884 for more information. 

• Traffic control devices must be placed according to the (Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (MUTCD) and any additional City requirements (page 6). 

• Notification is required for all events. See notification requirements (page 7). 

• When required, the OKC Police Department must be contacted to arrange for escorts and 
other event-related traffic control. See the police support section (page 8). 

• Applicants must remove all trash immediately following their event (page 9). 

• When required, metered parking must be reserved through 
Public Transportation & Parking, (405) 297-1331 (page 10). 

• If you plan to sell or offer retail items, prepared food and/or alcohol see the 
Vendor Sales, Food & Alcohol section (pages 11-13). 

• Entrance fees cannot be charged for admission to events on City rights-of-way 
(City streets, sidewalks, alleys or easements). 

• No event signs or placards may be permanently posted (in the ground or on poles). 

• Rights-of-way must not be altered. Streets, sidewalks, trees, plants and buildings must be 
protected from damage during your event. 

• Streets must not be painted. Handheld chalk and/or tape are the only allowed means of 
marking start lines, finish lines and route markers. 

• Events must be accessible to persons with disabilities. 

• A permit does not give permission to trespass on private property. You will need to show 
proof that you have permission to use private property. 

• Events are processed on a first-come, first-served basis. If a scheduling conflict occurs, 
preference will be given to previously-permitted annual events operating on the usual event 
date(s) and/or time(s). (Example: Second Saturday in January, 3 p.m.) 

• The City of Oklahoma City must not be included as a sponsor of your event. 

• Your permit may be revoked if any of the following issues are identified by City staff: fraud, 
misrepresentation, imminent threat to public health, safety and/or welfare. As a result of 
revocation, future permit requests may be denied. 

Questions? Call 405-297-2890 Additional information / Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

https://okc.gov/specialevents


    
      

    
 
  

  
  
  
  

   
   
   

 
    

       

  
  

   
    

     
      

  
   
    
        
    

   

   

  

 
     
   

     

   

  

 

 

  

    

The City of 

OKLAHOMA CITY 

SPECIAL EVENTS GUIDE 
Page 4 

SPECIAL EVENT FEES 
Application for Special Event Permit (non-refundable) $25 
Revocable Permit -right-of-way use (non-refundable) $75 
Vendor Permit (refundable up to 10 days prior to event) 

1 Vendor 
2-10 Vendors 

11-25 Vendors 
26-50 Vendors 
50+ Vendors 

Noise Permit 
Electrical Permit 
Generator Permit 
FIRE DEPARTMENT PERMITS 
Propane Gas Permit 
(required for food trucks, trailers, tents, etc.) 

Single Event 
Annual Permit 

Tent Permit 
(30 days-Larger than 15' by 15') 

Pyrotechnics: 1st Day of display 
$10 Each Additional day in a 7-day period 

Haunted House 
Open Flame 
Hot Work Display 
Display of Fueled Vehicle in Public Assembly 
Certificate of Fitness Test (Pyrotechnic Shooter) 

CITY FOOD / BEVERAGE LICENSES 

Special Event Food/Beverage Certificate of Registration 

Alcohol License 

Outside Agencies 
State Special Event Food / Beverage 

ABLE Event License (60 day application deadline) 
OK Tax Commission Special Event Licenses 

$0 
$150 
$200 
$250 
$300 

$TBD 
$TBD 

$TBD 

$25 
$100 

$50 

$85 

$85 
$25 
$30 
$85 
$85 

$30 issued by City of OKC Development Services. 

$ varies per ABLE requirements, must be 
purchased prior to event day - must have ABLE 
license before obtaining City license. 

$100 for first 3 days, $40 per additional day. 
$ varies per ABLE requirements. 
$ varies per OTC requirements. 

Questions? Call 405-297-2890 Additional information / Download forms @ okc.gov/specialevents 

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

cleo.rajon
Typewritten Text

https://okc.gov/specialevents

	City Council Amended Agenda October 7, 2024
	Agenda Item 7.a.i. City Council Minutes September 3, 2024
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. Laura Jensen and Andrew Gilbert Council Cover Letter for committee appointments
	Laura Jensen and Andrew Gilbert Council Cover Letter for committee appointments
	Laura Jensen 06.10.24
	Andrew Gilbert

	Agenda Item 7.b.ii. Council Memo - John Howk Board of Adjustment Appointment
	Council Memo - John Howk Board of Adjustment Appointment.pdf
	Council Cover Memo Amos Radlinger.pdf

	BOA Applicant.pdf

	Agenda Item 7.c.i. Hangar Lease Edward Smothers
	Agenda Item 7.c.ii. Staff report_Agronomy Consulting Contract_Heckenkemper Golf
	Agenda Item 7.c.iii. Staff report_2023 GO Bond Asphalt Street Rehabilitation Design Contract_CEC
	Agenda Item 7.c.iv. Arledge and Associates PC
	Agenda Item 7.c.v. TargetSolutions Contract
	Agenda Item 7.c.vi. The Center for Spooktacular
	Agenda Item 7.c.vii. Kellogg and Sovereign
	Agenda Item 7.c.viii. Quipu Group
	Agenda Item 7.c.ix. Volunteer Agreements for Golf Course
	Agenda Item 7.c.x. Jerry Benedict Purchase and Sale Agreement
	Agenda Item 7.c.xi. Staff Report to Council for Amendment No 4_Parkhill Contract
	Agenda Item 7.d.i. Council Memo for Donation 216 S. Wyandotte Ave
	Council Memo for Donation 216 S. Wyandotte Ave
	Weare-West Family Trust to City of Bartlesville_216 S Wyandotte Ave

	Agenda Item 7.e.i. Resolution appropriating revenue for Tree Planting Program
	Agenda Item 7.e.ii. Resolution appropriating funds for Police Dept.
	Agenda Item 7.f.i. Bartlesville NEXT Report - Sep 2024
	Sep 24

	Agenda Item 7.g.i. July 2024 Financials
	July 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P1 July 2024 Financials
	P1 July 2024 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 7.g.ii. August 2024 Financials
	August 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P2 August 2024 Financials
	P2 August 2024 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo



	Agenda Item 7.h.i. 2024-2025-006R
	Agenda Item 7.h.ii. 2024-2025-008
	Agenda Item 7.h.iii. 2024-2025-009
	Agenda Item 7.h.iv. 2024-2025-010
	Agenda Item 8. RE-BID REVIEW_Tuxedo Bridge over Caney River
	Agenda Item 8. Attachment - 1425 - BR 5 6 & 9 Caney River - Rehabs, Bartlesville 100% Plans (1)
	AE01 ENVIRONMENTAL NOTES
	AR01 SUMMARY OF PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES ROADWAY(1)
	AT01 SUMMARY OF PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES TRAFFIC
	R001 STORMWATER MAINTENANCE PLAN
	R002 CONCRETE REPAIR AND GUARDRAIL DETAIL PLAN (SHEET 1 OF 2)
	R003 CONCRETE REPAIR AND GUARDRAIL DETAIL PLAN (SHEET 2 OF 2)
	T001 ADVANCED WARNING SHEET
	T002 TRAFFIC CONTROL PHASE 1 (SHEET 1 OF 3)
	T003 TRAFFIC CONTROL PHASE 1 (SHEET 2 OF 3)
	T004 TRAFFIC CONTROL PHASE 1 (SHEET 3 OF 3)

	Agenda Item 9. 2024-2025-008 Concrete
	Agenda Item 10. 2024-2025-009 Part I Asphaltic Concrete and Part II Aggregate Base
	Agenda Item 11. 2024 Tower Bid
	Agenda Item 12. Council Cover Letter 5403 Nottingham Pl Easement Closing
	Agenda Item 13. Council Memo and Attachments - Residentially Based Child Care Zoning Text Amendments
	Council Cover Memo Residentially Based Zoning Text Amendment.pdf
	DRAFT TEXT AMENDMENT ORDINANCE AND ATTACHMENTS.pdf
	DRAFT TEXT AMENDMENT ORDINANCE.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. __________
	Dale Copeland, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	__________________________
	Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk

	Exhibit A.pdf
	Pages from Staff Report and Attachments - Residentially Based Child Care Text Amendments-2.pdf
	Pages from Pages from Staff Report and Attachments - Residentially Based Child Care Text Amendments-3.pdf
	Pages from Pages from Staff Report and Attachments - Residentially Based Child Care Text Amendments-2.pdf

	Exhibit B.pdf
	reg.pdf
	Pages from Staff Report and Attachments - Residentially Based Child Care Text Amendments.pdf


	Staff Report and Attachments - Residentially Based Child Care Text Amendments.pdf
	Staff Report Draft - Residentially Based Child Care Text Amendments.pdf
	Community Development Department STAFF REPORT
	CASE NO. TA-0924-0001
	General Information:
	Public Notice:

	Staff Recommendation:


	Binder2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Zoning Regulations  Table 4.2.pdf

	Redline - Child Care Home Occupation.pdf
	Child Care Home Occupation - Proposed.pdf
	In-Home Child Care Facilities - Table of Allowed Uses.pdf
	Child Care Home Occupation - Proposed.pdf
	7.3 Child Care and Adult Care Facilities



	Bartlesville NEXT.pdf


	Agenda Item 14. JJ Keegan - Golf Course Report
	Agenda Item 15. Resolution regardng unsheltered homeless population
	Agenda Item 16. Special Event Charges Research
	OKC, OK Guide.pdf
	SPECIAL EVENTS
	CONTENTS
	WHAT KIND OF EVENT PERMIT DO I NEED?
	THE PROCESS AT A GLANCE
	CITY SERVICES MEETINGS
	GENERAL RULES FOR APPLICATION
	YOUR SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION
	Type of Event Application Deadline
	EVENT SITE PLANS
	the more info the better…
	STREET CLOSURES
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	The City of Oklahoma City 200 N. Walker

	7
	Areas Requiring Consent
	POLICE SUPPORT

	8
	CONTACT: Police Special Events – 405.297.1144
	FIRE SUPPORT

	CONTACT: Fire Marshal Special Events – 405.297.3584
	ELECTRICITY PLAN
	STAGES


	9
	WASTE PLANS
	RESERVING METERED PARKING SPACES
	NOISE PERMITS
	VENDOR SALES
	OKLAHOMA TAX COMMISSION
	FOOD, LOW-POINT BEER AND ALCOHOL
	Alcohol (Liquor and High-Point Beer)
	CONTACT: Alcoholic Beverage Laws Enforcement Commission (ABLE)

	14
	PARADES
	Continued on next page…
	VOLUNTEERS
	EVENTS ON PARKS PROPERTY/ BLEACHER RENTAL
	EVENTS ON TRUST PROPERTY
	EVENTS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY
	EVENTS ON STATE PROPERTY
	EMERGENCY PLANS
	EMSA
	EMSA paramedics staff special events throughout the metro area. EMSA provides medical
	coverage should a participant need immediate medical assistance or transportation to a hospital.
	FILMING
	SPECIAL EVENTS CONTACT LIST





	Applicant is Event Organizer: Off
	Applicant is On-site Emergency Contact: Off
	Applicant is Organization Representative : Off
	Master Applicant Organization Name: 
	Master Applicant Organization Contact: 
	Master Applicant Organization Street Address: 
	Master Applicant Organization Mobile Number: 
	Master Applicant Organization Email Address: 
	HOT Funds Recipient Yes: Off
	HOT Funds Recipient No: Off
	Applicant is Same as Applicant: Off
	Type of Organization is Nonprofit : Off
	Type of Organization is Board or Committee: Off
	Type of Organization is School: Off
	Type of Organization is Business: Off
	Type of Organization is Volunteer: Off
	Type of Organization is Individual: Off
	Type of Organization is Other: Off
	Master Applicant Event Attendance: 
	HOT Funds Recipient 5: Off
	HOT Funds Recipient 6: Off
	HOT Funds Recipient 7: Off
	HOT Funds Recipient 8: Off
	Master Applicant Event Name 1: 
	Master Applicant Event Location 1: 
	Master Applicant Event Attendance 2: 
	Text Field 5: 
	Day 3: 
	Day 4: 
	Day 5: 
	Day 6: 
	Day 7: 
	Day 8: 
	Day 9: 
	Day 10: 
	Day 11: 
	Day 12: 
	Day 13: 
	Day 14: 
	Day 15: 
	Day 16: 
	Day 17: 
	Day 18: 
	Day 19: 
	Day 20: 
	Day 21: 
	Day 22: 
	Day 23: 
	Day 24: 
	Day 25: 
	Day 26: 
	Day 27: 
	Day 28: 
	Day 29: 
	Day 30: 
	Day 31: 
	Day 32: 
	Day 33: 
	Day 34: 
	Day 35: 
	Day 36: 
	Day 37: 
	Day 38: 
	Day 39: 
	Day 40: 
	Day 41: 
	Day 42: 
	Day 43: 
	Day 44: 
	Day 45: 
	Day 46: 
	Day 47: 
	Day 48: 
	Day 49: 
	Day 50: 
	Day 2: 
	Additional Details 2: 
	C9: Off
	C10: Off
	C38: Off
	C39: Off
	C42: Off
	C58: Off
	C59: Off
	C60: Off
	C61: Off
	C62: Off
	C63: Off
	C64: Off
	C65: Off
	C66: Off
	C67: Off
	C68: Off
	C69: Off
	C70: Off
	C71: Off
	C72: Off
	C73: Off
	C74: Off
	C75: Off
	C76: Off
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 9: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 10: 
	Questionnaire Yes 31: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 60: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 65: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 61: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 66: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 62: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 67: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 68: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 69: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 70: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 71: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 72: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 73: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 74: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 75: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 76: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 77: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 78: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 79: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 80: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 81: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 82: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 83: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 84: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 85: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 86: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 87: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 88: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 89: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 90: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 91: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 92: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 93: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 94: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 95: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 96: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 97: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 98: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 102: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 103: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 104: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 105: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 106: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 107: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 108: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 109: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1010: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1011: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1012: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1013: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1014: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1015: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1016: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1017: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 1018: Off
	Emergency Command Post Location: 
	Weather Emergency Shelters: 
	Are Fire Extinguishers on the Site Plan? 5: Off
	Event Fire-EMS Coordinator Mobile Number: 
	Event Fire-EMS Coordinator: 
	Event Security Coordinator Mobile Number: 
	Event Security Coordinator: 
	Event Communications Coordinator Mobile Number: 
	Event Communications Coordinator: 
	Crowd control measures: 
	Described Staff Identification Method 2: 
	Method of Crowd Communication: 
	Number of Vendor Booths: 
	Are Fire Extinguishers on the Site Plan? 4: Off
	Are Fire Extinguishers on the Site Plan? 3: Off
	Is EMS on the Site Plan 4: Off
	Is EMS on the Site Plan 3: Off
	List the Type of Fire Prevention: 
	On-site EMS and First Aid Location(s): 
	Head of Medical Support Mobile Number 3: 
	Head of Medical Support:: 
	Command Post Coordinator/Volunteer Mobile Number: 
	Command Post Coordinator/Volunteer: 
	Contracted Security Provider Mobile Number: 
	Head of Security or Officer Mobile Number: 
	Contracted Security Provider: 
	Head of Security or Officer: 
	Described Staff Identification Method: 
	Method of Communication: 
	Number of Volunteers: 
	Total Estimated Event Attendance: 
	Estimated Number of Staff: 
	Check Box 15: Off
	Check Box 12: Off
	Check Box 11: Off
	Check Box 9: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 101: Off
	Length: 
	Questionnaire Yes 198: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 197: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 196: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 195: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 194: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 193: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 192: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 191: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 190: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 189: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 188: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 187: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 186: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 185: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 184: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 183: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 100: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 99: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 64: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 44: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 43: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 42: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 41: Off
	Parking Lot Location: 3: 
	Street(s) Closure Location: 3: 
	End Closure Time: 3: 
	Start Closure Time: 3: 
	Questionnaire Yes 63: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 59: Off
	Number of Parade Animals 3: 
	Number of Parade Spectators 3: 
	Number of Parade Bikes 3: 
	Number of Parade Vehicles 3: 
	Number of Parade Participants 3: 
	Event End Time: 
	Disassemble Location: 
	Assemble  Location: 
	Assemble Time: 
	HOT Funds Recipient 9: Off
	HOT Funds Recipient 10: Off
	Assemble Time 2: 
	Event Start Time 2: 
	Event End Time 2: 
	Event Start Time 3: 
	Event End Time 3: 
	C1034: Off
	C1033: Off
	C1032: Off
	C1031: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 169: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 168: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 167: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 166: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 165: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 164: Off
	Questionnaire Yes 163: Off
	Fire Permit Location Request for Carnivals and Fairs 5: 
	Fire Permit Inspection Request for Carnivals and Fairs 5: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 7: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 8: 
	C1030: Yes
	C1029: Off
	C1018: Off
	C1017: Off
	C1016: Off
	C1015: Off
	Social Security Number: 
	Driver’s License Number: 
	 #: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 1: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 2: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 3: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 4: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 5: 
	Requested Pick-up Date and Time 6: 
	Other PARD Service Request 3: 
	C1026: Off
	Other PARD Service Request 2: 
	C1024: Off
	C1023: Off
	C1022: Off
	C1021: Off
	C1012: Off
	C1011: Off
	C1010: Off
	C109: Off
	C108: Off
	C107: Off
	Date5_af_date: 
	Event Name: 
	Expected Number of People Attending: 
	Event Coordinator: 
	Email Address: 
	Mailing Address: 
	Phone: 
	Fax: 
	Event addresslocation: 
	Event Start Date_af_date: 
	Event End Date_af_date: 
	Event End  Time: 
	Event Set up Date_af_date: 
	Start Time: 
	End Time: 
	Event Tear-Down Date_af_date: 
	Start Time_2: 
	End Time_2: 
	Initial Date of Street Closure_af_date: 
	Time: 
	Date you will re-open street_af_date: 
	Time_2: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 1: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 2: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 3: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 4: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 5: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 6: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 7: 
	Event description activities exact location etc Please also submit an event site map 8: 
	Is this an annual event: 
	If yes how many years: 
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Number of tents: 
	Size of tents: 
	Name: 
	Mobile: 
	Email: 
	Name_2: 
	Mobile_2: 
	Email_2: 
	Staff comments 1: 
	Staff comments 2: 
	Staff comments 3: 
	Staff comments 4: 
	Date2_af_date: 
	Date4_af_date: 


